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The Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., Mumbai | National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street Exchange Plaza, 5" Floor, Plot No. C/1,G Block
Mumbai-400001 Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E)
Mumbai-400 051

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub: Notice of the 31% Annual General Meeting, Closure of Register of Members &
Share Transfer Books and information regarding remote e-voting.

The Notice of the 31% Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company scheduled to be
held on 27" August, 2019 (Tuesday) at 4.00 P.M. Auditorium, National Rail Museum,
Chankayapuri, New Delhi-110021, containing the business to be transacted threat, alongwith
Annual Report for the year 2018-19, is attached herewith.

Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with applicable rules and Regulation
42 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, notice is
hereby given that the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the company would
remain closed from 21.08.2019 to 27.08.2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of payment
of final dividend of Rs.8.55 per share of Rs.5/- each, subject to approval by shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Further, pursuant to section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to
time, the company is providing to its members the facility to cast their vote by electronic means
on all resolutions set forth in the Notice. The instructions for e-voting are mentioned in the said
Notice. The cut-off date to be eligible to vote is 20.08.2019 (Tuesday). The voting period would
commence on 23.08.2019 (Friday), 09.00 a.m. and would end on 26.08.2019 (Monday) at
05.00 pm.

This is for your information and records please.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,
| For Container Corporation of India Ltd.,

(Harish Chandra)
Executive Director (Finance) & Company Secretary

Encl : as above. —2032'%
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NOTICE

CONTAINER CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD.

Regd. Office: C-3, CONCOR Bhawan, Mathura Road, Opp. Apollo Hospital,
New Delhi-110076 (CIN : L63011DL1988G0I1030915)
Email: investorrelations@concorindia.com, Website: www.concorindia.com
Phone: 011-41673093-96, Fax: 011-41673112

Notice is hereby given that the 31* Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will be held as

under:
Day : Tuesday
Date : 27.08.2019
Time : 16.00 Hrs.
Venue : Auditorium, National Rail Museum,

Nyay Marg, Near Bhutan Embassy,
Chanakyapuri, New Delhi-110021.
to transact, with or without modifications, as may be permissible, the following business :
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

(1) Toreceive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) of the Company
for the year ended 31% March, 2019, including Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2019, the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

(2) Todeclare Final dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended 31* March, 2019.

(3) Toappointa Director in place of Shri V. Kalyana Rama, Chairman and Managing Director (DIN: 07201556),
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

(4) Toappointa Directorin place of Shri Sanjay Bajpai, Director (Government Nominee) (DIN: 07549036), who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

(5) Totake note of the appointment of M/s. Arun KAgarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi as
Statutory Auditors of the Company and fix auditors' remuneration and to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED that the appointment of M/s. Arun K Agarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2018-19 in terms of the order
CA.V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT,CCIL(9)/382, dated 31.07.2018 of Comptroller & Auditor General
of India be and is hereby noted. The Statutory Auditors' of the Company may be paid such remuneration as
may be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time. Further, the remuneration payable
to the branch auditors appointed by C&AG of India may also be fixed by the Board of Directors of the
Company from time to time.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

(6) Toconsider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder, Shri Manoj Kumar Dubey (DIN: 07518387), who was appointed as Director (Finance) by the
Ministry of Railways vide its order no. 2017/E/(O)I1/40/31 dated 25.10.2018 and was accordingly appointed
as Director (Finance) & CFO of the Company by the Board of Directors on 30.10.2018 and in respect of
whom the Company has received a notice in writing from the director himself, be and is hereby appointed
as a Director of the Company w.e.f. the date of his assumption of the charge i.e. 31.10.2018, on terms &
conditions determined by the Govt. of India and he would be liable to retire by rotation.”

(1]
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7) Toconsider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder, Shri Jayasankar M.K. (DIN: 08523769), who was appointed as a Non-official Independent
Director by the Ministry of Railways vide its order no. 2009/PL/50/13/Pt., dated 11.07.2019 giving reference
to DoPT notification no. 22/7/2019-EO(ACC)', dated 08.07.2019 and was accordingly appointed as
Director of the Company by the Board of Directors on 31.07.2019 and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from the director himself, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
Company for a period of three years ending on 07.07.2022 or until further orders, whichever is earlier.”

8) To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder, Shri Kamlesh Shivji Vikamsey (DIN: 00059620), who was re-appointed as a Non-official
Independent Director by the Ministry of Railways vide its order no.2009/PL/48/1 (Pt.3), dated 11.07.2019
giving reference to DoPT notification no.22/7/2019-EO(ACC), dated 08.07.2019 and was accordingly re-
appointed as Director of the Company w.e.f. 01.04.2019 by the Board of Directors on 31.07.2019 and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from the director himself, be and is hereby
re-appointed as a Director of the Company for a period of one year ending on 31.03.2020 or until further
orders, whicheveris earlier.”

9) To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder, Shri Sanjeev S. Shah (DIN: 00323163), who was re-appointed as a Non-official Independent
Director by the Ministry of Railways vide its order no. 2009/PL/48/1 (Pt.3), dated 11.07.2019 giving
reference to DoPT notification no. 22/7/2019-EO(ACC), dated 08.07.2019 and was accordingly re-
appointed as Director of the Company w.e.f. 01.04.2019 by the Board of Directors on 31.07.2019 and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from the director himself, be and is hereby
re-appointed as a Director of the Company for a period of one year ending on 31.03.2020 or until further
orders, whicheveris earlier.”

By order of Board of
CONTAINER CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

Sd/-
Dated : 31.07.2019 (Harish Chandra)
Place : New Delhi Executive Director (Finance) & Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. Abrief resume and other particulars required about the Directors seeking re-appointment and appointed
since lastAnnual General Meeting is annexed hereto and forms part of Notice.

2. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special
Business to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto.

3. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a
poll instead of himself/ herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy form
duly completed and signed must be deposited at the registered office of the Company, not less than forty-
eight hours before the commencement of the annual general meeting. A person can act as proxy on
behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the
total share capital of the Company. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of
the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall notact as
a proxy for any other person or shareholder. During the period beginning twenty four hours before the time

[2]
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fixed for the commencement of AGM and until the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled
to inspect the proxies lodged during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three
days of notice in writing is given to the Company.

4. The equity shares of the Company are in compulsory demat mode and sale/purchase of the same is
required to take place in dematerialized form only.

5. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are
requested to send/attach a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution & Power of Attorney authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Annual General Meeting, along with the Proxy
Form/Attendance Slip.

6. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books
will remain closed from 21.08.2019 to 27.08.2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining
entitlement of members to final dividend for the financial year ended on 31.03.2019.

7. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received
for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with
physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are
requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the
Company or Company's Registrars and Transfer Agents, M/s Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P)
Ltd. for assistance in this regard.

8. Members holding shares in multiple folios in physical mode are requested to apply for consolidation of
their folios to the Company or RTA along with relevant share certificates.

9. Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to send all correspondence concerning
registration of transmissions, subdivision, consolidation of shares or any other shares related matter
and/or registration of email address, change in address and bank account, email address, etc. to RTA of
the Company and in case of shares are held in electronic mode, to their respective Depository
Participants. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and
notify change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to
leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from
the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. Further, SEBI has notified the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2018 on
June 8, 2018 to permit transfer of listed securities only in the dematerialized form with a depository. In
view of this, shareholders holding shares in physical form, are advised to dematerialize their shares.

10. The final dividend recommended by the Board of Directors was Rs.8.55 per equity share of Rs.5.00 each,
which was subject to approval of Shareholder in AGM. Final dividend on equity shares as recommended
by the Directors for the year ended on 31.03.2019, if approved by the members at the Annual General
Meeting, will be paid:

(i) tothose Members whose names appear in the Register of Members of the Company, after giving
effect to all valid Share Transfers in Physical form lodged with the Company and its Registrar on or
before 20.08.2019.

(ii) in respect of Shares held in electronic form, to those “deemed members” whose names appear on
the Statements of beneficial ownership furnished by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), at the end of business hours on
20.08.2019.

11. As SEBI has made usage of electronic payment modes for making payments (like Dividend) to the
investors mandatory, therefore members are advised to register the requisite particulars of their bank
account in respect of shares held in dematerialised form with their respective depository participants, to
enable the Company to make payment of dividend by electronic mode. Those holding shares in physical
form may send their requisite bank account particulars to RTA of the Company. Those who have already
furnished their banking particulars in this regard, need not send it again.

12. During the year 2018-19, the Company has transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund the

[3]
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unpaid or unclaimed dividend declared upto financial year 2010-11 and interim dividend of 2011-12.
Shareholders who have not encashed their dividend warrant(s) so far for the financial year ended 2011-
12 (final dividend) or any subsequent financial year(s), are requested to make their claim to the Company
or RTA of the Company. Shareholders are requested to note that in terms of provisions of Section 124 of
the Companies Act 2013, any dividend, which remains un-paid/un-claimed for a period of seven years
from the date of its transfer to the unpaid/unclaimed dividend account, will be transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund established by Central Government. Thereafter, no claim shall be
entertained in respect of dividend transferred to the said Fund. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
notified the Investor Education And Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules,
2016 (IEPF Rules), as amended from time to time, which is applicable to the Company. In terms of the
said IEPF Rules, the Company has uploaded the information in respect of the unpaid/ unclaimed
dividends, as on the date of the 30" Annual General Meeting held on 20.09.2018, on the website of the
IEPF viz. www.iepf.gov.in and under “Investors Relations Section” on the Website of the Company viz.
www.concorindia.com. Also attention of the members is drawn to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the
Act which require a Company to transfer in the name of IEPF Authority all such shares in respect of which
dividend has not been paid or claimed for 7 (seven) consecutive years or more. In accordance with the
aforesaid provision of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, the Company is required to transfer
all such shares in respect of which dividend declared has not been encashed or claimed by the members
for 7 (seven) consecutive years or more. Members are advised to visit the website: www.concorindia.com
to ascertain details of shares liable for transfer in the name of IEPF Authority.

13. Pursuant to Section 139 of Companies Act, 2013, the Auditors of a Government Company are to be
appointed/re-appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India and in terms of
provisions contained in Companies Act 2013, their remuneration shall be fixed by the Company in a
General Meeting or in such manner as the Company in a General Meeting may determine. In pursuance
of the same, C&AG of India had appointed M/s. Arun K Agarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19. C&AG of India has also appointed
Branch Auditors for carrying out audit of branches/regions of the Company. Accordingly, the members are
requested to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration for the Statutory
Auditors/ Branch Auditors of the Company.

14. Pursuant to Section 101 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules, the Company is allowed to
serve documents like notices, annual reports, etc., in electronic form to its members. It also facilitates
prompt receipt of communications and thereby reduces postal transit losses. Accordingly, copy of the
Annual Report is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the
Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes through e-mail unless any member
has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address,
physical copies of the Annual Report is being sent in the permitted mode.

15. Members, who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register their e-mail
address with the RTA of the Company / Depository Participant (DP) of respective member and take partin
the Green Initiative of the Company.

16. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection by the Members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays)
during working hours upto the date of Annual General Meeting and the same along with other documents
as required under the applicable law will also be available for inspection at the time of AGM of the
Company at the meeting.

17. Members desiring any information as regards the businesses proposed to be transacted at this meeting
are requested to write to the Company at least 7 days before the date of the meeting to enable the
management to keep the information ready.

18. Members desirous of making a nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company, as permitted
under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to write to RTA of the Company in prescribed
form in the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014. In case of shares held in
dematerialized form, the nomination form has to be lodged directly with the respective Depository
Participant (DP).

[4]
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19. Members are requested to:

i) Note that copies of Annual Report will not be distributed at the Annual General Meeting and they may
bring their copies of Annual Report;

i) Members/proxies are requested to affix their signature at the space provided in the attendance slip
and handover the same at the entrance of the venue of the AGM,;

iii) Quote their Folio/ Client ID & DP ID Nos., email address, contact no., etc. in all correspondence with
the Company/RTA;

iv) Note that due to security reasons mobile phones, briefcases, eatables and other belongings are not
allowed inside the Auditorium; and

v) Note that no gifts/coupons will be distributed at the Annual General Meeting.
20.The Annual Report of the Company is also available on the Company's website www.concorindia.com.

21.The voting rights of the shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 20.08.2019. In terms of the provisions of Section 108 of
the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,
substituted by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015, and
regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has provided a facility to the members to
exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting service facility arranged by National
Securities Depositary Limited (NSDL). The facility for voting, either through electronic voting system or
ballot paper, will also be made available at the AGM and the members attending the AGM who have not
already casted their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their voting right at the AGM. Aperson,
whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting
at the AGM. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information
purpose only.

22 Kindly note that the members can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either e-voting or exercising this
right in the meeting. Therefore, members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM
may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again.

23.Members desiring to exercise their vote by e-voting are requested to carefully read the enclosed
instructions which inter-alia provide the process and manner for e-voting, login ID, generating password
and time schedule, including the time period during which the votes may be cast, etc.

24 In order to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner and to carry out the required
activities the Board of Directors has appointed Shri Rakesh Kumar of M/s R K & Associates, Company
Secretaries (Membership No. F7695), as the Scrutinizer. Further, the Company has also appointed Ms.
Pragnya Parimita Pradhan of M/s Pragnya Pradhan & Associates, Company Secretaries (Membership
No.A32778) as the alternate scrutinizer.

25.Webcast Facility: The Company will be providing one-way live webcast of the proceedings of the AGM on
the NSDL website. You may access the same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com by using your remote e-
voting credentials. The link will be available in shareholder login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No.6

Shri Manoj Kumar Dubey (DIN:07518387) was appointed as Director (Finance) for a period of five years by the
Ministry of Railways vide its order no. 2017/E(O)II/40/31, dated 25.10.2018 and was accordingly appointed as
Director (Finance) & CFO of the Company by the Board of Directors on 30.10.2018. In terms of his above order
for appointment, his appointment would be effective from the date of his assumption of charge and he has
assumed the charge of Director (Finance) on 31.10.2018 (AN). Shri Manoj Kumar Dubey will be a whole time
Director of the Company and will be liable to retire by rotation under section 152 of the Companies Act 2013. The
appointment is in the pay scale of Rs.1,80000- Rs.3,40,000 and other terms and conditions regulating the
appointment of Shri Manoj Kumar Dubey will be as per applicable Government guidelines and Company policy.

His brief resume, inter-alia, giving nature of his expertise in specific functional area are provided elsewhere
[5]
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which forms part of this notice.

The Board of Directors considers that in view of the background and experience of Shri Manoj Kumar Dubey, it
would be in the interest of the Company to appoint him as a Director of the Company. The Board recommends
the resolution for your approval.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, except Shri Manoj Kumar
Dubey, being the appointee himself, is in any way,concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution.

Item No.7

Ministry of Railways, Government Of India vide its order no. 2009/PL/50/13/Pt., dated 11.07.2019 giving
reference to DoPT notification no.22/7/2019-EO(ACC), dated 08.07.2019 appointed Shri Jayasankar M.K.
(DIN: 08523769) as a non-official Independent Director on the board of CONCOR. Accordingly, he was
appointed as Independent Director of the Company by the Board of Directors on 31.07.2019 for a period of three
years ending on 07.07.2022 or until further orders, whichever is earlier. Shri Jayasankar M.K. will not be liable to
retire by rotation under section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

His brief resume, inter-alia, giving nature of expertise in specific functional area are provided elsewhere which
forms part of this notice.

The Board of Directors considers that in view of the background and experience of Shri Jayasankar M.K., it
would be in the interest of the Company to appoint him as an Independent Director of the Company. The Board
recommends the resolution for approval of the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Shri Jayasankar
M.K., being the appointee himself, is in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution.

Item No.8

The Ministry of Railways, vide its order no. 2010/PL/51/1, dated 01.04.2016 had appointed Shri Kamlesh Shivji
Vikamsey, as a non-official part time Directors on the Board of the Company. His tenure had come to an end on
31.03.2019. Now Ministry of Railways, Government Of India vide its order no. 2009/PL/48/1 (Pt.3), dated
11.07.2019 giving reference to DoPT notification no. 22/7/2019-EO(ACC), dated 08.07.2019 has re-appointed
Shri Kamlesh Shivji Vikamsey (DIN: 00059620) as a non-official Independent Director on the board of CONCOR
from the date of completion of his existing tenure on 31.03.2019. Accordingly, he was re-appointed as
Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 01.04.2019 by the Board of Directors on 31.07.2019 for a period of
one year ending on 31.03.2020. Shri Kamlesh Shivji Vikamsey will not be liable to retire by rotation under section
152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

His brief resume, inter-alia, giving nature of expertise in specific functional area are provided elsewhere which
forms part of this notice.

The Board of Directors considers that in view of the background and experience of Shri Kamlesh Shivji
Vikamsey, it would be in the interest of the Company to re-appoint him as an Independent Director of the
Company. The Board recommends the resolution for approval of the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Shri Kamlesh Shivji
Vikamsey, being the appointee himself, is in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution.

Item No.9

The Ministry of Railways, vide its order no. 2010/PL/51/1, dated 01.04.2016 had appointed Shri Sanjeev S.
Shah, as a non-official part time Directors on the Board of the Company. His tenure had come to an end on
31.03.2019. Now Ministry of Railways, Government Of India vide its order no. 2009/PL/48/1 (Pt.3), dated
11.07.2019 giving reference to DoPT notification no. 22/7/2019-EO(ACC) dated 08.07.2019 has re-appointed
Shri Sanjeev S. Shah (DIN: 00323163) as a non-official Independent Director on the board of CONCOR from the
date of completion of his existing tenure on 31.03.2019. Accordingly, he was re-appointed as Independent
Director of the Company w.e.f. 01.04.2019 by the Board of Directors on 31.07.2019 for a period of one year
ending on 31.03.2020. Shri Sanjeev S. Shah will not be liable to retire by rotation under section 152 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013. (6]
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His brief resume, inter-alia, giving nature of expertise in specific functional area are provided elsewhere which
forms part of this notice.

The Board of Directors considers that in view of the background and experience of Shri Sanjeev S. Shah, it
would be in the interest of the Company to re-appoint him as an Independent Director of the Company. The
Board recommends the resolution for approval of the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Shri Sanjeev S.
Shah, being the appointee himself, is in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the

resolution.
By order of Board of
CONTAINER CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
Sd/-
Dated : 31.07.2019 (Harish Chandra)
Place : New Delhi Executive Director (Finance) & Company Secretary
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BRIEF RESUME AND OTHER PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION/
SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ REAPPOINTMENT [REFER POINT (1) OF NOTES TO NOTICE]

Particulars Shri V. Kalyana Rama Shri Sanjay Bajpai Shri Manoj Kumar Dubey
DIN 07201556 07549036 07518387

ualification
aQnd Experience Refer Note 1 Refer Note 2 Refer Note 3
Date of Birth 28.09.1963 03.09.1963 01.05.1970
(Age) (56 Years) (56 Years) (49 Years)
Terms and He was appointed He was appointed Director |He was appointed as
Conditions of Chairman and Managing | in the year 2016 in terms Director (Finance) &
Appointment/ Director in the year of orders of Ministry of CFO in the year 2018

Reappointment

2016 in terms of orders
of Ministry of Railways,
Govt. of India and he is
liable to retire by rotation.

Railways, Govt. of India and

he is liable to retire by
rotation.

in terms of orders of
Ministry of Railways,
Govt. of India and he is
liable to retire by

Relationship with
other Directors

rotation.
Date of first 03.06.2015 as Director 01.07.2016 31.10.2018
Appointment to (Projects & Services)
Board and from 01.10.2016
as Chairman and
Managing Director
Disclosure of Nil Nil Nil

Remuneration Pay Scale of Rs.2,00,000 | Being a Part-Time Pay Scale of Rs.1,80,000
last drawn and -3,70,000 & other Government Director, no -3,40,000 & other
proposed emoluments are as per remuneration is paid by emoluments are as per

Govt./Company policy. the Company. Govt./ Company policy.
Shareholding in | 550 Equity Shares of Nil Nil
the Company Rs.5/- each.
No. of Board 7 out of 7 5outof 7 3 outof 3
Meetings
attended during
the year
Directorship of | 1. Fresh & Healthy Nil Nil
other Board Enterprises Ltd;

2. CONCOR Air Limited;

and
3. SIDCUL CONCOR
Infra Co. Limited.
Membership/ Nil Nil Nil
Chairmanship of
Committees of
other Board (s)
[8]
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BRIEF RESUME AND OTHER PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION/
SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ REAPPOINTMENT [REFER POINT (1) OF NOTES TO NOTICE]

Particulars Shri Jayasankar M.K. Shri Kamlesh S. Vikamsey  Shri Sanjeev S. Shah
DIN 08523769 00059620 00323163

ualification
aQnd Experience Refer Note 4 Refer Note 5 Refer Note 6
Date of Birth 30.05.1967 06.12.1960 08.06.1960
(Age) (52 Years) (58 years) (59 years)
Terms and He was appointed as non- | He was appointed as non- |He was appointed as
Conditions of official Independent official Independent Director |non-official Independent
Appointment/ Director in terms of orders | in terms of orders of Director in terms of

Reappointment | of Ministry of Railways,
Gouvt. of India and he is

not liable to retire by

Ministry of Railways, Govt.
of India and he is not liable
to retire by rotation.

orders of Ministry of
Railways, Govt. of India
and he is not liable to

rotation. retire by rotation.
Date of first 30.07.2019 05.04.2016 05.04.2016
Appointment to
Board
Disclosure of Nil Nil Nil
Relationship with

other Directors

Remuneration Being a Non-Official Being a Non-Official Being a Non-Official

last drawn and Independent Director, no | Independent Director, no | Independent Director,

proposed remuneration is paid by remuneration is paid by no remuneration is paid
the company, except the company, except by the company, except
sitting fee per meeting. sitting fee per meeting. sitting fee per meeting.

Shareholding in | Nil Nil Nil

the Company

No. of Board N/A 7 out of 7 6 out of 7

Meetings

attended during

the year

1. Navneet Education Ltd.;
2. Man Infraconstruction Ltd.;
3. Tribhovandas Bhimji Zaveri Ltd.;
4. Palace Solar Energy Pvt. Ltd.;
5. Electrotherm Renewables
Pvt. Ltd.;
6. Apcotex Industries Ltd.;
7. GIC Housing Finance Ltd.;
8. PTC India Financial Services

1. Morgan Fincons
Pvt. Ltd.; and

Directorship of Nil
other Board

2. Mapara Holdings
Pvt. Ltd.

Ltd. and
9. Waacox Energy Pvt. Ltd.
Membership/ Nil Refer Note 7 Nil
Chairmanship of
Committees of
other Board (s)
[9]
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Note 1: Shri V. Kalyana Rama is a Mechanical Engineer with ICWAI (Inter). He is an Indian Railway Traffic
Service (IRTS) officer of 1987 batch. He had worked in BHPV & BHEL before joining Indian Railways. Prior to
joining Board of Directors of CONCOR as Director (Projects & Services), he held various assignments such as
Executive Director, Chief General Manager in CONCOR. He had held various challenging assignments in his
career with Indian Railways. Professionally trained in Railways and multi modal transport logistics and was
instrumental in development of container depots in South Central and Southern regions of CONCOR. He has
been involved in all the developmental planning and operational activities of EXIM and Domestic cargo at the
various dry port terminals of CONCOR. He was also Chief Executive Officer, M/s Infinite Logistics Solutions
Private Limited now M/s TCI CONCOR Multimodal Solutions Private Limited, a Joint Venture of CONCOR. He
has wide experience in the field of Engineering, System design, Railway & multi modal logistics operations and
Project planning and commissioning.

Note 2: Shri Sanjay Bajpai is Executive Director/Traffic (Co-ordination), Railway Board and is a Post-Graduate
in Economics from Allahabad University. He is an officer of the Indian Railway Traffic Service (IRTS) 1991 batch,
joined Indian Railways in 1992. He has had vast and varied experience in Railway Operations, Commercial
working, General Administration. He was also Deputy GM/G and Secretary/GM/Northern Railway as well as
Chief Passenger Transport Manager on Northern Railway. He joined as Executive Director Traffic Co-ordination
on 1st June, 2016. He has held the key charges of passenger operations, freight operations and general
administration on Zonal Railways.

Note 3: Shri Manoj K. Dubey has done under graduation and post-graduation from the Hindu College of the
University of Delhi. Before clearing Civil Service and joining IRAS of 1993 batch, he worked with UTI for two
years. He has done MBA from Indian School of Mines, Dhanbad and was conferred the overall Silver Medal for
the batch 2011-13 from the then President of India for topping the batch. A recipient of National Award for
outstanding service at Minister of Railways level in the year 2011 and he has paved the path in Indian Railways in
ushering - payment of salaries almost 100% through Bank, e-Tendering, e-Auction, payment of the contractor/
supplier through RTGS/NEFT, computerization of bill passing / pension settlement and PF etc. Attained several
milestones in systems improvement and contributing phenomenally in operations, incentives and staff posting
policy. He has vast experience of Train Operation Management and Freight Loading Mechanism having worked
as Head of Finance of three major loading divisions of Indian Railway viz., Dhanbad, Asansol and Mughalsarai
for nearly fifteen years. Being entrusted as Director/Executive Director in PPP Directorate and Finance
Commercial Directorate in Railway Board for last five years, Shri Dubey has been associated in many
prestigious projects like setting up of Loco Factories through PPP/FDI for Indian Railways at Madhepura and
Mahrora; has been functioning pivotally in High Speed Rail of Indian Railways, and that in Dedicated Freight
Corridor of Railways as key financial advisor to Infrastructure Directorate. He has also developed expertise in
Tariff structuring of freight and passenger trains as well as for catering and tourism contracts at strategic level.
He has the experience of drafting many Cabinet Notes and has vast experience of International Competitive
Bidding for Mega Projects. Shri Dubey was in the Board of Directors of a Joint Venture Company of General
Electricals of USA and IR, Alstom of France and IR, and a Joint Venture Company of NMDC, SAIL and Indian
Railways.

Note 4: Shri Jayasankar M. K. is a member of Tirur Bar association which is affiliated to Bar council of Kerala,
having long standing of more than 27 years in Sessions Court, Asst. Sessions Courtand Sub Court, Judicial First
Class Magistrate Court, Munsiff Court, M.A. C. T., Family Court, Court of Executive Magistrate and Consumer
Redressal Forum, etc.

His area of specialization is civil, criminal, compensation, consumer matters and family matters. Presently, he is
on the penal of Oriental Insurance Co. Ltd., National Insurance Co. Ltd. and Sree Gokulam Chits and Finance (p)
Ltd. He has done B. Com. from MES College, Ponnani, University of Calicutin 1988 and LLB from VB College of
Law, Uduppi, Mangalore University in 1992.

Note 5: Shri Kamlesh Shivji Vikamsey is a Senior Partner of Khimji Kunverji & Co., Chartered Accountants since
1982, a firm registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India & in practice since 1936, having over
80 years of experience in the areas of Auditing, Taxation, Corporate & Personal Advisory Services, Business &
Management Consulting Services, Due diligence, Valuations, Inspections, Investigations, etc.

Presently he is appointed Chairperson of Audit Committee of United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF), New
York, USA; as member of Audit Committee of World Meteorological Organization (WMO), Geneva, Switzerland;
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as member of Independent Management Advisory Committee (IMAC) of International Telecommunication
Union (ITU), Geneva, Switzerland; as member of National Advisory Board of Manav Sadhan Vikas Sanstha;
also on the Board of several Listed Public & Private Limited Companies as Independent Director and Chairman
of Audit Committee and trustee and Treasurer, Global Vipassana Foundation, an internationally renowned Trust
which has constructed Global Pagoda in Mumbai.

In the Past he has been President, The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl); President, The
Confederation of Asian and Pacific Accountants (CAPA); Board Member, International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC); Member & Chairperson of Audit Advisory Committee of United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP), New York; Member, Steering Committee of United Nations for Comprehensive Review of
Governance and Oversight within the United Nations, and its funds, programme and specialized agencies;
Member, Appellate Authority constituted under section 22A of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

Note 6: Shri Sanjeev S. Shah is Science Graduate & Fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl). He is also qualified as CFE (Certified Fraud Examiner) from ACFE, USA and CFrA (Certified
Forensic & Audit Analyst) from CFPI, USA. He is a Proprietor to “Shah Sanjeev & Associates, Chartered
Accountants”, Vadodara.

Mr. Shah is a Practicing Chartered Accountant having over 27 years of experience in areas of Investment
Banking viz. Mergers & Acquisitions, Due Diligence, Business Valuation & Acquisition strategies, Structured
Finance and Forensic Audit & Information Security. He had presented Research Papers at various international
forums including Il World Summit on Information Society held at Bilbao, Spain organized by United Nations,
World Council for Corporate Governance at London and on “Smart Phone and Identity Theft” published in
“INFORMANT” magazine by National White Collar Crime Center (www.nw3c.org) established by US
enforcement agencies viz. FBI, Homeland Security, DOJ USA.

Mr. Sanjeev Shah had served as SEBI nominated Independent Director (ID) at Vadodara Stock Exchange & also
as ID with some other PSUs and Public Companies, Arbitrator with Vadodara Stock Exchange, Chairman of
Baroda Branch of ICAI, Hon. Member of National White Collar Crime Research Consortium, sponsored by FBI,
USA, Member of Regional Advisory Committee of Central Excise & Customs, Vadodara Range, Govt of India.
Presently he is a member of Managing Committee of Federation of Gujarat Industries (FGI), Vadodara.

Note 7:

1. Navneet Education Limited: Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
2. Man Infraconstruction Limited: Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

3. Tribhovandas Bhimji Zaveri Limited: Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

4. Palace Solar Energy Private Limited: Member of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and CSR Committee.

5.  Apcotex Industries Limited: Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

6. GIC Housing Finance Limited: Member of Audit Committee.

7. PTC India Financial Services Limited: Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of Information
Technology Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee,
Risk Management Committee and Group of Directors for Capital Raising.

8. Waacox Energy Private Limited: Member of Audit Committee

INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, substituted by the Companies (Management and
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as amended
from time to time, the Company is pleased to provide e-voting facility to the members to cast their votes
electronically on all resolutions set forth in the Notice convening the 31* Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be

[11]
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held on 27" August, 2019. The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) to provide e-voting facility.

The e-voting facility is available at the link : https://www.evoting.nsdl.com
The e-voting facility will be available during the following voting period:

Commencement of e-voting End of e-voting

23.08.2019 at 09.00 A.M. IST 26.08.2019 at 05.00 P.M. IST

Please read the following instructions for e-voting before exercising your vote.
The procedure to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned

below:

Step 1: Login to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.
Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available

under'Sharcaholders' caction
UG CT—OoOarCHoOiGCTrs—SCCuon:

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code
as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-into NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares in demat 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is
IN300***12******.
b) For Members who hold shares in demat 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary [D ig 12%***xsxiie

then your user ID ig 1 2******kriries

c) For Members holding shares in Physical EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Form. registered with the Company

For example if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***

[12]
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5. Your password details are given below:

a) Ifyou are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

b) Ifyouare using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password'
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password'’, you need to enter the
'initial password' and the system will force you to change your password.

c) Howtoretrieve your'initial password'?

(i) Ifyouremail ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your 'initial password'
is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your
mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your
'User ID' and your 'initial password'.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, your 'initial password' is communicated to you on your
registered postal address.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your
name and your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the
e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check
box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. Afteryou click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting.
Then, click onActive Voting Cycles.

2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

3. Select “EVEN" of Company for which you wish to cast your vote.

4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

8. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.
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General Guidelines for shareholders

1 Corporate and Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer by e-mail to csrakeshkumar@gmail.com and pragnyap@gmail.com with a copy
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. ltis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care
to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. Incase you have any queries, you may refer to the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-
voting manual available at www.evoting.nsdl.com under help section or may contact Ms. Pallavi
Mhatre (Assistant Manager), NSDL, 4th Floor, 'A" Wing, Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400013, Email: evoting@nsdl.co.in, Tel: 1800 222
990/91 2224994200/ 9122 24994545.

General Instructions:

a. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which
may be used for sending future communication(s).

b. The e-voting period commences on 23.08.2019 (09.00 A.M. IST) and ends on 26.08.2019
(05.00 P.M. IST). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 20.08.2019 (end of the day),
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently.

c. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a shareholder of the Company
after dispatch of notice of AGM and holds shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 20.08.2019, may
obtain the login ID and password by sending a request to NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in or RTA at
concor@beetalfinancial.com. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-
voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote.

d. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of the voting at AGM, count the votes cast
at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at
least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company. The Scrutinizer shall submit a
consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, not later than
forty eight hours after the conclusion of the AGM to the Chairman of the Company. The
Chairman, or any other person authorized by the Chairman, shall declare the result of voting
forthwith.

e. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions proposed in the notice shall be
deemed to be passed on the date of the meetingi.e. 27.08.2019.

f.  The Result, along with the Scrutinizer's Report will be placed on the Company's website
www.concorindia.com and on the website of NSDL after the results are declared by the
Chairman or any person authorized by the Chairman and the same shall be communicated to
the Stock Exchanges where the equity shares of Company are listed.
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10 YEARS FINANCIAL/PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE (YEAR WISE DATA)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE {Rs. In Crore}
8.NO | PARTICULARS oope-10 | 200011 | pedda2 | 2e9243 | 201204 | 201445 | 2045416 [ #0647 | 20178 | 2ME8-15
! ;uﬂtglﬂllr;?ome (Including other 388673 | 403211 | a7vT4a | 474338 | 535627 | 524444 | 623021 | 580536 | BAGRFS | TNEAL
- Dperating Incoma - 370563 | 383485 | 406095 | 440615 | 498455 | 550523 | 502173 | 581612 | B1567.16 | 63410
- Cther Income 19005 | 1976 | 31ES4} 3ar2e | 3TaTE | A5G0 | DiFdb | 28824 | 25D 33473 |
2 E?;ﬂ”;:ét:ijmmaw 27aacd | 2eza60 | 303735 | 335650 | 248260 | 420730 | 4.5B336 | A304AT | 468136 | 510184
3| Operating Margin {1-2) 144160 | 120351 | 133004 | 136479 | 147358 | 166714 | 165586 | 150110 | 177835 | 2v4.20
# | Interest Expenges - - - - - 0.15 3168 0.8 0.7
& | Depreciation 13540 | 14523 | 1sadob qF2T1l 18033 | FRig0 | MFTE | FG182 | 39265 | 42458
6 | Profit bafore Tax 1 065D | 105828 | 118165 | 129200 | 1284.25 | 129445 | 130785 | 114571 | 138565 | 1,64E.8R
T | Profit after Tax 7eEE | e7eps | grrAe| 4003 | 9EATE [ 1.M4TES | @R0EZ | 83530 | 10dd<E | 12154
8 | Cther Comprahensive [NCome - - - - 1.24 [3.94) £70 (1.86}
& | Tatal Comprehensive noome TEGED | B75.95 g77 e | manna | oaams | 10erS55 | gseas | BO2NG | 103006 ] 121353
10 | Dividend declared for the year 13188 | 20148 | 2ia4rv] zevav) 23eEr | 26127 | 26321 | 36906 | METE | 52095
11| Profit & Loss Account Balance 374747 | 420129 | 484212 | 542262 | 602053 | 657415 | 720543 | 750730 | BO4ZV/ | BOINID
12 1 General Reserve 45685 | S4B54 | B33 | 7IEI3 | TEIED | 26AST | 94526 | HOA105 | 108722 | 114783
1% | Shorl Term Warking Gapital Loan - - - - - -| ronES
i4 | Reserves & Surplus (11412 4ONGAYT | 4MTES | SAYE4S | 815115 | 67034 | 748072 | 815060 | f62a41 | 9.129.90 10.083.22
15 | Fined Assets (Gross Block] 258886 | 328615 | 350378 { 392443 | 446063 | 519077 |»014r34 | 405762 | 473227 | SF0AMT
|16 Sundry Dehters 1764 17.27 1959 25.74 a7.08 3657 4876 4248 H0.40 £R.36
17 | Foreign Exchange Eamings - - - - - - - -
18 | Share Capmtal wogg | 1290 | 1208 | 17e0& | 18407 | 1Ha87 | 19487 | 19497 | 24309 ) 30465
19 | Capital Employad 410033 | 496242 | 555711 | s0vazz | oAz | ceeres | 71445 | TETTTE | B167.90 | 913052
20 | Gavernment hvestrment gz.on &z.40 B2.00 azo0 ) 1204n | 12048 [ 1073 [ 10884 13555 | 16654
21| Met Worth [34+15} 233540 | o7t | 560643 | 628113 | 696531 | 7635.60 | #4666 | BeZ138 | 0ATAT] 10,36THF
22 | Profit Before Tax to Capital 125 21 024 n.zo .20 014 018 Q.45 GA7 18
Employed (B+18}
23 | Operating Margin to Capital 024 0,24 0.2a 0.23 0.3 0.25 0,23 .20 022 0,23
Employed (3+18)
24 | Proftt afier Tax to Share £.05 G.74 .75 .23 5415 537 4.88 428 4.20 540
Capital [7+18}
25 | Expenditure la Income [2+1) 0T .70 {84 0.7 .72 072 073 Q.74 07 71
26 | Humber of Employees 1,124 1,147 1,164 1,158 1334 1,335 1332 1474 1472 1484 |
27 | Income per Employes {1+26) 344 352 376 .56 4.05 4.45 488 384 418 493
28 | Fereign Excnange Earnings Per - - - - -
Employes {17+26)
29 Current Ratio ™™ 4.05 558 573 5.56 519 4.7 193 5,92 247 237
30 | Shest Term DebtEquity Ratie (13+21) - - - - - - oa
31 | Imvestments Pa054 | 24356 | Z9ain| 4@ri6| 86403 | 115475 | 1A5TEE | 13TIVI | 138902 | 140290
PHYSICAL PERFORMANGCE (TEUs)®
1} Inermaticnal Handling 1592277 | 2018551 | 2136000 | 2152034 | 2361420 | 2621385 | 247IH6E ! 2641895 | ap01ade | 3245253
2 | Domestic Handling SIRtiTh | G42746 | 4SBA11| 433652 | BOTIEI | GBUAT1 | 44317F | MBOSIG| 5RI99S2 5B4150 |
3| Tatal [1+2) 2421247 | 2562257 | 2604311| 2585596 | 2068812 | 3110756 | 2924045 | 3102211 | 3531900 | 32949

#Twanly Feat equivalant unils,

*Figurea for the FY 2017-16 & 2018-17
*as par e IND AS, Nat block of Fieed
marrent Ratic Fom the Fy 201516 oz

have baan recasled on aceoent of imgact of Ind AS 113
Aecats as on ihe date of Iansdicn i.e. 01 04 2015 has been considerad bs Gross Blodk angd Assels re-dagsifed.
4 derived as pif Ind-A5 Bnd for prewvious periods @ per Qd GAAF.
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Shri V. Kalyana Rama Is the youngest to become Chairman & Maraging Director of
Container Corporation of lndia Ltd. (CONCOR), a Navratna PSU under hMinistry of
Railways. He is a Mechanical Engineer with ICWAI {Inter}, Ha iz an Indian Railway
Traffic Service {IRTS) officer of 1287 batch. He had worked in BHPY & BHEL before
joining ndian Railways. Prior to joining Board of Directors of CONCOR as Director
(Projects & Services), he held various assignments such as Executive Director, Chief
fseneral Manager in CONCOR. He had held various challenging assignments in his
career with [ndian Railways. He has been professionally trained in Railways and mutti
modal transport logistics, He was instrumental in development of container depols in
South Central and Southern regions of CONCOR. He has been involved in all the
developmental planning and operational activities of EXIM and Domestic carge al the
various dry port terminals of CONCOR. He was also Chief Exacutive Officer, Mis
infinile Logistice Solutions Private Limited now Mis TC CONCOR  Multimadal
Solutions Private Limited, & Joint Venture of CONCOR. He has wide experience in the
fisld of Engineering, System design, Raitvay & mulli modal |ogistics operations and
Project planning and commissioning.

Diractor
iDomestic Division}

Shri Pradip Kumar Agrawal has taken over the charge of Director (Domestic Division)
from st July, 2018, He belongs to Indian Raibway Traffic Service, He has worked for
Indian Rathvays for more than 17 years on various imponant assignments, both at
Divisional and Fonal Headguarter leve| covering operations, commercial, marketing
and safety of Indian Railways. He joined Container Corporation of india Lid.
[CONCOR) in the year 2006 as GGM {OpsjWestern Region, thereafter, worked as
Chief General Manager, Weslern Region for four years, During his tanure, he has
successfully managed Container Train Operalions for the Region which includes MM
Fart and various CFSs and |CDs in the Region. He has also worked as Chief Exaculive
Officer for APM Terminals, Mumbai (STIPL) for five years befare joining as Director
{Domestic Division}, COMNCOR,

Under his leadership, Domestic Division of CONCOR hag shown significant growth since
July, 20186, The ariginaiing Domestic volurme grew by 17% in 2017-18 and by 7.42% in
20{#-19. Thers has been an averall improverment in the revenue per TELU, operating
margin and profitability. Various new initiatives have also been taken by bringing new
segment of traffic, introducing Corporate custormers, bringing Business Associates Policy,
ele. which has been able to attract more market share. The other new initiatives include
starting of Coastal Services and Distribution Lagistics in CONCOR.

Director
{Intl. Marketing &
Operations)

Shri Sanjay Swarup has done his B.E. {Hons.} — Electronics and Communication
Engineering from IIT Reorkes and PGDM {Public Policy and Maragement) from [k
Bangalore. He belongs to 1950 Batch of Indian Raihway Trafiic Service {IRTS). His 31
year career spans a range of assignments in Public Sector and Government. He started
His career in Bharat Heavy Electricals Ltd. (BHEL] and worked thers kor more than 4
years. Thereafter, he has worked with Indian Railways in varipus areas like Cperalions,
Commercial, Safety and Information Technelogy functions. He has worked in Container
Corporation of India Ltd, (CONCOR] in various capacites in Oparations and
Managernent af Dry Parts, International Marketing, Cammercial and Operations at Pan
India laval, He has rich experiance in the design of Dry Ports and Multi Madal Logistics
Parks {MMLPs). He is deeply involved in the Strategic Planning function of the
Company. He has besn lrained at Maxwell Schocl of Syracuse LIniversity {LISA),
Anbwerp Port, Belgium and at several Instites in India.  Shri Sanjay Swarup has
presanted number of papers in leading National and International conferences in the
areas of Multi Madal Logistics, Dry Ports and Supply Chain Managemeni. He is [ife
member of Chartersd Institute of Logistics and Transpert {CILT), Asian Institute of
Transport Development {AITD}, Centre for Transportation Research and Managemant
{CTRAM) andAll India Management Association (AIMA).
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Director
(Projects & Servicas)

Shiri Rahul Mithal is from the Indian Railways Service of Mechanical Engineers (SCRA
1985 Batch). He has had a long stint of more than 20 years in varicus key positions in
Indian Railways. He has a wide exposure of various aspects of Design and
Maintenance of Rofiing Stock and Handiing Eguipment and has held various key
assignments of Operations and Maintenance inthe Railways.

In the last § years in CONCOR, he has been closely associzted with the Ptanning,
Executian and Monitoring of various mega Projects and has played a key role in
drafting the Strategic Plan: Vision 2020 of the Company, He also holds the additional
gualificatian of MBA (Finance} from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of Managemeant Studies,
Mumbai and is a Fellow of the Institution of Mechanical Engingers (LUK} and a
Chartered Engineer, registerad with the Enginsering Council {UK).

Cirector
(Finance} & CFO

Shri Manoj Kumar Dubey took over as Diractor (Finance} & CFO, CONCOR we f.
31.10.2018. He has done under graduation and post-graduation from the Hindu
Lollege of the University of Delhi. Before clearing Civil Servite in very first atternpt and
joining iIRAS of 1993 batch, he worked with UT! for two years in blazing the brail in the
arena of educating and assimilating rural masses into various luerative schemas of
Mutual Funds. He has done MBA from Indian School of Mines, Dhanbad and was
conferred the overall Silvar Madal for the bateh 20411-13 from the then President of
India for topping the batch,

Arecipient of Mational Award for outstanding service at Minister of Raitways levelin the
year 2011 and he has paved the path in Indian Railways in ushering - payment of
salaries almost 100% through Bank, e-Tendeting, e-Auction, payment of the
conhleaclor! supplier through RTGSINEFT, computerization of bill passing / pension
sefflenent and PF etc. Altained several milestones in systems improvement and
eontributing phenomenaily in operations, incentives and staff posting policy, He has
vasl gxperience of Train Oparation Mahagetment and Freight Loading Mechanism
having worked as Head of Finance of three major loading divisions of Indian Railway
wiz,, Dhanbad, Asansol and Mughalsarai for nearly fifteen years.

Being enlrusted as Director/Executive Director in PPP Direclorate and Finance
Commercial Directorate in Railway Board for last five years, Shi Dubey has been
associated in many prestigious projects like setting up of Loco Factories Lhrough
PEPFDI for Indian Railways &t Madhepura and Mahrora; has been functioning
pivatally in High Speed Rail of Indian Railways, and that in Dedicated Freight Gorridar
of Railways as key financial advisor to Infrastructure Directorate. He has alse
developed expertise in Tarf structuring of freight and passenger trains a5 weli as for
catermy and tourism contracts at strategic Jevel. He has the experience of drafling
rmany Cabinet Motes and bas vast expetience of lmtemational Competitive Ridding for
Mega Projects. Shri Dubey was in the Board of Direstors of a Joinl Venturs Campany of
General Electricals of USA and |R, Alstom of France and IR, and a Jeint Venture
Company of HMDC, SAIL and Indian Railways.

Apart fram excelling in professional responsibilities, he has bean equally active in the
field of Promaotion and Administration of Sports as well as Indian Classical Dance and
Music. He has been the Manager Government Ohiserver in many an Overseas Slobal
Tournament.
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Directar

Shri Sanjay Bajpai, Executive DirectorTraffic {Co-ordination), Railway Board, an
afficer of the Indian Railway Traflic Service 1291 batch, joined Indian Railways in 1992
He is 3 Past-~Graduste in Economics from Allahatyad Universily, He has had vast and
varied experience in Railway Operations, Commercial working, General
Admimistralion. He was also Deputy GM/G and SecretaryiGM/Northern Railway as
well as Chief Pasasenger Transport Manager on Morthern Railway. He janed as
Executive Director Traffic Co-ordination on 1st June, 2016. He has held the key
charges of passenger operalions, freight aperations and general administration on
Zonal Railways,

Director

Shri Mana] Kumar Srivastava, Execulive CHrector/ Trafhic Transportation {Freght),
Railway Board, is an officer of the Indizn Railway Traffic Service of 1988 katch. He isa
Post-Graduate in Geology and has vast experience in Railway Operations,
Commercial working and General Administration. He has worked al various Senior
posilions in the Indian Raitways which include Dy, SOMIFOIS, Dy, COMGoods, Sr,
DOM =t Moradabad, Director {Co-ord), CFTM at Morthern Railway and EDVPF and is
presently posted as Executive Director/Trathe Transportation (Freight), Railway Board,
He has held the key charges of passenger oparations, freight operations and gereral
administraticn on Zonal Railways.

Chirectar

Ms. Vanita Seth, a familiar name in the Womean Rights oriented work frart, hails from
Jodhpur, Rajasthan. An active member of Bharatiya Janata Party, she is the Former
Wamen President of BEJP Women Wing, Rajasthan, Her leadership qualities were
Ulilized in the stale for the activities like ‘Beti Bachao Beti Padhao' movement. She is a
member of a number of organizalions like Social Welfare Board of India, Telephena
Advisory Board and Devasthan Vibhag, Gowt. of Rajasthan. Some of her key roles
include providing telepheone and internet conneclion in the remole areas of Rajasthan
and also the renovation of many temples in Rajasthan.

The holder of a Masters Degree in Palitical Science as well as in Rajasthani, she had
presenled her thesis for Masters in Rajasthani.

An avid reader, she has herself conducted more than six mock parliaments in various
girls enlleges across the state, The potential of hers and the metile hava been pravenin
her fight against social injustics for women and fight for women rights. She iz into full-
fledged sacial services from last 15 years and has created a niche when it cames 1o
Women empowesnment inrural areas.

She has also cleared the Prelims of RAS and is waiting for the signature role to mark
her prasence in the figlds of social and political welfare ofwomen.
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Dvrector

Shri Loy Verma ig an officer of the Indian Administrative Service of the 1878 batch, U.P
LCadre with gver 37 years expetience, including 3 years as Secretary to Government of
India. He did M.A. in Political Science from University of Luckrow and M.A_ in Rural
Development from University of Reading, UK. He played a seminal rofe in the
suceessful campaign for eradication of Polio, introduction offree third line treatment for
HIV/AIDS patients and the mainstreaming of accessibility issues for persons with
disabilities in India, Whila handling delfvery of health services, he was sngaged with
issues of financing, personnel, creation of infrastructure and extensive co-oprdination
with mullilateral agencies in the field of public health. While in service, he alzo led the
following delegations:

2013: Chaired the UNAIDS Program Coardination Board in Genava, Switzeriand.
2014: Led Indian delegation to Sydney and Manila with regard to eradication of Malaria
under the Asia Pacific Leaders of the Malaria Alliance, 2014; Leader of the |ndian
dolegation to the first Global Health Security Agenda Commitment Development
Meeting in Helsinki, Finland,

He superannuated onJanuary 31, 2016 as Secretary to Government of India, Departrment
of Empowerment of Persons with Disability, Ministry of Social Justice & Empowarment,

Aryaneya Frasad Mocherla has done M Se Slatistics from Andhra university and also
did MEA Banking and Finance from IGNOU. Acquired professional quaiifications |ike
CANB and CRB from Indian Institute of Banking and Finance and became Fellow
member ofihe same Institute.

He joined Andhra Bank in 1978 as Probationary Officer and worked in various
capacities in various places and further, as General Manager in charge of Mumbai
Zone covering Maharashtra, Gujarat, Goa and Madhya Pradesh. In 2011 Ministry of
Fimance, Govt of India appointed him as Executive Director of Syndicate Bank and he
then relired from Hs service on 20th Nev 2014, He has wide expenence as board
mernber and has besn actively involved in board deliberations. He has headed varous
sub-committees of the board. He presided over the Board meetings in the regular vacaney
of CMD and had driven the Bank to new mikestones of business, At board level, he
ensured good torporate govemance, compliancs b regulatory guidelines and good risk
managemeant practices, At operations level he had overseen all functions of the bank |ika
Flanming, Branch Expansion, HR, Recovery Management. Balance shest, Audit and
Accounts, Inspection and Credit, etc. He was an active member of many functiona
commitiess of the bank, inchuding ALCO, Risk Mamagement Committes, [mvestment
commiktes, atc. He is intetesled in banking related subjects and contributed articles to
tranking journals and BANGON. Pos! retirement he was appointed as a member of
Interview Committee firr selection fortop managemenl cadre of a PSR,

3hn Deepak Shetty, Indapandent Directar, CONCOR, was a seniar career civil servant in the
Ggvernment of India. He was a direct recruit member of lha 1280 hatch of he Indian Ravenug
Servige {Custorns and Cantral Excize). Ha had multiple official assighments in his carger
spanning 36-1/4 years. In his first cantral deputation stint, he was the Additiona! Texile
Commissicnerin the offics of the Textila Comimissioner, Govt. of Indiz at Mumbai for 5 1/ 4 years
from 1986 t0 2001, In his second central daputation term, he had served as the Joint Director
Zeneral of Shipping and then on a conlinuum as the Directsr General of Shipping, Govt. of
India, al Mumbai—cumulatively for about & consecutive years from 2011 ko 2016, He was
averlually empanelled and posted a3 the Secretary to the Government of India -the highest
rankin the civit service in 1n:{iJ;

He had suceesshully dealt with and resolved nurmerous international issues, including in
lobkal forum such &s the United Mations, intemational Marilime Organisation, INTERFDL,
nlact Group an Piracy off the Coast of Somalia gic.

He has dch all-reund experdise in marntiime, law enforgement, legal, crists management,
personnel, human resourcs development, transparency, business process enginesring &
autamation matters, inter-alia,

He is a highly decorated civil servant, having bagged numerous awards and commendalions at
the national, ragicnal and international levels, throughaoul his service carcar, liustatively, he is
the recipiant ¢f the Presidential Award of Appreciation Certificate for 2 Spacially Dhstinguished
Record of Service on lhe uecasion of the Republic Day, 2002, Commendation for Meritrious
and Sincere Services Rendared, bestowed on the Intarnational Cusloms Day, 2002 atc, He has
also been honoured by the Hon'ble Mimister for External Affairz, Gavt, of India, Hon'bla Minister
for Marltime and Foreign Affairs, Gowt, of Seychelles, Director (Maritime Seeunity), INTERPOL,
amegngslothers, for his outstanding contributions te multiple global lavel jssues.

R
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Shri Kamlesh Shivii Vikamsay is a Senior Partner of Khimji Kunverji & Co., Chartered
Accauntants since 1982, a firm registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India & in practice since 19386, having over 80 years of expetience in the areas of
Auditing, Taxation, Corparate & Personal Advisory Services, Business & Management
Consulting Sarvices, Due diligence, Valuations, Inspections, Invesligations, etc.

Fresently he is appointed Chairperson of Audit Committee of Linited Nalions Children's
Fund {UNICEF}), Mew York, USA; as member of Audit Committee of World
Metearological Organization (WMO), Geneva, Switzerland; as member of
Independent Management Advisory Commiltze [IMAL) of International
Telecammunication Unien {ITU), Geneva, Swilzerland; as member of Natichal
Advisary Board of Manav Sadhan Vikas Sanstha; also on the Board of several Listed
Public & Privale Limited Companies as independent Dirsctor and Chairman of Audit
Commiltes and trustee and Treasurer, Glabal Vipassana Foundation, an
inlernationally renowned Trust which has constructed Global Pagoda in Mumbai.

In the Past he has been Presidant, The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI}, Presidant, The Confederation of Asian and Pacihc Accountants {CAPAY Board
Mamber, International Federation of Accountants {IFACY, Member & Chairperson of
Audit Advisory Committee of United Matiens Development Programmae {UNDF), New
York; Member, Steenng Committee of Uniled Nations for Comprehensive Review of
Govamance and Crversight wilthin the Unitsd Nations, and its funds, programme and
specialized agencies; Member, Appellate Authority constituted under section 228 of
the Chartered Accountants Act, 1844,

Directar

Shri Sanjeev 5. Shah is Science Graduate & Fellow member of The institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIL He is alse qualified as CFE {Certified Fraud
Exarniner) from ACFE, USA and CFrA(Certifisd Forensic & Audit Analyst) from CFPI, USA.
Heis a Proprieiot to "Shah Sanjsev &Asscaiates, Chartered Accountanis”, Vadodara,

Mr. Shah is a Practicing Chartersd Accountant having over 27 years of experience in
areas of Investment Banking viz. Mergers & Acquisitions, Due Diligence, Businesz
valuation & Acquisition stralegies, Struclured Finance and Farensic Audi &
Information Securily. He had presented Research Papers at varicus international
forums including 1l World Summil on Informalion Society held at Bllbao, Spain
organized by Uniled Hations, World Council for Corporate Govermance al Lorndon and
on “Smart Phone and |dentity Theft” published in “INFORMANT" magazing by National
White Coltar Grime Center {www.riw3c.org} established by US enforcemenlt agencies
viz, FBI, Hameland Security, DOJUSA.

Mr, Sanjeev Shah had served as SEB] nominated Independent Director (1D} at
Vadodara Stock Exchange & also as 10 with some other PSUs and Public Companies,
Arbilrator with Vadodara Stock Exchange, Chairman of Bareda Branch of ICAIL Mon,
Mamber of National White Collar Crme Resesarch Consortium, sponsored by FBI,
USA, Member of Regional Advisory Committee of Central Excise & Customs,
Vadodara Range, Govt of India. Presently he is a member of Managing Commitles of
Federation af Gujarat Industries (FG, Vadadara.

Director

Shri Jayasankar M, K. is a member of Tirur Bar asscciation which is affiliated to Bar
councii of Kerala, having long standing of more than 27 years in Sessions Court, Asst,
Seggions Court and Sub Court, Judicial Firsl Class  Magistrate Court, Munsiff Court,
M.A. G, T., Family Court, Court of Executive Magistrats and Consumer Redressal
Forum, ebe.

Hiz area of spacialization is civil, criminat, compensation, consumer matters and family
matters. Presently, he is on the penal of Qriental Insuranee Co. Lid., Mationat insurance
Co. Ltd. and Sree Gokulam Chits and Finance (p) Ltd, He has done B, Com. from MES
College, Ponnani, University of Calicut in 1988 and LLB from VB College of Law,
Lduppi, Mangalare University in 1852,




LETTER FROM CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Fellow shareholders,

I am writing this letter with a sense of pride by sharing the economic and business outlook and consistent
achievements of your Company on all fronts.

As per report of International Menetary Fund {IMF) global ecanomy grew at 3.6% during the year 2018 whereas
the GDP in India grew at £.8% during 2018-16. In orderto give a boost ko the economic growth, Government has
been addressing the issues through its policies and structural initiatives to achieve sustainable future growth. In
this direction, steps like Make in India, Digital India, Creation of Infrastructure, Sagarmata Project, GST,
recapitalization of banks, IBC, etc. are commendable which will help in overall development,

As you know, it was yet another year of low growth rate of global economy, the geopolitical uncertainties and
environment of trade restrictons among major economies in the world disrupting global trade and commerce.
Due to widening gap in import and export and slow growth of import, logistics services for EXIM trade has
suffered. Inspite of this kind of adverse environment, CONCOR has performed well during the year 2018-19
because ofinnovative steps, dynarmic approach and mostimportantly a committed and dedicated tearn

in the year 2018-19, Indian Railways registered a growth of 5.31% in originating loading of carge, from 1,161.66
milion tonnes in 2017-18 to 1223.29 million tonnes in the current year. The originating containerized cargo
transported by rall increased from 54.31 million tonnes in 201718 to 60.34 million tonres in 2018-19, an
increase of 11.10%. The containers handled at all ports of the country registered & growth of 4.90% from 14,69
million TEUs in 2017-18 to 15.41 mition TEUs in 2018-19. In the challenging scenario faced by the trade,
CONCOR has delivered its best performance during 2018-19. It has handled 3.83 million TEUs and transported
43.50 million tonnes of carge volume by rail in 201 8-1%, an increase of 8.42% and 8.83%, respectively over the
previous year. There was 8.11% and 10.23% growth in the physical volumes of both EXIM and domestic
segments of businesses respectively. During the year, it achieved a gross turnover and net profit of Rs.7,216
crores and Rs. 1,215 crores respectivaly and the net worth of the Company increased to Rs. 10,368 crores from
5.9,374 croresin the previous year. The TEUs handled, gross tumover and net profitfor the year 2018-19 wers
the highest ever achieved by your Company in any year.

The positive business autlook in the lang term for the logistic sector is intact for which your Company is well
geared up and committed. During the year, an amount of around Rs.768 crores was spent toward capital
expenditure mainly on creation of infrastructure in the form of selting up of MMLPs at strategic locations,
precurement of high capacity wagons, containers and other handling equipments. The Company has operated
through ita 83 terminals last year and will be adding another 8-10 in the current ysar with the target to reach 100
in next 2-3 years. The above measures will resuft in business growth through substantial augmentation of
handling capacity, locational advantage, value added services and expesure to other segments of value chain,
The commencement of operations on Dedicated Freight Corridors (DFCs) in future wilf be an added advantage
as the Company is weli geared up through its network of terminals to lap the expected business growth from the
same.

Recently, CONCOR has participated in Freight Advance Scheme of the Indian Railways, in which inftially it has
paid an advance of Rs 3,000 crores, which has insulated it from any rail freight hike during FY 2019-20, till the
advance remains with the Railways. The Company has not anly quickly passedthis benefit of no freight increase
to the custemers, but has alse commilled that charges like handling and warshousing will not be increased for
ane fult year. This has been received well by the customers. In addition to this, the Company has brought in 45
days and 20 days free time, taking away all worrigs of customers, These initiatives are path breaking and right
steps towards ease of doing business, CONCOR is committed to providing best quality services and our ethos is
“Customer Value Creation”. It has always believed in sustainable & responsible growth and has been taking
innavative steps in marketing to mest customer’s expectations towards reffable and cost effective services.

Bue to the challenges of rising competition, particularly from the road sector and PCTOs our endeavour is to
retain market share in containerized rail transportation as well as in creating new business verticals, The
betefits of running double stack trains from Mundra/Pipavav Forts to Khatuwas and vice-versa are corlinuing to
accrle, which has hefped in containing the cost of emply running, enhancing rail co-efficient and made cur



services more competitive.

Your Company has formulated several strategies which include setting up of MMLPs at vantage lacations along
the Dedicated Freight Corridors {DFCs} and major industrial areas, setting up Private Freight Terminals {PFTs)
with road bridging soiutions, venturing internationally, extensive use of information technology, setting up
extended gateway facility, providing various value added services i.e. cross docking, wrapping, labelling,
palietization, bar coding and introducing mobile app etc. As a part of overall strategy of expansion and antry into
new areas of business to complement Company's position as a Multimodal Logistics service provider, it has
forayed into coastal shipping by starting operations in January 2019 at the West Coast. Gaing forward it is
planning 1o add such services at East Coast going upte Bangladesh. It has also entered into Distribution
Logistics business in which, 20 nodes across India have been identified, which will be devaloped in PPP mode
by selecting business partners through open tendefing process. At these Distribution Logistics centres, the
sarvices to operate modern warehouses and to maintain/ manage inventory and distribution of the products, will
be provided. Therefore, your Company is well poised to reap the benefits from the opportunities arising from
GST implementation, commencement of OFC and new business avenues in the field of warshousing, e-
commerce, 3PL/4PL, distribution lagistics, coastal shipping, etc.

Your company believes that economic recovery and increase in the EXIM trade will give boost to the growth
plans. The large number of Industrial Parks, SEZs efc. are being established by State Governments and Forts
which offers your Company an excellent opportunity for serving as logistics partner for the states/industrial
estates through arrangements of mutual benefits, There is tremendous business potential for providing logistics
services in ar cargo, bulk transportation of commodities, Food Supply Chain Management, Distribition
Logistics and Integrated Logistics & Manufacturing Zones {ILMZs) for which effective steps have been taken by
the Company.

The Company is committed for digital transformation to leverage [T capabilities to achieve the compsiitive
arlvantage. It has taken many IT initiatives, which include implementation of s-office, e-payment to conlractors,
Krow Your Conlainer Location {KYCL) providing continuous cargo visibility to the customers through mehile
app., SMS alerls and interactive website,

The Company follows transparent practices in doing its businesses particularly in the areas of Corporate
Gavernance and its Social Responsibilities. This has created an environment of trustand has helpsd in winning
the confidence of the stakehelders. The CSR initialives taken by the Company in the field of education, health,
sanitation, environment, sustainahility and skill development etc. have touched and positively impacted the lives
of many underprivileged people. Going forward, it is now committed to carry out these activities in the
aspirational districts identified by Government of India wilh prime focus on education, health and nutrition.

| would like to place on record my sincere appreciation for Company's Board of Directors and Minisiry of
Railways for their continued guidance and support. | would like to express my gratitude 10 all cur sharsholders,
esteemed custormers, our business associates for having reposed faith in us. My special thanks to the entire
CONCOR team, whose commitrent will take this Institution even to greater heights in times to come.

With best wishes,

Sdi-
{V. Kalyana Ramal
Chairman and Managing Director

Date : 31.07.2019
Flace : New Delhl,
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
The Shareholders

Your directors are pleased to present their report on the business and operations of the Company and the
statermnent of accounts for the financial year ended on 31" March 2018,

FINANCIAL RESULTS: (Rs. in crores)
Particulars o . 2018-19 |  2017.18
Income from operations 5,881.91 6,157 .16
Profit before depreciation & tax (PBDT) 2,13 468 1,778.30
Profit befare tax {(PBT) 1688.88 1,385.65
Provision for tax including prior period tax adjustments 47347 34119
Profit after tax (PAT) 1.215.41 1,044 46
Other Comprehensive Income {-}1.86 5.70
Tedal Comprehensive Income for the period 1,213.55 1,050,186
Appropriations:

Interim Dividend {Current Year) - 233497

Final Dividend {Last Year) 182.79 182.79

Corporate tax on dividend 35.60 £3.08

Transfer to general reserves 121 54 104.90

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 872.62 445,42

Earnings per share (Rs.) 18.95 17.14
DIVIDEND:

As per the guidelines issued by Department of Investment and Public Assel Management (DIPAM) the minimurm
dividend to be paid for the year should be at least 5% of net worth or 30% of profit after tax, whichever is higher.
Taking into consideration the above and other factors, the Board recommended a final dividend of 171%
(Rs.8.53 per equity share of Rs 5/~ each) on the paid up share capital of Rs.304.65 crores. The total dividend,
including Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT} for the year 2018-19 will be Rs.628.01 crores as compared to
Rs.499.23 crores for the FY 2017-18, which is an increase of 25.20% over previous year. As per Dividend
Distribution Pelicy of the company, BDT shall be considered as part of dividend. The dividend, including DDT for
the yaar 2018-19 works out to 51.687% of profit after tax of the Company for the year and is 6.06% of its net worth
asat31.03.2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

The opsrating tumover of your Company registered a growth of 11.77% during the year under review, increasing
from Rs.8,157.16 crores in the previous year to Rs.5,881.941 crores in the current year. Total expenditure
increased by 8.93% from Rs.5,074.10 crores in 2017-18 to Rs.5,527.26 crores in 2618-19. The prafit befors tax
works out to Rs.1,688.88 crores, higher by 21.88% over 2017-18, After making provisions for income tax, tax
adjustments, the net profit stands at Rs.1,215.4 1 crores, which is 16.37% higher than last year. This increase in
Prafit After Tax (PAT] is attributabls to better physical and financial performance during the year. The operating
turnover and PAT during the year 2018-12 are the highest ever achieved in any one year in the history of
CONCOR,

OFERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

The: throughput of your Company increased during the year 2018-185 in comparison to the year 2017-18. The
segment-wise comparison is 35 under:-
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Handling at Terminals {In TEUs} 2018-1% 2017-18 |%age Growth
EXIM 32.45,25% 30,017,948 8.11
Domestic 5,84,160 5,29,952 10.23
Total 38,29,419 35,31,900 8.42

As can be seen, there has been an increase of 8.11% in EXIM and 10.23% in Domestic lhroughput. In terms ot
tonnage carried by rail, the Company carfigd a total tonnage of 43.50 million tans in current fiscal as against
39.87 Millian tons in previous fiscal (2017-18) with an increase of 8.83%. The EXIM throughput, total throughput
and total tonnage (carried by Rail) by CONCOR are the highast ever volumes in the Gompany's history.

During the year, CONCOR has participated in Freight Advance Scheme (FAS) of Indian Railways and has made
an advance freight payment of Rs.3,000 crores to Indian Railways on ihis account. After CONCOR's
participation in FAS, any increase in base freight rates will not be applicable to it during the period the amount
remains in advance with the Railways, however other charges like busy season charge, development
surcharge, any discounts of concessions, shall continue to apply as per soncerned specific ordersd circulars,

CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

During the year, the Company implemented sub-division of one equity share of face value of Rs.10/- each inio
twa equity share of face value of Rs.5/- sach for which approval of shareholders through postal ballot route was
taken. The Board of Directors recommended above sub-division in ils meeting held on 30.04.2018 and after the
approval of shareholders on 12.06.2018, the same was carried out. Resu'tantly, the capital structure of the
Company was changed and the paid up share capital post sub-division stood at Rs 243.72 erores, comprising of
48 74,35 478 equity shares Rs.5/- each from sarlier Rs.243.72 crores consisting of 24,37,17 739 equity shares
of Rs.10/- each. To enable the abave sub-division the Authorized Share Capital of the Company had also
undergane a change from Rs.400 crores comprising of 40 Crores equity shares of Rs 10/~ each to Rs.400
Crores comprising of 80 Crores equity shares of Rs 5/- each. New |SIN allotted for Company's squity shares
having face value of Rs.5/- each is INETT1AC1025.

In addition to the above sub-division in equity shares, in the month of December 2018 issuance of one bonus
equity share for every four equity shares held on record date was recommerided by Board of Directors for which
approval of shareholders through postal ballot route was taken by the Company. After the approval of
sharehalders, the Board of Directors allottsd bonus shares on 07.02,2019 to the shareholders. As a result of this
bonus issue, the paid up share capital of the Cempany increased from Rs.243.72 crores to Rs.304.63 crores
comprising of 60,92,84,348 equity shares of Rs.5/- each.

Thare was no change in the overall percenlage shareholding of Government of India and athers in the Company
during the year 2018-19 and as on 31.03.2019 their shareholding was 54 80% and 45 20%., respectively.

LISTING AND DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES:

CONCOR has only ane class of securily i.e. equity sharas listed with the Stock Exchanges in India. CONCOR's
equity shares are listed with the two bourses namely ESE Limited {(BSE) and National Slock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE). The listing fees of both the stock exchanges have heen paid. To facilitate dematerialization of
shares by its sharehoiders, CONCOR has signed agreements with both the Depositories {NEDL & CDSL). As
per SEB] guidelines, CONCOR's shares have been placed under 'Compulsory Demat Mode'. Out of
60,02,94 348 equity shares of Re.5/- each listed on the Stock Exchanges, 80,92,88,347 equity shares
{99.9992% of the total equity shares) were in demat mode as on 31.03.2019. The market capitalization of the
GCompany was Rs.32,006 crares as on 31.03.2019 {as per closing price on last trading day of the year at MNSE}.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE:

Capital Expenditure of Rs.768.35 crores approx. was incurred during the year mainly on
developmentiexpansion of terminals, acquisition of wagons, handling equipments and [T Infrastructure, ke,

NEW TERMINALS & TERMINAL NETWORK EXPANSION:

During the year, the Company has further strengthened its existing Terminal Network to provide efficient
services lo its customers. The Company has been operating at 83 terminals in tolal as on 31,03.2019, out of
which 75 areits own lerminals (14 purg EXIM, 37 Combined Container, 24 pure Domestic) and it has entered into
8 (eigtt) Strategic tie ups for various [ocations.
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Three facilities were developed in FY 2018-1¢ and their dates of commencement of operations are as under:

¢ CFSBodhjungnagar {Tripura) 1 06-10-2018
¥ MMLP Krishnapatnam {Andhra Pradesh) 1 28-03-2018
*  MMLP Barhi {Haryana) 130-03-2019

Further, atleast 3 (five) new facilities and completion of the balance infrastructure in few of the above facilities is
planned during 2019-20. One Centre for Distribution Logistics has been opened at Chennai during the year.
CONCOR will continue with its plans for aggressive CAPEX programme for further develaopment of new
upcarning terminals,

As a part of averall strategy of expansion and entry into new areas of business to complement CONCOR's
position as a Multimadal Logistics service provider, CONCOR has commenced coastal shipping operations
from 10.01.2019.

HIGH SPEED WAGONS, CONTAINERS AND HANDLING EQUIPMENTS:

In order to strengthen and improve the service level, during the year under review 180 Bogie Low Container
{BLC) wagons and 320 Bagie Low Longer (BLL) wagons were added to the existing fleet of CONCOR owned
wagons, increasing the holding of BLC and BLL wagons to 13,417, During the year, 1,350 numbers of BLO
wagens converted into Bogie Low Container Modified (BLCM) rakes with increasing axle load capacity from
20.3T to 22T. Further, 470 numbers of BLCM wagons have been taken on Lease for the period of 10 years.
Therefare, total wagons (BLC+BLCM+BLL+BFKMN +BYZI) holding, inciuding leased wagons as on 31.03.2019
was 15,498,

During the FY 2018-19, 7,080 twenty feet containers have been inducted in CONCOR's fleet of domestic
containers. Further, 2,093 containers have been off-hired / auctioned during FY 2018-19. As on 31.03.2090
your Company has 25,682 {owned plus leased) containers.

Dring the year 2018-19, 11 numbers of SANY make Reach Stackers (RSTs) and § numbers of TIL make RSTs
have been commissionaed and added to the existing fieet of CONCOR owned RSTs. The cendemnation of 17
nos. of Linde make RSTs, out of 20 RSTs was decided in which 16 nos. RSTs have alrsady been de-
commissioned by respective terminals_As on 31.03.2019, the Company owns 82 RSTs and 16 Gantry cranes.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY:

Your Company continued to make progress in the field of Infarmation Technaology (IT). The VSAT based hybrid
network has been extended and now it covers 82 lecations, The Terminal Management System for Domestic
{DTMS), for EXIM (ETMS}, ERP for Qracie Financial, HR Payrell, Container Repair System, Opsration system
was implemented for the expanded network of terminals and a Data Warehouse Module for commergial
applications on centralized architecture is running smoothly across field locations/Regional Offices and
Corporate Office.

Theweb enabled Customer intarface through a dedicated Web Server is running successfully providing facilities
to the customers. The customer feedback facility system as implemented on the website enables us to
conslantly evaluate our performance and take corrective action on Customear complaints and feedback.

Public Grievance ledging and monitoring system has been deployed on CONCOR's website for Grigvance
Redressal system. This system has been develaper! in ling with the O.M. dated 18.02.2013 of Department of
Administrative Reforms & Public Grievances. The objactive of the system is to reduce time in addressing
grievance, to increass transparency and round the clock access for ledging and monitoring grievance.

The Electronic-filing of documents on the Commercial Systern initially provided at ICD/Tughlakabad have now
been axtended to all EX{M terminals which enable the customers to file their documents electronically from their
own offices and on-line payment mode of NEFT/RTGS has been enabled. As part of business continuity plan,
COMNCOR has established backup site and standby system at primary site for its commercial business critical
gpplications. CONCOR has been re-certified ISO/EC-27001: 2013 certification from STQC IT Certification
Services {Ministry of Communication & Infermation Technology) for establishing an Information Security
Management System (ISMS}.

As an extension of axisting HRMS, employee portal has been introduced. This system facilitates employees to
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access information regarding salary! reimbursements, leave balances, PF statement, view and submit their
APAR online, online submission of Annual Property return, pension details etc. and employee has aption of
viewing of lhe information on the screen and the printout of the same can also be taken for the recard, Onling
payment systems for Corporate Office and all regions are implemented fram Qracle Finan cials,

e-tender system with e-payment facility for sale and EMD electronically, MSE exemptions has also been
introduced. Recruitment on CONCOR's website is integrated with online payment gateway for collection of fees,
CONCOR has implemented reverse auction and has re-designed its Corporate website to the responsive
webszite,

The e-Samarth application for Online Vigilance Clearances to handle bulk NGC requesl creation and approval
and workflow driven system has been evolved. This has increased transparency and drastically reduced the
total time of according NOG for various purposes. Similarly, e-Voting was successfully done for CONCOR
shareholders and file tracking system was implemented at Corporate office of CONCOR. Document
Management Systermn for Company Secretary Module, Reimbursement Bills, e-meeting app for conducting
paperiess Board and Committee meetings of CONCOR and its Subsidiaries have been implemented.

CONCOR has launched its mobile app for disseminating the information (public tariff, rail tariff, track & trace,
Company directory ete.) for its stakeholders and has taunched mobile app for Exim e-filing {covering reports &
queries] for its stakeholders,

CONCOR has implemented:

(i) E-office replacing the physical files wilh electronic files as a step towards office automation and paperless
warking.

(i} E-contractor billing for online submission of invoices by contractars thraugh their digital signature and
onling paymentby CONCOR,

(i} Know Your Container Location (KYCL) for online track and trace of container for its customers through
mobile app, chatbot, etc,

STANDARDISATION! CERTIFICATIONS:

CONCOR continues to enjoy IS0 9001:2015 certification and as on 31.03.2018, 70 Nos. of Terminals (including
Corporate Office and 8 Nos. Regional Offices) were ISO 2001:2015 certified. It is an illustration of the total
commitment of your Company towards Quality Management System. Cuality Policy clearly provides faor
ensuring complete customer convenience & satisfaction and value for money through continual improvement of
systern and processes. The Quality Policy has been prominently displayed at all locations of CONCOR. Safety
Slogans are displayed at prominent locations at various terminals of CONCOR. IS0 Certification iz available for
most of the units of the Company. Disaster Management System has been hosted on CONCOR website.
Further, in its endeavor to maintain high standards of quality, your Company has been taking various steps,
some of which are as follows:

» Conducting periodical Management Review Meetings, wherein various actions were taken with regard to
Disaster Management, Safety Norms and Quality Standards.

Quality Audits were undertaken from time to time by Quality Auditors, who have besn trained internally for
this purpose. Special emphasis was made on "Swachh Bharat" campaign in physical cleanliness of the
workstation & other places so as to have a positive and vibrant synergy of work envirohment and
cleanliness.

Annual Surveillance Audit was undertaken by an independent agency for a nurmber of units.

The process of migration from SO 9001:2008 to 150 9001:2015 has been suscessfully completed during
2018-19.

»  Successfulimplementation of e-Cffice has been done on pan India basis during the financial year.
JOINTVENTURES {JVs)/ STRATEGIC ALLIANCES:

Your Company continued to place emphasis on providing total logistics and transport solutions to its customers
by exploring the possibilities of expanding the presence of the Company in all segrments of Logistics value chain
in the EXIM as well as Domestic segments. Strategic aliances firmed up, both for optimal utilization of
infrastruciure as well as expansion into other segments of the value chain for effectively achieving the goals.

o
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The company has several joint ventures, whose performance are given in the financial statement. The
particulars of J\Ws which are also subsidiaries are as under:

SIDCUL CONCOR Infra Company Lid. (SCICL), a Joint Venture Company (JVC) with shareholding of 74% and
26% of Container Corparation of India Limited {CONCOR) and State Infrastructure & industrial Development
Corporation of Uttarakhand Ltd. {SHDCUL) respectively has developed a Multimodal Logistic Park {(MMLP} at
Pantnagar located approx. 300 mts from Rudrapur-Haldwani State Highway and approx. ohe km. from the NH-
87. SCICLis doing operations in both the streami.e. EXIM and Domestic.

During FY 2018-19, SCICL handled 364 rakes. The containers handiad at MMLP, Pantnagar for the said period
were 29,049 TEUs and it has also handled NMG Rakes at its terminal, Its revenue from business operations far
the said period was Rs.8.51 crores which was Rs.6.76 crores in FY 201718, reflecting the growth of 25.83%
over previous year. The JVC is expected to emerge as a major logfstics service provider for rail logistics for the
rapidly industrializing State of Uttarakhand.

Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited {PLIL} is a JVC of CONCOR and Pumjab State Container and
Warehousing Corporation Limited (CONWARE). This Company has developed a MMLP in the State of Punjab
facilitating trade and industry of the State and putting therm on Intemational map.

During the year, PLIL achieved turnover of Rs.20.24 crores which is almost double than what was achieved
during the previous financial year. The TEUs handled this year has been 20,178 as compared to 11,790 in 2017-
18. The inward movement of TEUs was 17,254 which was 50% higher than the previous year. The company is
venturing into new businesses, viz., warehousing of grains, parking of vehicles, etc. SILOS project is also being
planned which is likely to generate a significant portion of the revenus in future.

The above two Companies .. SCICL & PLIL are also subsidiaries of your Company as it is holding majority of
sharesinthese companies,

While the existing Joint Ventures continued to perform to their full potentiat contributing to the growth of the core
business of CONCOR, following new strategic alliances were made during the year:

»  Agreement with Kribhca Infrastructure Limited (KRIL} was entered into on 16-05-2018, whereby CONCOR
will cperate and manage the bonded area of ICD, Pali.

»  Agreement with Bangalors Airport Teminal Services Put. Ltd. (BATS) on 12-06-2018 for undertaking
Ground Handling & other air cargo related activities at various airports in India to further expand the wings
into these activities.

Agreement was signed with M/s Shiv Carriers Roadways Pvt. Ltd. (SCRPL) on 20-08-2018 at Ahmedabad
forexelusive Containerised operations by CONCOR at Sukhpur.

*  Memorandum of Understanding {Mol)) was signed with Kandla Intemational Container Terminal Pyl Lid.
(KICTPL} in August 2018, wherein CONCOR shall have exclusive rail access to run the container rakes
between KICTPL and various ICDs/Ports for movement of EXIM containers by rail. The Mol aims to
promote seamless connectivily and faster clearance of EXIM containers from Kandia Porl.

# To form a Joint Working Group (JWG)  with Mfs. Central Warehousing Corporation Ltd, {CWC) an
agreement was entered into with them on 10-09-2018 to operate the CFS facility of Mfs. CWC located at
Fipavav Port for the mutual benefit and to promacte and meet the growing needs of exports, imports and
domestic business situated in and around Pipavav Port as well as to the Multimodal Transport requirements
ofthe country in genaral,

= Agreement with M/s. KRIL was entered into on 17-10-2018, wherein CONCOR will opstate & manage the
Bonhded Arga at KRIL's Terminal at Modinagar for handling of EXIM traffic. This will help to promote and meet
the growing needs of EXIM business situated in its hinterland,

¥ MOU signed with M/s, ITE Japan on 22-01-201%forimprovement in cold storage logistics.

¥ MOU has been signed with JS5C RZD Logistics, Russia on 30-01-2019 for exploring the logistics
opporiunities in Russia, India and International Caorridors, but not limited to the International North South
Transportation Comidor (INSTC).

WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES:

CONCOR had incorporated Mfs. Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. {FHEL) in the year 2006 as its wholly owned
subsidiary to create world class cold storage infrastructure in the country, to provide complete cold chain

[15]

"!’




logistics solutions to various stakeholders in this field.

With the changed business dynamics on account of implementation of Goods and Service Tax {GST), and
Customized Storage requiremsnts, a new business plan was finalized in March, 2018 for re-engineering of the
facility of FHEL at Rai, Sonepat in two phases for development as an Agri-Logistics Cenlre.

Faor purpose of modification of existing facility under Phase-l of re-enginsering plan, CONCOR infugsed Rs. 13.45
Crores by way of fresh equity subscription in FHEL in April, 2018, Partial commissioning of the plant was made in
July, 2018 and 24 chambers made available for storage of fruits, eggs, kirana, etc. Further, Mezzanine Floors
have been erected in 24 chambers under Phase-l of the ptan and modification work on another 26 CA chambers
is likely to be completed before coming apple season.

One of the major developmant that took place in March, 2019 is that one-third of the existing Rai facility was
notiied as a Custom bonded warehouse. With such conversion into Custom bonded warehouse,
importersfexporters ara likely to be benefiited with reduced averall logistics costs. Operations have also started
in the Custom bonded warehouse with the storage of walnuts and apples. As a result of re-starting of operations,
FHEL reduced its net loss by 21% approx. i.e. from Rs.1,062.50 lakhs in FY2017-18 to Fs.839.84 |akhs in
FY2018-15,

O account of recent natification for Custom bonded warehouse and this additional revenue stream, which was
not envisaged at the time of making re-engineering plan in March, 2018 and expsrience of operations of last one
year, the earlier re-engineering plan was reviewed inApril, 2019, Afterthe review. a revised plan for development
af additional infrastruclure under Phase-1| has been approved with funding of Rs.30.86 Crores by way of fresh
subscription to equity shares by CONCOR.

Further, CONCOR's Board has agreed in its meeting held on 30.04.201%, to convert the outstanding loan from
FHEL of Rs.37.53 crores along-with interest accrued and due of Rs.17.91 crares {nel of TDS) as on 31 03218
plus further interest accruals {net of TDS) on the said loan Ll the date of its conversion into equity. Later, the
above loan along with inlsrest accured therean tili the date of its converslion into equity totaling to Rs.55.89
crores was converted itito Equity Share Capital of FHEL on 14.08.2018.

In order to expand its span of aperations and make its presence felt in Air cargo business with a view to establish
itself in this Industry, CONCOR had formed earlier CONCOR Air Ltd. (CAL) in the year, 2012 It is 100%
subsidiary of CONCOR and has an aulhorised share capital of Rs.50 crores. The objectives of CAlLare:

»  Toundertake Air Carge related activities in International as well as Domestic circuit,

»  Ta contribute in (he development of Air Carge business of the country by providing end to end solution te the
customers through the made of bonded trucking of Import/Export cargo from the various hintertands to the
Airports.

» To provide warehousing facilities to Intemational & Domestic Air Cargo and to facilitate the clearance of
EXIM & DomesticAir Cargo.

CONCOR Air Ltd. has made its presence felt at Chatrapati Shivaji Maharaj International Airport in the fisid of
domestic and intemational air cargo related activities by entering into concession agreements with Mumbai
International AirportLid. (MIAL}

DomesticAir Cargo Concession:

In February, 2013 CONCOR Air Ltd. has entered into an agreement with MIAL under which SANTACRUZ AIR
CARGO TERMIAL (SACT) has been developed by CONCOR Air Ltd. SACT is a State-of-the-art GREEN
terminal with ultra-modemn facililies for storage of cargo, handling, screening, cold storage etc. SACT was
commissioned on 09.08.2016. Before commissioning of SACT, CAlL had taken over the existing Domestic
Common User Termiral of MIAL at Marol for operations w.e.f. 01.05.2013. During the year at SACT, CAL has
handled domestic air cargo of major five airlines viz; Jet Airways, Indigo, Spicejet, Go Air and Wistara. During the
£Y 2018-19, a new Airline has commenced its air cargo handling operations at SACT i.e. Air Asia.

Intemational Concession Agreement:

CAL has successfully completed its concession period with MIAL for its international Operations which ended on
15" April 2018,

CAL has sarned a net profit of Rs.3.78 lakhs after tax during FY 2018-18. The paid up equity capital of the
company was Rs,36.65 Crores as on 31.03.2019.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) forms part of the Annual Report
ofthe Company.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:

Human Resource Management {HRM) in organisaticn is designed to maximize employse performance to
achieve strategic objectives. HR is primarily concerned with the management of people within organizations,
focusing on policies and systems. Being a progressive organisation, CONCOR firmly belisves in the strength of
its mosi vital asseti.e, Human Resource.

CONCOR has adopted and aligned its HR strategy vis-a-vis systems & procedures taking inte account the
business objectives and competence building needed for the organisation. HR strategy acts as a motivating
factor for the employees who contribute to the core competence of the organisation to create a match between
the Company's future needs and the aspirations of individual employees.

CONGOR's HR Philosophy is rooted in encouraging employee empowerment, growth and development of
individuals by realizing their potential, encouraging inncvative ideas and fair distribution of rewards. lts work
culture is open and dynamic enabling employees to take initiative in job with active support of the top
management. It is an ernployer of choice and atiracts the best available talent with skilf sets required for the
growth and development of the organization.

Right placement and refinement of employees is the primary function after induction by which the Company
maintains alignment of individual performance and goals with that of CONCOR goals.

Great care is taken to maintain safe and hygienic working climate and to provide working environment io the
employees conducive to their good health. The occumence of industrial accidents is minimal.

CONGOR offers various voluntary benefits (apart from statutory benefits) to its empioyees. These are affered in
the form of options to the employees to choose from a mix of perks and allowances available subject to a
maximum c&iling. In addition to allowances and benefits covered in the cafeteria approach, perks in the form of
residential accommodation; telephone instruments/service; advances and welfare amenities are provided to
employees.

Provision has been made for timely delivery of HR services through Right to Service for time bound delivery of
HF. services and benefits.

The Company has a performance oriented culture wherein contribution of every employee to the organization is
measured and suitably rewarded. CONCOR has a sound and result criented Performance Management
System (FMS}. The system promates CONCOR's philosophy of rewarding and recognizing meritocracy at all
levels and support development of executives through a structured approach woven into the appraisal of the
Company.

CONCOR has an exclusive training centre at Gurugram o cater to empioyees' developmental needs. It
conducts bath in-house and specialised topic based trainings as per organisational and employees needs from
time ta time. Feedback of employees and reporting authorities is reviewed constructively and accordingly next
training calendar is scheduled. Employees are put to "On the Job Training Programmes' and are evaluated to get
an understanding of the suitahility of the employee for hisfher right placement and also to understand specific
developmental needs of employees.

The Company provides wider opportunities for growth to its employees. Being a young organisation with an
average age of employees at 40 years, it has formulated a comprehensive Performance Managemant System
{PM3)in order to identify not only the job performance of the employee but also analysis of employee's behavior
and personality traits under varous descriptions of personality, it gives an idea of employee’s training and
developmental needs and thus contributes majorly to the succession planning of the individual and thereby
helps inthe anaiysis of an employee for his placement for a particular job.

With & view to keep our below board level employess! officers prepared for the future requirement of the
arganisation, young managers have been placed as the head of the terminals and departmsnts, under Group
General Managers and Executive Directors who have been placed as head of the Regions and departments.
The: attrition rata is around 2% owing to CONCOR's employee welfare and career development policies.
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INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

Sound and healthy Industrial Relations (iR) is the pivot around which the entire business operations revolve.
CONCOR believes in community of interests and not in conflicts of interests. Various interest groups strive fo
further goals in the organisation and resolution of conflicting interests in a positive manner reinforces faith in the
system, besides imbibing strength to face external threats. CONCOR maintained industrial peace and harmony
and no mandays were lost during the year. Posilive IR has been the goal of HR department, whergin CONCOR
provides two way communication, participative culture, open platforms for discussion forideas and motivation of
the employess,

RESERVATION POLICY:

CONCORis a Cenlral Govemment Public Sector Undertaking (PSU). It follows all Government mandates in true
spirit, The representation of such categories againstthe total stre ngthof 1,483 as0n 31.03.2013 s as under:

Category No. of Employees
Schedule Caste 213
Schedule Tribs 75

{ther Backward Classes 257
Persons with Disabilities (PwDs) 31
Ex-serviceman 21

Further, the delails of reserved category candidates who have been recruitad! appointed during the year 2018-
49 are as under:

Category MNo. of Employees
Schedule Caste 2
Schedule Tribe -
Oiher Backward Classes 3
FPersons with Disabilities (PwDs) 1

Ex-serviceman
SPECIAL ACHIEVEMENTS:

Your Campany continued to excel in fislds of its activities and was a proud recipient of the following awards
during the year:

» Awarded for 'Highest Wealth Creator - Market Retums Navratna - Non-Manufacturing under India's Best
PSU Awards 2017 by Dalal Street Investment Journal {(DSLJ)on 18.05.2018.

s CONCOR's Balasore terminal was chosen for 'Smart DCT award' by Maritime Gateway under Smart
Logistics Award 20118 at Bhubaneswar on 18.06.2018.

= Dun & Bradstreet PSU Awards 2018 under Transport & Logistic Services category by Shri Bibek Debroy,
Chairman, Prime Minister's Econemic Advisory Council on 24.07.2018.

»  CONCOR's ICD Sanathnagar was conferred with 'SMART LOGISTICS AWARD' by Maritime Gateway at
the Smart Logistics Summit 2018 at Hyderabad on 03.08.2018.

»  SKOTCH Order—of-Merit 2018 Award during the 53" Skotch Summit at Constitution Club of India, New
Delhion 19.09.2018,

3 Starofthe Industry Awards by ET Now under the category "Best Freight Service Provider: Rail" atNew Delhi
on21.12.2018.

»  Amity Excellsnce Award for Best Practices in Logistics during 16" INBUSH ERA World Surmmit 2013 at
Noida fUF) on 21.02.2019. :

»  Smart Railway Operator Award at Smart Logistics Summit at Kolkala on 21.02.20179.

»  Inland Container Depot & Rail Operator of The Year {Public} at Northern India Multirmodad Logistics Awards
at New Delhion 22.02.2015.

ENERGY CONSERVATION AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
The relevant informalion on consenvation of energy and technology absorption stipulated under Section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 2 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are as under:
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For ehergy conservation and technology absorplion, virtualization is being done in the servers of major
applications, which is the latest technology, with the objsctive to reduce hardware, power onsumption and the
cooling requirement.

To save power, multiple servers are also being contrelled through single console instead of having the separate
monitors, which save power as well as reduce cooling requirement. Most of the CRT moniters have been
replaced by LCDA ED monitors, which have reduced the power requirement drastically. Most of the latest CPUf
Meniters / Printers of desktops /laptop are configured in power saving mode.

In addition to above, to conserve energy and to reduce power requirementf heat dissipation wherever possible,
consolidation is pracliced as par requirament.

The Company is using fusl efficient Rubber Tyre Gantry (RTG) Cranes and Reach Stackers (RST) Machines for
handling of containers, usage of fuel efficient power packs to feed power supply ko refrigerated containers while
transporting to poris. Further energy efficient Rail Mounted Gantry {(RMG) Cranas and improved warehouse
design is being used by making them more energy efficient,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:;
During the year, there were no foreign exchange eamings. The details of foreign exchange outgo are as under:

{Rs. in crore)
Forgign exchangs outgo 1.45
Imporl on CIF basis
a) Stores & Spares 235
b) Capital Goods 232.51

RESEARCH & DEVELOFMENT [(R&D):

»  COMCORis upgrading its High Speed Rolling Stock to 22MT axle load to provide economic transportation
to trade while atthe same time improving throughput of Rallway System.

Procurement of 6,000 high capacity containers of 34 Ton inline with the upgrading capacity of wagons.

Analytical Studies were conducted for reducing empty running of trains and developing software for
aptimization of double stacking of containers.

# CONCOR has placed an arder for 24 Nos of RSTs on Indian Bidders M/s TIL which i in line with preference
to Make in India through Global Tender.

» CONCOR has taken the initiative for using the |ce Battery technotogy for storage of cargo under controlled
atmosphere for the transportation of vegetables, fruits ate. atthe required temperature.

» First time procurement of 24 Ton Dry Freight Containers and procurement of 25 Ton axle high speed BLES
wagons.

PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVE(S):

Mo Presidential Direclives were received from the Government during the financial year 2018-19,
RAJBHASHA:

CONCOR implemsnts Government of india Official Language policy in letter and spirit. The provision of Section

3{3} of the Official Language Act, 1963 has been fully complied with, The letters received in Hindi were also
replied in Hindi.

Quartery meetings of Official Language implementation Committee were held regularly to review the progress
made in promoting use of Hindi in CONCOR and the decisions taken therein wers propstly implemented. During
the year, regional offices including corperate office were inspected in order to rectify shortcoming being faced by
its employees in uss of Hindi in their official work. Hindi workshops on various topics were organised to create
awareness amaongst employees inregard to provisions of Official Language Act and official language rules.

Hindi Pakhwara was organized from 14" to 28" September 2018 in which four competitions were held and about
120 emplovees participated in these competitions. Total 3% employees were honored with cash prize and
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certificates. A Hindi Kavi Sammelan was also organised during the pakhwara to promote Hindi language which
was well received by CONCOR family,

82 employees were given cash awards for doing their official work in Hindi under *CONCOR Rajbhasha
Puraskar Yojna" for the year 2017-18. Two officials were awarded with late Dr. Shankar Dayal Singh Smiriti
puraskar 2017 for their significant contribution towards prometing Hindi in official work,

CONCOR keeps its library enriched by acquiring Hindi Books of famous authors on various streams of Hindi
literature. The number of books in the library has increased to 2,458 in which 1,740 are Hindi books. 82 New
Hindi Books were purchased dufing the year 2018-19. Leading nawspapers as well as monthly and fortnightly
magazines continue to be subscribed. To promote original writing in Hindi & to familianze with Company's
activities, a magazine "Madhubhasika' has been published regularly. Good articles published in lhis magazine
are also suitably awarded. Itis also uploaded on company's website. CONCOR's website is bilingual and all
computers have Unicode facility to work in Hindi, which is being utilised by its officials for doing work in Hindt,

VIGILANCE:

CONCOR constantly endeavours to optimise probity and integrity amongst employees and to promote
transparency, fairness and accountability in all areas. To achieve this objective, the Vigilance Depariment of
CONCOR carries out preventive, proaclive and punitive actions with greater emphasis in the preventive and
proactive functions. Following activities were undertaken during the financial year 2018-18.

During the year 2018-19, 19 Preventive { Surprise /CTE type checks were conducted at various Regional Offices
/ inland Container Depats/ Container Freight Stations of CONCOR. In addition, cases were registered !
investigated on the basis of complaints and other information. Periodic surprise checks were conducted
regularly in vulnerable areas of the Company. Suitable penal action was taken against erring officials and
contractors, An amount of Rs.80.67 lakhs was recovered from various contractors! customers during the
financial year. During the year, Vigilance division disposed off 12 cases and 07 cases relating to non-compliance
of tender conditions, viclation of rules and procerdures etc. are pending.

On the suggestion of Vigilance Division, respective user depariments have issued 10 circulars forimprovement
in systems and procedures. One of the important system improvement carried out at the behest of Vigilance
Division was in the area of disposal of unclaimed f uncleared goods lying with custodians. On the basis of the
repori submitted to CVC by the Vigilance Division he Commission directsd CONCOR to prepars a Standard
Operating Procedure {(SOF) for disposal of unclaimed/ uncleared goods lying at its various ICDs/CFSs.
Accordingly, a draft SOP was prepared by CONCOR and the same was forwarded to CBIC. On the basis of the
draft SOP forwarded by CONCOR, Customs Department issued revised guidelines! procedures vide Gircular
No. 48/2018-Customs dated 03.12.2018 for disposal of unclaimed/ uncleared cargo lying with the custodians,
The revised guideiines have resulted in improvement ¢f the system by removing various armbiguities, fixing the
roles of Gustoms and Custodians and laying a tirme line to completa the process,

In order to disseminate information among field functionaries, Vigilance Division organised regular training
programmes/ workshops in different Regions covering topical issues such as D&A Rules, Face!s of Vigilance
and Civil Engineering Works etc. Vigilance Division has also released first in-house edition of the vigilance e-
bulletin named "Vig-Ter ", The purpose of the e-bulletin is to disseminate the latest vigilance instructions and
showease best practices in the field of vigilance. This will create awarensss and sensitize all officers and staff to
discharge their duties consciously, meticulously and fearlessly. The e-builetin is available on CONCOR websita.

Infarmatian technology is being extensively utiiised to ensure transparency in functioning of various modules
such as e-office, -billing, e-tendering, e-payments, e-receipts, e-filing, s-auction & reverse auction ¢1c. thereby
instifing confidence of being just and fair erganisation amengst our customers, business associates and other
stakeholders.

Vigilance Awarehess Week {WAW) was observed in all offices of CONCOR by undertaking various activities
during the periad from 28" Oetober o 37 November, 2018, The theme of the Vigilance Awareness Week -2013
was "Eradicate Cormuption- Build a New India’. VAW-2018 was marked by numerous activities! competitions in
schools, colleges, universities, Gram Sabhas, workshops! interactive sessions etc. Banners on the YAV theme
were displayed at various offices and public places. Several workshops, seminars, nukkad natak, Grievances
Redressal Camps were organised involving employees, customers and contractors/ vendors, Essay, slogan
writing and debate competitions were organised for employees and student community. As a new and unigue
initiative, CONCOR flagged off 08 container trains designed as "Satarkata Express Container Train” to create
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awareness against cormuption amongst the public. The traing carried pictorial stickers pasted on the containers
with messages and slogans related to vigilance awareness including on the current theme ‘Eradicate
Corruption-Build a New India’. The message and siogans on such containers was disseminated to the general
public as the containers moved across the length and breadth of country by rail as well as road. The first
container lrain was flagged off by Shri Girish Fillai, Member (Traffic) Railway Board from New Delhito Chennai
in the presence of Shri Sunil Mathur, Principai Executive Director (Vigilance) /Rallway Board, CMD, CVO,
Directors and other senior officers of CONCOR & Railways.

in order to moltivate the employees in recognition to their contribution in vigilance management, the award for
“Most Vigilant Employee of the year” is constituted and this year the award was given o "Smt. R Srividya',
Additional Officer {C&0) Southern Region and 'Shri Himanshu Gautam', Sr. Assistant {C20)North Central
Region during Vigilance Awareness Week.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Fursuantto Section 124(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your Directors hereby confirm that;

i} In tha preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have besn followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures.

iy The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and |oss of the Company for that period.

i} The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and far preventing and detecting fraud and other iregularities.

iw) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v)  The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adeguate and were operating effectively.

vi} The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adeguate and operating effectivaly.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYS15:
The detailed Management Discussion and Analysis forms a part of this report at Arnexure-A.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & GREEN INITIATIVE:

Your Company has taken structured initfatives towards Corporate Governance & its practices are appreciated
by various stakeholders. Your Company belisves in the principle that good Caorporate Governance establishes
a positive organizational culture and it is evident by responsibilily, accourtability, consistency, fairness and
fransparancy towards its stakeholders. As required under SEBI {LODR) Reguiations and DPE guidelines gn
Corporate Governance, a separate repart on Corporate Governance practices followed by the Company forms
part of this Report at Annexure-B.

A Practicing Company Secretary has examined and certified your Company's compliance with respect to
conditions enumerated in SEBEI (LODR) Regulations and DPE guidslines on Corporate Govemance. The
certificate required in DPE guidelines and SEBI {LODR) Regulations forms part of this Report at Annexure-C.

As a responsible corporate citizen and to reduce carbon foot print, your Company has actively supported the
implemeantation of 'Green Initiative’. Electronic dalivery of notice of Postal Ballot, notics of Annual General
Meeting (AGM}and Annual Report alongwith other communications is being done to thase shareholders whose
email ids are already registered with the respective Depository Participants (DPs) and downloaded from the
depositories i.e. NSDL/CDSL and who have not opted for receiving Annual Report in physical form, Accordingly,
unless otherwise desired by the sharsholdars, the Company sends ali documents to the shareholders viz.
Motice, intimation for dividend, Audited Financial Statements, Directors' and Auditars’ Repent, etc. in electronic
form to their registered e-mail addresses,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY {CSRYAND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT:

CONCOR's social activitias in FY 2018-19 were continued to be focussed on development of society with prime
focus on school education and health in terms of guidelines issued by Department of Public enterprises {DPE),
However, activities in other areas like, sanitation, skill Development, environment sustainability etc. have also
hzen taken up for the welfare of ur stakeholders. Some of activities undertaken by company under CSR are

Solar lights and handpumps have been installed in the rural areas of Ghazipur and Sultanpur, Uttar Pradash,
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Installation of handpump at Lambhua, Sultanpur.

Skill development activities were completed in the field of Garment and Logistic section in Uttar Pradesh,
Andhra Pradesh, Tamilnadu and Gujarat benefiting 560 youths belonging to backward classes.

Skill training in garment sector at Khodiyar and Hyderabad.
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Preventive Health camps continued to be organized like previcus years at 27 major locations of CONCOR
facilities benefitting approximately 54,195 stakeholders by organizing 86 health camps which have been able to
support CONCOR stakeholders towards fighting their basic health issves,

Organization of Health camps

Support was also extended towards infrastructure development of hospitals in Chattisgarh and Andhara
Pradesh for the benefit of commeon man of society including support towards cochlear implants surgery to
childrenwith hearing impairment.

Toe promote sanitation among masses, toilet blocks including toilets in schools and at public places were
constructed in Jahanabad (Bihar) and Ghazipur and Yaranasi (Ultar Pradesh}, Sonepat (Haryana) and Chennai
{Tamil Nadu). Construction of public teilets have been taken up at various Railway Stations of Western Railway
districts.

Infrastructura Development of schools found a major place in CONCOR CSR activities covering Shravasti (UP),
Pumia (Bihar), Gauatambudh Nagar {UP) and Kannur (Kerala} districts in which construction of classrooms
havebeentakenup.

In view of guidelines issued by DPE towards CSR expenditure in aspirational districts, CONCOR took up four
aspirational districts i.e. Chanduali, Sharavasti in Ultar Pradesh, Visakhapalnam in Andhra Pradesh and
Asifabad in Telangana for its CSR activities. The focussed areas of CSR activities in these districts have been
school education and health care activities. Construction of dlassrooms, including construction of Science labs,
procurement of Realth equipments like x-ray plants, csll counter! bic chemical analyzer, RO plants and ultra
sound machines ete. have been taken up in Asifabad district of Telengana.

Fillip to sports was alse undertaken by COMCOR by extending help towards creation of sports infrastructure
Hacilities in Nagacn at Assam and Visakhapatnam atAndhra Pradesh as wsll as contribution in National Sports
Development Fund setup by Gowvt. of India.

CONCOR's commitment to support education to underprivileged section of society continued this year by
supporting 30 bright studsnts towards preparation for higher studies in Uttar Pradesh as well as in Delki, where it
furthered its support towards oparation of a primary schoal run for slum children benefitting 250 such children.
Similarly infrastructure support iike maintenance of school buildings, provision of benches, computers, toilets,
F.Q. water and other, interventions were taken up in schools of Ghazipur {Uttar Pradesh}, Gautambudh Nagar,
Khatuwas (Rajasthan}benefitting more than 2,000 students.



Support to education in Varanasi, Uttar Pradesh and Delhi

C:ONCOR took up welfare of Armed forces by contributing in Armed Forces Flag Day Fund for the welfare of war
widows and their dependents,

In terms of funds aliocated as per Companies Act 2013, including unspent balance of previous year towards
CSR Expenditure for FY 2018-19, an amount of Rs.13.39 crores hes been disbursed towards various CSR
activities during the year.

COMCOR is working tirelessly towards achieving sustainable development of its stakeholders in order to fulfill
its social responsibility towards society in line with its CSR policy and vision.

The particulars of CSR activities for the year in the form of the Annual Report on CSR activities is as per
Annexure-D tothis report.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

As per the reguirement of SEB| (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company is having a Board level Risk
Management Committes. The particulars of Committee are stated in the Corporate Govemance Report forming
part of this Report. The Company has a wsll laid down Risk Management {RM} system to identify, evaluate risks
and opportunities. The said system seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business
objectives and enhance the Company's competitive advantage. The risk management system defines the risk
management approach across the enterprise in various business activities. The RM structure has different risk
models which help in identifying risk trands, exposure and potenlial impact analysis at Company level and also
separately for business segments. It forms an integral part of the Company's functiening and the Board of
Directors are being regularly apprised about the status of various risk elements and the mitigation plans for the
same.

INTERNAL CONTRCOL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

CONCOR's internal Cantrol Systems are commensurate with its size, scale and complexity and nature of its
business activities. Internal audit constitutes an important element in overall internal control systems of the
Company. The scope of work of the intemal audit is well defined and is very exhaustive ta cover all crucial
functions and businesses of the Company. The internal audit in the Company is carried out by the independent
professional firms appointed for this purpose.

The respective department of the Company monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of intemnal
control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and palicies.
Based on the repert of internal auditors’, necessary steps are taken atregularintervals to further strengthsen the
existing systems and procedures. The significant observations of internal auditors and corrective actions
thereon are presented to the Audit & Ethics Committee of the Board at regular intervals. In addition, the
implementation and effectiveness of internal financial controls during 2018-19 was also reported by the intemnal
and statutory auditors of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
As per provistons of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 5 of the Companies
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{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, every listed company is required to
disclose the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee's remuneration and such other
details as may be prescribed in the Directors' Repert. However, as per Notification No. GSR 463(F) dated 5"
June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government Companies are exempted from complying
with provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore, CONCOR being a Gavernment Com Pany,
such particulars are notincluded as part of Directors’ Report.

AUDITORS:

Being a Govemment Company, the Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India had appointed Company's
Statutory and Branch/Regional Auditors for the financial year 2018-19. M/s. Arun K Agarwal & Associates,
Chartered Accountants were appointed as Company's Statutory Auditors for the year 2018-18. The statutory
auditors were appointed by C8AG vide its lstter No. CAV/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT,CCIL{9)/382, dated
31.07.2018. The Statutory Auditors of the Company is being paid an audit fee of Rs.4,00,000/-. The Statutory
Auditers have audited the Annual Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) of the Company for the
financial year ended an 31.03.2019. The replies of the managerment to the ohservations of Statutory Auditors' in
their reports on standatone and consolidated financial statements are enclosed as Addendurm- and Addendum-
[l to Brirectors’ report.

The Comments of CBAG for the financial year 2018-19 are being provided elsewhere in the Annual Report.
Further, CONCOR is not required to maintain cost records as required under section 148 of Companies Act,
2013 and rules made theraunder,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

LONCOR being a Government Company, the appointment of directars on its board are communicated by the
Ministry of Railways from time to time. During the financial year 2018-19, seven meetings of the Board of
Directors were held for transacting various businesses. During the year and upto the date of this report, the
dirsctorship in the Company are under:

= 3hriV. Kalyana Rama, Chairman and Managing Director [DIN: 07201558]
ShriPradip K. Agrawal, Director {Domestic Division'} [DIN: 07557 080)

Shri Sanjay Swarup, Director (Intl. Mkig. & Ops.J[DIN: 05159435]

Shn Rahul Mithal, Director (Projects & Services) [DIN: 07610499

Shri Manaj K. Dubey, Director (Finance) & CFO [DIN: 07518387] (w.e.f. 31.10.2018)
Shri Sanjay Bajpai, Govt. Nominee Directar [DIN: 07548036)

Shri Manoj Kumar Srivastava, Govt. Nominga Director [DIN: 06890877) {w.s.f. 30.04 2018)
Ms. Vanita Seth, Independent Director [DIN: 07944119

ShriLov Verma, Independent Director [DIN: 0758007 1]

ShriAnjaneya Prasad Mocherla, Independent Director [DIN: 03645658]

Shri Deepak Shetty, Independent Director [DIN : 07089315] {w.e.f. 14.07.2018)
ShriJayasankar M.X_, Independent Director

Shri Kamlesh Shivji Vikamsey, independent Director [DIN: 00059620] (upte 31.03.2019 and re-appointed
w.e.f 01.04 2019 forone year)

» Shri Sanjeev 3. Shah, Independent Director [DIN: 00323163] {upto 31.03.2019 and re-appointed w.e i,
01.04. 2019 for one year)

# 3hriPrabhas Dansana, Govt. Nominae Director [DIN: 07973307 (upto 18,04, 2018)

in terms of order of the Ministry of Railways, Government of India Shri Deepak Shetty was appointed as non-
afficial part-time {Independent) Director w.e f. 14.07.2018. Shri Mano] Kumar Srivastava, ECTT(F), Railway
Board was appointed as a part-time Government director w.e.f. 30.04.2018. In terms of order of the Ministry of
Railways, Government of India Shri Jaya Sankar M. K. was appointed as non-official independent Direclar by
the Board on 31.07.2(18 for a period of three years ending on 07.07.2022. Also after the completion of their
tenure on 31.03.2019, Shri Kamlesh Shivji Vikamsey and Shri Sanjeev §. Shah were re-appointed as non-
official independent Director w.e f. 01.04.2019 for a peried of one year by the Board on 31.07.2019, In terms of
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provisions under SEBI Regulations, CONCOR being a listed Company and having an executive chaiman, 50% of
its Board of Directors should comprise of independent Directors, howswver, the company was not having requisite
number of these directors to fulfll the above requirement. CONCOR had requested Ministry of Railways for
appointment of requisite number of independent directors to compty wilk the requiremanls under SEBI (LODR)
Regulations. Recently, with the appointment/re-appointrment of above three Independent Cirectors, the Company is
now meeting the requirement in respect of constitution for its Board by having 50% of Diractors as Independent

Directors.

RETIREMENT CF DIRECTORS BY ROTATION:

As per the Companies Act, 2013 the provisions in respect of retirernant of Directors by rofation will not be
applicable to Independent Directors. In view of this, no Independent Director is considered to be retiring by
rotation but all other directors will be retiring by rotation. Accordingly, one third among all other dirsctors namely
Shri V. Kalyana Rama, Chairman and Marniaging Director and Shri Sanjay Bajpal, Director are liable to retire by
ratation and being efigible, offer themsehves for reappointment.

EVALUATION & REMUNERATION:

As per Ssction 134 (3)(p) of the Companies Act 2013, the Board's Report of a Listed Company shall include a
statement indicating the manner of formal annual evaluation of Board, Individual Directors efc. Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has vide its nofification dated 5" June, 2015 notified the exemptions to Government
Companies from the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 which inter-alia provides that Sec. 134{3}p}
regarding statement on formal annual evaluation shall not apply to Government Companies in case the
Directors are svaluated by the Ministry which is administratively in-charge of the company as per its own
evaluation methodology. Further, it has been provided that the provisions of Sub-Sections (2}, (31 & (4) of Sec.
178 regarding appointment, performance evaluation and remuneration shall not apply to Directors of
Government Companies.

In terms of notification dated 05.07.2017 issued by MCA the provisions in Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013 about reviewing the performance of Chairperson and non-independent directors and the Board as awhole
by the Independent Directors in their separate mesting and that on the bhasis of performance evaluation of
Independent Directors, it shall be determined whether to extend ar continue their term of appoiniment shall not
apply to a Government Company if the requirements in respect of same are specified by the concerned
Ministries or Departments of the Central Government and such requirements are complied with by the
Gavernment Companigs. In view of above, since the appointment of the all Directors in the Company is decided
by the Govt. of India, the requirement related to evaluation of directors as stated in Schedule-1V are not
applicable to CONCOR,

COMNCOR is a Gavernment Company under the administrative control of Ministry of Railways. The selection
procedure for all the directors is alsc laid down by the Governmeant of India and all the directors of the Company
have heen appointed in accordance with the said procedure. The functional directors including CMD are
selected on the recommendations of PESB in accordance with the procedure and guidelines laid down by Govt.
of India. Its Directors are appointed by Ministry of Railways and there is system and procedure laid down by
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) for evaluation of its functional directors including Chairman and
Managing Director. The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of functional directors comprises
ofthe following key areas:

+  Performance of the Company under the MOU signed with Ministry of Railtways.
»  Performance with respect to the targets fixed for the respective director.

The evaluation includes self evaluation by the respective board member and subsequent assessment by
CMD for the functional directors and thereafter final evaluation by the Ministry of Railways, the
administrative ministry,
% Inrespectof CMD the evaluation includes self evaluation and final evaluation try the Ministry of Railways.
In respact of Govemment nominse dirsciors their evaluation is done by the Ministry of Railways as per the
procedure laid down.
The induction of officers at below board levelis made by way of recruitment, promotion and/or lateral entry by way of
depuiation/immediate absorption of the officials from Ministry of Railways, Govt. Depariments and other P5Us.

The performance of below Board Level Officials at Group General Manager and Executive Dirgctor grades is
evaluated on the hasis of criteria Jaid down by DPE in which the achievement of MOU targets as approved by
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Administrative Ministry and DPE is given due weightage.

CONCOR follows a robust Perfarmance Management System {PMS) in compliance with the DPE instructions
for evaluation of perfformance of its officials in Sr. General Manager and below grade. Farmat for evaluation
comprises broad parameters for assessment of personal traits of the officials and contribution towards
performance of the arganization. The Kay Result Areas (KRAs) are proposed by the appraisee and approved by
appraiser in the beginning of the year, which is subject to mid-year review for further medification/improvement,
it any. In this regard, for payment of Performance Related Pay (PRP) as per DPE guidelinesfinstructions, the
performance rating of an individual officer is considered.

CONCOR being a Govemment Company the remuneration payable to iis functional directors, including CMD,
senicr management officials and all other employees is in accardance with the guidslines issued by Department
of Public Enterprises (DPE) in pursuance of recommandations of the committee en pay revision. For fixation of
remuneration at workmen |evel, CONCOR adopls collsclive bargaining method with registered trade union of
workmen. For supervisors & officers, pay scales have been designed in a progressive way and all statutory
cornpliances in this regard are being adopted and followed. |t is being taken care of that no employee gets
stagnated.

The Momination & Remunaration Committee had taken note of the remuneration policy of the Company and the
procedure & policy for selsction of the Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The related party transactions that were entered into during the year were on an arm's length basis and were in
the ordinary course of business. Omnibus approval of the Audit & Ethics Committee is being taken for the related
party transactions which are of foreseen and repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the
omnibus approval so granted are placed before the Audit & Ethics Commiltee and the Board of Directors on a
guarterly basis. The policy on materiat related party transactions, as approved by the Board has besn uploaded
on the Company's website at hitp:ffwww.concorindia comdassets/pdt/ CONCOR_Policy. MRPT.pdf. Though
there are no materially significant related party transactions entered by the Gompany, the particulars as required
under section 134(3) of the Companiss Act 2013 are as per Annexure-E to thisreport.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies {Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Amit Agrawal &
Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertaks the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The
Secretarial Audit Report fromthe auditor is annexed as Annexure-F to this repart.

The Secrstarial Auditor as well as the Auditor who has given Corporats Govemance Compliance certificate had
observed that the Company is not having adequate number of independent directors. The remarks of the
directors on the same are that the independent directors in the Company are appointed by President of India,
through Ministry of Railways, Govemment of India. The Company has repeatedly requested Ministry of
Railways, Government of India for appaintment of requisite number of independant directors on its Board and
now recently with appointmentfre-appoiniment of three independent directors, the Company is having required
nurmberof Independent Directors onits Board.

OTHER DISCLOSURES:

The particulars forming part of the extract of the Annual Retum in the form MGT-9 s annexed a5 Annexure-G. In
addition, statement pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 (AOC-1) relating to Subsidiary
Companies and Joint Ventures is as per Annexure-H,

FARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:
During the year, your Company has made investments and has disbursed loans to its subsidiaries and joint

ventures. The particulars of which are as under:
{Rs. in Crore)

$.No. Name of Company Loan/Investment Amount
1. M/s Frash & Healthy Enterprises Lid. _ Loan disbursed 0.58

_ Equity Investment* 13.45

2. Mfs CONCOR BATS Airport Services ' Investment 0.20
3 Mis CONCOR. Ajr Limitad Loan repayment received 100,00

* Investments were mads towards subscription of equity shares of Rs.10 each for cash at par,
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The above loan disbursed to M/s Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Lid. (FHEL) during the year 2018-19 is bearing
intarest rate of 6 58% pa.

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from public as envisaged under Sections V3 to 76 of Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies {Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, For the purpose of issuer rating and non-
fund based bank facilities, the Company has obtained a credit rating of CARE AAA{ls); Stabls and CARE AAA;
Stable from Mis Care Ratings Limited, which indicates ‘Instruments are having the highest degree of safety
regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. Suchinstruments camy lowest credit nisk’.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE {PREVENTION,
PROHIBITIONM AND REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013:

Container Corporation of India Ltd. {CONCOR) prohibits any kind of act of sexual harassment at work place and
included the acts amounting to sexual harassment at workplace in its Conduct Rules and Certified Standing
orders and Discipline & Appeal Rules so as to prohibit any such Act. CONCOR constituted an Internal
Complaints Committes in the year 2003 to receive and investigate complaints related to "Sexual harassment at
workplace” following the guidelines issued by Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in "Vishaka Vs. State of
Rajasthan”.

The 'Internal Complaints Commitiee’ consists of four members at the senior level including one external temale
member who is an advocats on record of Hon'ble Supreme Court of Indiz. CONCOR has 172 female employees
out of total 1463 employees. The Company has created a conducive work environment free from any kind of
harassment.

One complaint was received during the FY 2018-19 for which inquiry was conducted and report submitted by the
commities,

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION:

Fursuant to provisions of Regulation 17(8} of the SEBI{LODR) Regulations, certificate for the year under review
fram Shri ¥, Kalyana Rama, Chairman and Managing Director and Shri Manoj Kumar Bubey, Director (Finance)
& CFO was placed hefore the Board of Directors of the Company atits meeting held on 30.04.2019. A copy of the
said cerificate on the financial statements for the fimancial year ended 31 March, 2018 is as per Annexure-L

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT:

For describing the initiatives taken by the companies from Environmental, Social and Governance perspective,
under SEBI (LODR} Regulations it has been mandated that the top 500 listed entities, basaed on market
capitalisation to include Business Responsibility Report (BRR) as part of the Annual Report. SEBI has provided
the format for BRR reporting in which it has elaborated a disclosure framework mapping Company's
performance on the nine Frinciples and Corg elements. Accordingly, in compliance to the said circular and
provistons of SEBI {LODR) Regulations, the Business Responsibility Report (BRR}is at Annexure-J.

CODEOF CONDUCT:

The Code of Conduct has been laid down for the Board Members and senior management. Acopy of the same is
available on the website of the Company.

Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Senior Management Persannel, it is hereby
declared that all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed campliance of
Code of Conduct for the financial year ended on 31.03.201%.

CONCLUSION:

Your Directors express their gratitude for continued co-operation, support and guidance in effective
management of Company's affairs and resources provided by Government of India, in particular the Ministry of
Railways, Customns, Ports and above all the customers who have continued to patranize the services provided
by your Company.
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The Directors also place on record their sincere appreciation for the continued support and goodwill of the
esteemed Shareholders, Institutions, State Governments where Company operates or ig planning to expand its
business and all other agencies who have halpad your Company in dalivering excellent performancs.

Your Directors acknowledge the constructive suggestions recaived from Auditors and Comptroller and Auditor
General of India and are grateful for their consistent suppaort and help.

Your Dirsctors would like to place on record its deep and sincere appraciation for the hard work, dedication,
valuable contribution and unstinted efforts by the team CONCOR for the excellent perfformance during the year
and for creating a platform to achieve greater successin future.

For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors
Sdf-

Dated ; 31.07.2019 (V. Kalyana Rama)
Place : Mew Delhi Chairman & Managing Director



ADDENDUM- TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT FOR FY 2018-19

Management Replies to the Remarks in the Auditer's Report oh Standalone Financial Stalements for FY 201819

Pnitrll.lts in
9 "
Auditors® Auditors' Remarks Reply of the Management
Report
Quali- | Note no. 55, describes non-provisioning | Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. (FHEL) is a wholly

of impairment Iossifair value reduction in
the valus of investment amounting to INR
180.07 Crores in equity of M/s Fresh &
Healthy Enterprises Ltd. {FHEL)} and
amolnting to INR 56.24 Crores in debts
including interest and other receivables
from FHEL. FHEL is a wholly owned
subsidiary Company, whese net worth
has been fully eroded. FHEL has not
achieved the projected cash inflows and
has reported a ioss of INR, 8,38 Crores for
the Financial Year 18-19. Further, the
management projections provided to us
with regard to future cash flows of FHEL
are not supported by credible evidence
and are inconsistent with the past
perfarmance. Accordingly, the carrying
amount of the investment of INR 160.07
Crores and debt including interest and
other recsivables of INR 56.24 Crores of
FHEL shall exceeds its Recoverable
AmountfFair Value, resulting in
Impairment Loss and Reduction in Fair
Value in accordance with IND AS -36,
“mpairment of Assets” (IND AS 36) and
IND AS-109, “Financial Instruments” {IND
A5 109),

Accardingly, impairment loss for the
carrying amount of investment of INR
160.07 Crores has not been recognized in
accordance with IND AS-36 and Fair
value Reduction in Debt and Other
Receivables amounting to INR 5624
Crores has not been provided in
accordance with IND AS 109, Accordingly
the provision towards impairment and fair
value reduction is understated by INR
216.31 Crores, investment is overstated
by INR 160.07 Crores, Loans given
including interest ars overstated by INR
85,44 Crores and Other receivable are
overstated by INR 0.30 Crores and profit
before tax is overstated by INR 216.31
Crores.

owned subsidiary of CONCOR. Though accumulated
losses of FHEL amounting lo Rs. 17 2.57 crores (&3 per
audited financial statements for 7Y 2018-19) exceeds
CONCOR's investment of Rs,160.07 crores in the
subsidiary as on 31st March 2019, no provision for
dirminutien in the value of investment, cutstanding
loans (including interest) and other receivables
amounting to Rs.56.24 crores has been made, as
husiness plan finalized by the management for revival
of FHEL has already started gelting implemented. In
this direction, in March 201%, the Board of Director
(BOD) of CONCOR had approved the said business
plan for re-engineering of FHEL's facifity at Rai,
Sonipat, which is proposed fo be sxecuted with equity
infusion totalling Rs.44.31 crores in two phases.
Phase-l will cover modification of the existing facility
by converting CA Store into Chiller, Bonded Cold
Store Warehouse, which is expecied to yield far
better margin and CA Store with mezzanine floors,
which is already operational now. Phase-Il on the
cther hand will cover addition of deep freeze and
traditional cold stors, which will ke implemented in the
year 2019-20. Based on the changed markei
scenario, the complete facility has been named as
“Agri Logistics Centre, FHEL/Rai" to diversify inlo the
field of storage of fruits, vegetables, kiryana items and
frozen veg./non-veg. items, ele. The re-engineered
facility will also cater to all kinds of customners like
farmers, traders, imparters and exporters. The cost of
Phase-| was R5.13.45 crores, for which equity
infusion by CONCOR has alrsady has been done.
Management is confident of achieving the desired
resulis from above husiness plan,

The management has also tested CONCOR's
investment & Loan Dues in FHEL far impairment
in accordance with the conditions laid down
under IND A5-36 “Impairment of Assets” while
preparing Company's Financial Statements for
the period ended 31st March, 2019. As per the
impairment testing carried out by the
management, it has been established that the
Value in Use e, the present value of future
expected cash flows from re-engineering of
FHEL's facility at Rai, Sonipat will exceed the
carrying value of investment and lean dues. IND
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AS-36 states that impairment needs to be
provided if and only if the carrying value of
investments exceeds its value in use or fair
value. Hence, no impairment has been
considered by the management for CONCOR's
investment & Loan dues in FHEL.

Subsequently, in the month of June, 2019 the
debt/ loan outstanding along with interest
thereon was converted into equity Share Capital
of FHEL.

Point

Mo, 1 of
Emphasis
of Matter

A. MNote no. 54 to the Standalone

Financial Statements of 31% March,
2019 describe investment of Rs.
54.60 crores in equity of IGTPL, a
jointly contrelled entity in which the
company helds 11.87% equity,
whose net worth has been fully
groded. Management has not
recognized any impaiment in the
value of the assets, as in the opinion
of the management, the expected
present value of future cash flows
axceeds the carmying amount of the
asset,

{A) Inland Gateway Terminal Pvt. Lid. {IGTPL) is a
jaint venture of CONCOR with Dubai Port
Intemmational (DPI} for setting up and managing of
conlainer terminal at Cochin. Though CONCOR's
share of Rs.72.76 crores in accumulated losses of
Fs.612.9% crores (as per unaudited financial
staternents for FY 2018-19) of this JV exceeds its
investment of Rs.54.60 crores as on 31.03.2012, no
provision for diminution in the value of investment has
been made, as with the managemant's consistent
review and implementation of appropriate business
strategy, this company's tumarcund is now visible,
The Total Turnover of the Company has increased to
Re.283.97 Crores from Bs. 28091 Crores based on
unaudited financial statements far FY 2018-18 andit is
maintaining heallhy EBITDA margins.

Managememt has also tested this investment for
impairment in accardance with the conditions laid
down under IND-AS 36 'Impairment of Assets”. As per
the impairment testing carried out by tha
management, it has been establishad thal the value in
use e, the prasent valuae of future expected cash
flows that will accrue from improvingfenhancing of its
asset's performance exceed the carrying value of
investmeant. IND AS-38 states that impairment needs
to be provided if and ondy if the camrying valug of
vestmeants excéedsits value inuse or fairvalue,

Puoint

Mo, 2 of
Emphasis
of Matter

B. Note no. 56 io the Standzlone

Financial Statements of 31% March,
2019 describe that cost of monetiza-
tion of Scrips receivable under
Service Export from India Scheme
{SEIS) will not be material in the view
of the management and therefore the
same will be accounted for in the year
oef menetization.

{B} Undar the Foreign Trade Policy {(FTP} 2015-20 of
Gaovernment of India, CONCOR s eligible for benefits
under 'Service Export from India Scheme' {SEIS)
Company recoqrizes these benefits in the period in
which the right to receive the same is established i.e.,
the year, during which the services eligible for grant of
SEIS benefits are perdformed. Accordingly, an amourt
of Rs.704.80 crores has been recognized for past 3
years i.e., 2015-16, 21M6-17 and 2017-18. During the
current year, an amount of Re.338.73 crores has been
recognized towards as SEIS benefit. The issue of
benefit in respect of FY 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-
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18 amounting to Rs.704.80 crores for which
applications have been filed is under process with the
concermed department of Government of India and
the Company is regularly follewing up this matter with
the authorities. All the clarifications sought by the
Autharities have been duly replied and the decision
theresn is awaited, The Company undar tha FTP prier
to 2015-20 was regulady getting henefits under Servad
from India Scheme (SFIS). Onthe basis of advice of the
experts, estimats and assessment of SEIS benefit was
done by the management and income on this account
was recagnized in the Books of Accounts. In addition,
the Company has also obtained legal opinian on this
matter, which supports the assessment of the
managerment on this subject. Further, management is of
the view that cost of monetization of SEIS benafits, once
the sames is granted by the authorties, will not be
material. Therefore, such cost will be accounted for on
moneatization.

Foinl Mo,
diehof
Report on
Other
Legal and
Regulatory
Require-
mants

In our opinicn, the aferesaid standalone
financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Slandards specified
in the Companigs (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended)
under Saction 133 of the Act, except IND
AS 28 'Impairmant of Assets' and IND
AS 109 'Financial Instruments' as
described in Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report and also with the
exception of IND AS 8§ ‘Accounting
Falicies, Changas in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’ to the extent of
Disclosure required for impact on
financial statements w.rt. IND AS 116
‘Leases’, made applicable on the
Company from 01.04.2019 by MCA
notification dated 30.03.2018,

Management's reply with regard to Nan Compliance
of IND AS-109 and IND AS-36 may please bs referred
to in reply given by the management against auditor's
qualification.

As far as non-compliance of IND AS-8 “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors” is concerned, para 30 of IND AS-8 inter-alia
states lhat, when an entity has not applied a new IND
AS that has been issued but is not yet effective, the
entity shall disclose known or reasonably estimable
information relevant to assessing the possible impact
that application of the new IND AS will have on the
entity's financial statements in the period of initial
application.

From the above, it is abundantly clear that the entity
necds to disclose the known or reasonably estimable
information through which the impact on financial
statements could be assessed by its stakeholders.
IND AS-8 nowhere lays emphasis to disclose, actual
impact that IND AS-116 will have on financial
staternents in the period of its initial application. The
disclosure required under IND AS-8, has been given
by the Company under point no. 2 of significant
accounting palicy by inter-alia stating that the impact
of IND AS-118 on Profit and Loss Statement is not
likely to be material and the Company is examining the
pravisions of the said IND AS and its effect on the
Financial Statements is being evaluated. Accordingly,
the Company has made adequats disclosura.
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Foint na.
i {c}of
Annexure
Ato lhe
Indepen-
dent
Auditors'
Report

According to the information and
axplanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the tille deeds of
immovable properties are held in the
name of the Company except for itarms
mentioned below:

{Amournt in Bs. Crores)

Detalls of Property Met Amount
RO F're::nises at Egrmore, 1.72
Chennagi

Staff Quarters at Chennai 1.03
Residential Flats, Kolkata .51
Jangpura-Building 0.83
Leasahold Land - MMLP,

Vishakhzpatnam 93.91
Freehold Land —

Krishnapatnam Port 31.21
Land at Village Bhawri 0.04
Land at Vatera 0.64
Jangpura - Land 0.44
Eeasehold Land at Kadakola 18.9%
Land at White Figld 1311

Fer RO Premizes at Egmore and Staff Quarters at
Chennai, Company s following up with Southern
Raitways for getting the fitle deeds axecuted in its name.

For residential fiats at Kolkata, the matter of execution
of lease deeds was taken up with the District Sub
Regisirar Office (DSR 1) at Kolkala. It emserged that
the said deeds are pending for registration at the
Registrar Office, as demand for deposit of requisite
Stamp Duty and Registration Fees has not been
raised upon CONCOR. The said lease deed is
currently fying in the office of above mentioned D3R
Office and once traced will be put up before DSR-Il at
Alipore for necessary orders, The DSR-Nwill forward it
te Commissioner of Stamp & Revenue for
assessment of Stamp Duty and Registration Fee. The
lease deed will be executed after payment of required
Stamp Duty and Registration Fee determined by the
authority in accordance with law.

For Jangpura Land & Building, sale deed has already
been executed on Vth August, 2009 between the
Company and Hindustan Prefab Limited, wherein all
the rights and interests of Hindustan Prefab Limited
have beentransferred inthe name of the Company.,

For leasehold land at MMLP Vishakhapatnam, an
amount of Rs.20.16 crores has besn demanded by
Visakhapatrram Port Trust (VPT) for acquisition of
additional land of 11.07 acres. Of this, an amount of
Rs.7.79 crores has been paid to YPT an 28.03.2019,
The payment of balance amount of Rs.12.37 crores is
under consideration. The lease deed would bs
executed after payment of balance amount,

For freehold land at Krishnapatnam Port, agreerment
for sale of land has been executed with Andhra
Fradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation {(ARIC)
on 21.03.2018. The safe deed would be executed anly
upan implementation of the project.

The private land of both Bhavri {Swarupgan)) and
Vatera village has beesn awarded in name of
CONCOR. The required amount has already been
deposited by CONCOR wilh State Government of
Rajasthan for distributing such amount among private
land owners. However, title of faw farnd owners could
not be transferred in the name of CONCOR,; a5 such
land owners are not reporting to the office of Special
Land Acquisition Officer for completing the formalities
and collecting compensation amount. The Company
is pursuing the matter with District Collector and
Special Land Acguisition Offlcer.

Forleasehold land at Kadakola, possession certificate

dated 05.04.2017 was received from Mis Karnataka
Industrial Area Development Board (KIADBS,
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COMNCOR had requested for additional land of 6.22
acres to facilitate rail siding, which is a critical
cemponent for running the concerned MMLF.
However, such land was nol under possession of
KIADB, which delayed the entire process. Later in
February 2018, the marking formalities were
completed and the land was identified for taking over,
for which part payment of Rs.1.75 crores (40% of Rs.
4 .38 crores) has aiready baen made to Mis KIADB in
May 2018, Further, CONCOR has requested aome
changes in certain clauses of the standard lease
format of M/s KiADB, which are under deliberation.
Execution of lease deed for the complets land will take
place as soon as the clarification for such clauses is
received from Mis KIADB.

Forexecyution of lease deed of land at New Mangalora
{though reported by auditors as Land situated at
Whitefield), CONCOR has requested NMPT to amend
or reframe Clause No, 1{C) for which a letter has been
written to the Asst. Estate Office, KMPT vide letter
na. CONJCCPPILEASE DEED/2015-20 dated
02.04.2019. CONCOR is expecting a reply from
NMPT shortly with regand to processing of lease deed.

Point no.
iil (b of
Annexure
Atothe
Indepen-
dent
Auditors'
FReport

The borrower antity {(FHEL) is not in &
capacity to pay interest and principal as
per stipulated terms. The due date of the
loan and interest has been extended
period after peried to avoid default in the
account,

At the end of financial year. four working capital [oans
ameunting to Rs.37.53 crores were recoverable from
M/s FHEL, 2 wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR.
Considering the financial position of lhe subsidiary,
payment of interest against working capital loans of
Rs.37.53 crores has been deferred by the Board of
Diractor (BOD) of CONCOR upte 31.07.2018.

Further, BOD of COMCOR has approved conversion
of cutstanding loan of M/s FHEL of Rs.37.53 crores
along-with interest accrued & due of Rs.17.91 crores
{Met of TDS) as on 31.053.2019 plus further interest
accruals (Met of TDS) on the said loan inte Equity, Lill
such conversion takes piacs.

Though, BOD of CONCOR has approved conversion
of outstanding loan (including interest) of M/s FHEL
into Equity, a business plan has also been finalized for
revival of FHEL which has already started getting
implemented. In this dirgction, in Mareh 2018, the
BOD of CONCOR had approved the said business
plan for re-engineering of FHEL's facility at Rai,
Sonipat, which is proposed to be execulsd in two
phases totalling Rs.44.31 crores. The cost of Phase-|
was Rs.13.45 crores, for which equity infusion by
CONCOR has already has been done. Equity
infusion of balance Rs.30.86 crores under Phase-l)
will be done as perthe funds requirement of FHEL.
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Point no.
iif () of
Annexure
Atothe
Indepen-
denl
Auditors'
Heport

interest amounting to Rs.17.36 croresis
overdue in relation to loan to FHEL for
more than ninety days, According to the
information and explanations given to
us, the company is following up the
recovery of overdue ameount.

Interest amount overdue for rmore than 90 days of
Rs.17.36 crores against the working capital loans to
FHEL of Rs.37.53 crares has been deferred by the
BOD of CONCOR upto 31.07.2019. However, BOD of
CONCOR has approved conversion of outstanding
lban of Mfs FHEL of R$.37.53 crores along-with
interest accrued & due of Rs.17.91 crores (Net of
TODS) as on 31.03.201% plus further interest accruals
{Met of TDS) on the said loan into Equity, till such
conversicn takes place.

Point no.
vii {a) of
Arnnexure
Ate the
Indepern-
dent

AL ditors’
Report

According to the information and
explanations given to us and on the
hasis of our examination of the books of
account of the company, except Building
& Other Caonstruction Worker Cess of
Rs.1.44 crores is outstanding as on 31°
March, 2018 for a period of more than
six months from the date it became
payable, amount deductedfaccrusd in
the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutery dues including
Provident Fund, Employses' Slate
Insurance, lncams Tax, Goods and
Services Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax,
Custom Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess
and any other statutary dues have
generally been regularty deposited
during the vear by the company with
appropriate authorities.

For deposition of Building and olher Construction
Worker Cess of Rs. 1.44 crores, the concemed
authorities have shown their inability in accepling the
dues inthe absence of requisite details such as Name
of the Cortractor, Registration Mumber, Work Order
Copy and Bill etc. Such details are being worked out
and the amount will be deposited once required
details are worked out,

Faint no,
vii {b) of
Annexyre
A to the
Indepen-
dent
Auditors'
Report

According to the information and
explanations given to us, tha following
dues of Income tax and service tax have
not been deposited by the company on
accountof disputes:

- Forum where pending: CESTAT,
Bengaluru

- Mature of Dues: Service Tax

- Amourt {Rs. in crores): 1.48 {one
third share of total disputed amount)

- Perind: September 2002 to June
2008

Amount in dispute represents one third share of
service tax demand related to JWG-ACC, which was
ajoint venture of HAL, CONCOR & MSIL,

The matter is subjudice and is pending before
CESTAT, Bengalury for consideration and
datarmination. Howewvsr, the requirement of pre-
deposit of balance dues has been waived off and stay
has heen granted against recovery during the
pendency of appeal.
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Forumwhers panding: CCE

Mature of Dues: Bervice Tax

Amount {(Rs. in crores): 0, 11Period:
2004 1o 2005

Amount in dispute represents sanvice tax demand for
|CDYDDL {Ludhiana) dated 20.04.2010.

Reply to the Service Tax Department was furnished by
CONCOR on 13.08.2010, Subsequenily, a personal
hearing was attended by CONCOR Officials on
07.10.2010 but na further communication has been
racetved from tha department in this regard fill date.

Forumwhere pending: CCE {Appeals)
Mature of Dues: Sarvice Tax

Amount (Rs. increres) 0.02

FPeriod: January 2004 to March 2004

Amount in dispute represents excess credit utilized in
Provisional ST Retum for the pericd January 2004 to
March 2004,

Reply to the Service Tax Department was fumished by
CONCOR on 09.08.2005 but no further communication
has been received from the department in this regard
till date.

Forum where pending: CCE
Nature of Dues: Service Tax
Amourt{Rs. incrores); 0.20
Fericd: 200506

Amount in dispute represants service tax demand for
ICD/ODL {Ludhiana) dated 21.10.2010.

Reply to the Service Tax Departmeant was furnished by
CONGOR on 09.11.2010 but no further communication
has been received from the department in this regard
till date.

Farumwhere pending: ITAT, Dalhi
Mature of Dues: iIncome Tax
Amount [(Rs.incrores) 661,10

FPeriod: AY 2008-0% and AY 2011-12
toAY 2014-15

Amount in dispute represents disallowances ufs 37,
BOIA and other sections of the LT Act, 1961 under
regular agsessments.

Thase are deparimental appeals and appsals filed by
CONCOR against the orders passed by CIT {Appsal)
on various issues. Demand for appeals filed by
COMNCOR has been paidfadjusted/stayed by the 1T
Department.

Forumwhere pending: CIT{Appeal}
Mature of Dues: Income Tax
Amaount (Rs. in crores). 48.46
Period: AY 2013-14

Amount in dispute represents disallowances mads ufs
143 () read with section 263 of the 1. T Act, 1961,

An appeal has been filed by CONCOR with regard {o
disallowances matle by the Assessing Officer. The
case is pending before CIT {Appeal).

Forum where pending: Income Tax
officer {ITO}

Mature of Dues: Income Tax
Amount (Rs, in crores): 0.69
Period: AY 2006-07

Amountin dispute represents disallowances made u/'s
40 {a)fia}.

Az per order dated 23.02.2018, Hon'ble ITAT has
allowed the itern directing the Assessing Officer (AD}
that if the tax has been deducted and deposited on the
disallowance in AY 2005-06 or has been paid after the
due date of filing of return for AY 2005-08, the claim
may be allowed to that extent in AY 2006-07. The
matter is now pending with |T Department,
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Forum where pending: Income Tax | Amountin dispute represents deduction on account of
officer (ITO) lease rentpaid & disallowance made u/s 40 {a)(ia).
Nature of Dues: income Tax The matter has been referred back to the Assessing

Amourt{Rs . incrares): 1.20 Officer by [TAT/Dethi,
Pariod: AY 204011

By ordar of Board of
CONTAINER CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

Sd/-
Dated : 31.07.2019 {V. Kalyana Rama)
Flace . New Dalhi Chairman & Managing Director



ADDENDUM-II TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT FOR FY 2018-19

Management Replies to the Remarks in the Auditors” Report on Consolidated Financial Statements for FY 2018-19

Fnltri;ts In

-] = 1

Auditors” Auditors’ Remarks Reply of the Management

Report

Point Mote no. 57 to the Consclidated Finanaial | Management's reply may pleass be seen as given
No.1of | Statements of 31" March, 2019 describe | against Point No. 1 of Emphasis of Matter in
Emphasis| jnvestment of Rs. 54.60 crores in equity of | Addendum-|.

af Matter

IGTPL, ajointly controlled entity inwhich
the holding company holds 11.87%
equity, whose net warth has been fully
eroded. Management of the holding
company has not recognized any
impaimmenit in the valug of the assets, asin
the opinion of the management, the
expected present valuz of future cash flows
exceeds the carrying amount of the asset.

Point

No. 2 of
Emphasis
of Matter

Note no. 58 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of 31* March, 2019 describe
that cost of monetization of Scrips
racaivable under Service Export from
India Scheme {SEIS) will not be material
in the view of the management of the
holding company and thersfore the same
will be accounted for in the year of
monetization.,

Managemenlt's reply may please be seen as given
against Point No. 2 of Emphasis of Matter in
Addsndum-l.

Foint

Mo, 3 of
Emphasis
of Matter

We draw aliention to note-53 to the
consanlidataed financial statements,
regarding the uncertainty of outcome of
the legal matter relating to tariff rates and
the liksly impact and adiustments, if any,
required to be made to the consochdated
financial statements in case an adverse
ruling is made against the joint controlled
entity i.e. M/s Gateway Terminal India
Private Limited.

Gateway Terminals india Pvt. Ltd, (GTIPL) is a Jaint
Yenture (JV) of CONCOR and APM Terminals.
COMCOR has an exposure of 26% in the said joint
venture.

Revenue of the JV entity is being determined on the
hasis of the tanff fixed by Tariff Authority for Major
Ports {TAMP) from time to time. TAMP vide its order
dated 19" January, 2012 has notified a reduction in
tariff by 44.28% as compared io the existing rates. In
vierws of the substantial reduction in tariff, the said order
was challenged by the JV in Bombay High Court,
against which the court issued an interim order dated
2" July, 2012 stating "Pending further orders, the
petitionars shall be permitted to charge and coflect the
fariff at the rates prevailing prior to impugned order
dated January 19, 2012, However, the petiioners
shall keep the account of every such transaclion and
in the event of the petitioners not succesding in the
writ petition, colfecfion of any amounts by e
petitioners over and above the tariff prescribed by the
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impugned arder, shall be subfect {o the further ordars
oftfis cott.”

In additicn, a petition has also been filed by the Indian
Private Ports & Terminals Asscciation at Delhi high
court, which is under hearing. The J¥ has also taken
fegal advice about the rmerit available in this case.
Mence, on the basis internal assessment of Jv's
management and the legat advice obtained, the JV
has reasonably good prospects of succeading in the
writ petition filed before Bombay High Court,
Rasultantly, no pravision has been made in the books
of accounts. However, due disclosure has been made
as contingent liability in the notes to accounts,

Foint

MNa. 4 of
Emphasis
of Matter

The auditor of CONCOR Air Limited
{CAL) [subsidiary of the holding company]
has drawn attention that provision for
expenses contains amounts pertaining to
earfier periods starting FY 2013-14 1o
2017-18 amaunting to Rs. 2026.70 Lakh
in all. The detailed justification w.r.1
holding such huge provision in books
along with confirmation from respective
parties is required. Alsg, parly wise
schedules duly reconciled are not
available for certain current liabilities:
Excess Amounts received: Ks. 113.28
Lakh and D.O. Charges payable: Ra.
21.29 Lakh.

(A} The amounts are mainly provisions made in the
earlier years on estimated basis. This incfudes
amount of provision made for revenue sharing &
costibill of services by Mumbai International
Airport Limited (MIALY and amount provided for
other matters. All the above provisions are under
reconciliation and necessary adjustments, if any,
will be made in the future financial statements of
CONCOR Air Limited {CAL).

Further, the fact that "receivables and payables
are subject to reconcilistion foconfirmation™ has
also been disclosed vide note no. 36 to the
financial slatements.

{B) Excess amounts received to the tune of Rs. 113.28
Lakh reflect on account payment received fram
various customers not supported by details and
are as such kept under liabilities. As the
international cargo concession has already
ceased wel 15.04.2018, no further acorual is
heing made on this account, Rather the balance is
reducing reguiarly with the payments made to
customars,

Under international cargo concession, CAL was
collecting D.Q charges on behalf of
airlimesfagents in terms of Standard Ground
Handling Agreement {SGHA) entered with them.
As a ioken of providing collection services, CAL
was Keeping an agreed percentage as CAL
revenue and remaining was provided as payable
ta airlines. As the intemational cargo concassion
has already ceased w.ef 15.04.2018, no further
accrual is being made on this account. Rather the
balance is reducing regularly with the payments
made to aitlinesfagents. Now, CAL is having Rs.
17.28 Lakh against 0.0, charges payable to 11




airlinesfagents out of the total cutstanding of
Rs21.29Lakh ason31.03.2019,

Further, the fact that “receivables and payables
ars subject to reconciliation/confirmation™ has
also been disclosed vide note no. 36 to the
financial statements.

Paint
No. 5 of

Emphasis
of Matler

The auditer of CONCOR Air Limited
{CAL} has also drawn attention to Rebate
expenses amounting to INR 0.20 Crores
have bean provided as payable to Jet
Airways on the basis of approval from the
beard. However, the share of rebate
claimable from MIAL has not been
provided in the books of accounts of
COMNCOR Air Limited.

For the share in rebate claimable from MIAL, CAL has
written a letter daled 22.12.2017 1o MIAL. However, till
date no reply/confirmation has been raceived from
thern. Therefore, due to uncerainty of acceptance
fnon acceptance of CAL request, share in rebate
expenses has not been provided in the books of CAL.

Foint

Mo, &6 of
Emphasis
of Matter

The auditor of CONCOR Air Limited
{CAL) has also drawn altention io the fact
fhat work for concession, operations and
management for International Air Cargo
with MIAL (Mumbai Intarnational Airport
Ltd.} ended on 15-04-18, the account with
MiAL has not been fully reconciled/
seftied, Whereas the claims of INR 34,19
Crores made by MIAL, not accepted by
CONCOR Air Limited has been reflected
under cantingent liabilities, the accounts
are, however, subject to reconciliation &
settlement of account with MIAL.

Out of total contingent liabilities of Rs.34.19 Crores,
Rs.13.06 Crores pertains to International Cargo
Concession and Rs.21.13 Crores pertains to
Domeastic Carge Concession. Contingent fiabkilities of
Rs.13.068 Crores pertaining to International
Concession represent interest on delayed payment,
share on interest income and liguidated damages.
The Concession for operations and managerment for
internaliconal Air Cargo with MIAL {Mumbai
International Airport Ltd.} ended on 15.04.2018,
Howewver, the Domestic Carge Concession is valid till
September 2024, Meanwhile, MIAL has withheld
some amount out of S0 refundable on account of
international cargo concession for want of
reconciliation of their dues.

In this regard, a reconciliation meeting was held on
29.05.2019 between CAL and MIAL in which MIAL
reversed their demand raised lowards  interest on
delayed payment, share on interest income and
liquidated damages totalling to Rs, 10,17 Crore in
Internaticnal Cargo Concession.

Further, MiAL has also agreed to withdraw the
demand towards interest earned on the initial equity
infusion in CAL, due to which entire share on interest
incorne {Rs. 2,15 Crare) billed for Domestic Cargo
Concession has been reversed by MIAL.

Faint Mo.
feh of
Report on
Cther
Legal and

le our opinien, the aforesaid consclidated
financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified in
the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amsnded)
under Section 133 of the Act, except IND
AS-B "Accounting Policies, Changes in

The Reply of the management has been already given
against Point No. 3 {e) of Report on Cther Legal and
Regulatory Requirements inAddendum-l.
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Accounting Estimates and Emors’ o the
extent of Disclosure required for impact
on financial staterments w.rt. IND A8 116
'‘Leases' made apglicable from
01.04 2019 by MCA notification dated
30.03 20149,

Faint no.
1 under
Report
on the
Intemal
Financial
Controls
over
Financial
Reporting

The COMCOR Air Limited (CAL) is
running standalone IT system for revenue
aceounting and for accounting of
receivables etc., which iz not integrated
with the financial package tally. The
company heads 10 integrate the two and
incorperate internal control audit system
to verify the correctness of data.

CAL has standalone Commercial |T system named
Galaxy for capturing of revenue and receivables ete,
which is not integrated with the financial package tally.
At prasant, the systems are working perfectly.
However, tha integration work of Galaxy and Tally has
already been started in the month of March 2019 and
is under testing stage.

Point no.
2 under
Report
on the
[nternal
Financial
Controls
over
Financial
Reporting

Systemn of obtaining debtors and creditors
confitmation is notin place.

Company is regular in sending the confirmation latters
toits debtors and creditors, As far as domestic debtors
are goncerned all the aifines having their office in
Santacruz Air Cargo Complex Terminal {SACT)
compaund are recanciling their accounts on regular
basis. The fact regarding “receivables and payables
are subject to reconciliation ! confirmation”™ has
already been disclosed vide note no. 36 to the
Financial statements,

Paint na,
3 under
Report
on the
Internal
Financial
Controls
over
Financial
Reparting

System of identifying excess provisions
and writing them off is not in place
resulting in huge amount lying outstanding
since last few years.

Review of excess provisions and writing them off is a
continucus process. Some of the liakilities related to
MIAL international operations wera kept an hold for
want of reconciliation. However, the same have been
raconciied in FY 2018-20 and are being accourted for
accardingly.

Point ng.
4 under
Repart
on the
Internal
Financial
Controls
over
Financial
Reporting

System of reconciling the revenue figuras
and input taxes with GST returns ang
information available on the portal is notin
place.

CAL 15 performing reconciliation of revenue figures
and input taxes with GST Returns and tha data
available on GS5T Portal on reqgular basis. Howewer,
the input as well as the cutput GST data as per bocks
of accounts may not always get tallisd with the online
information available on GST portal due to various
reasons, some ofwhich are explained below:

Outward Supplies: GST data related to outward
supplies batween books of accounts and GST Portal
may not get tallied because of inclusion of ability on
reverse charge in GSTR 3B,

Irward Supplies: Similarly, GST data related to inward
supplies between books of accounts and GST Portal
may hot also get tallied on account of blocked credits
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and availing of GST input credit on cash basis, when
the actual payment is made 1o vendors, which may be
different/lower ameunt due to contractual deductions
in hills before releasing payment,

Pointne. | System of accounting and reconciliation | CAL s performing TDS reconciliation on completion of
sunder | of TDS credits and certificates with | assessment for respective financial years. This
Report | advances received against the revenue | ensures that there is no less on account of TDS

m;:j:al needs a lot of strengthening and regular | credits.
Financial follow ups.
Controls
over
Financial
Reporting
By order of Board of
CONTAINER CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
Sdf-
Dated : 31.07.2019 (V. Kalyana Rama)

Flace : New Delhi Chairman & Managing Director




. GONTAINER CORFORATION OF iNDIALIMITED

TR
CONCOR
ANNEXURE 'A'

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:

Indian Railways registered a marginal growth of 5.31% in eriginating loading of cargo, from 1,161,868 million
tonnes in 201718 to 1,223.29 million tonnes in 201 3-14, Criginating containerized cargo transported by rail has
alsa increased fram 54.31 million tonnes in 2017-18 t0 60.34 miltion tonnes in 2018-19 reflecting an increase of
11.10%. The containers handled at al! ports of the country registered a growth of 4.30% from 14 .62 million TEUs
in 2017-18 to 15.41 millien TEUs in 2018-19. While Mundra Port registered a substantial growth of 10.42%,
Pipavav Port registered a growth of 8.22% in containgr handling in 2018-19 as compared to 2017-18. The
largest container handling port of the country, JN Port also recorded a growth of 8. 21%, from 4.83 million TEUs in
201718 to 5.13 million TEUs in 2018-1%. In value terms, total exports of the counlry went up by 8.068% from
303,53 billion dollars in 2017-18 to 331.02 billion dollars in 201819, Impors of the country have also increased
by 8.959% from 45267 billion doilars in 21 7-18 to 507 44 billion dollars in 2018-13. CONCOR experienced a rise
in export of commodities such as Stainless Steel, Soyabean Meal, Paper, Furniture, Coir Products, Fabrics, ete.
While import of cormmmodities such as Solar Module, Waste Paper, Aluminum Scrap, Aulo Parts, Plastic Goods,
Polyester Goods, efc. increased, import of Teak Logs, Furniture, Float Glass, Printing Paper and Heavy Matal
Scrap experienced a downfall.

In the above mentioned extemal business environment, your Company carfed 43.50 milion tonnes of
containenzed carge by rail during FY 201 8-19, rising from 38.87 million fonnes carried in 2017-18, thereby
reflecting a growth of 8.83%. Yeur Company achieved throughput of 3.83 million TEUs in FY 2018-192 as against
3.53 millign TEUs in FY 2017-18 i.e. an increase of 8.42%. Your Company also continued to place great
emphasis on providing total logistics solutions to its customers by expanding the business in all segmaents of
transport valug chain, both in EXIM and Domestic sector. Emphasis was also on optimal utilization of
infrastructure with complete cosl control, combined with strategy on expansion into other segments of value
chain with overall abjective of making logistics services effective, efficient and compatitive. In 2018-19, yvour
Company has signed a Memorandum of Understanding {MOLN with M/s Kandla International Containar
Terminal Pvt. Ltd. (KICTPL), wherein CONCOR shall have exclusive rail access to run the container rakes
between KICTPL terminal at Kandla and various ICDs/Ports for movement of EXIM containers by rail. At the
same tims, your Company has started its Ceastal shipping movement from Kandla-Mangalore-Cochin-
Tuticorin-Kandla, CONCOR will alsa give hinterland connectivily from these 4 ports by rail and road, Coastal
shipping will make logistics cost more economisal to the trade,

EXIM & DOMESTIC BUSINESS:

Caring 201 8-19, the EXIM container traffic handled alall Indian ports increased by 8.64% as compared to 2017-
18. Your Company recorded a growth of 8.00% in EXIM handiing from 3.00 million TEUs in 2017-18 to 3.24
million TEUs in 2018-19. In terms of tonnage, the increase in EXIM originating loading was 8 87% from 32.70
million tonnes in 20117-18 to 35 60 million tonnes in 2018-19,

The total traffic handled in domestic segment was 534,160 TEUs in 2018-19 as against 529,952 TEUs in 2017-
18i.e. an increase of 10.23%. In terms of tonnage, the increase in domestic ariginating loading was §.68% from
.26 million tonnes in 2017-18 to 7.88 million tonnes in 2018-19. During the same perod, domestic
containerized loading of Indian Railways experienced a growth of 8.39% from 1097 million tonnas in 20t 7-18to
11.39 million tonnes in 2018-19, The originating domestic traffic bocked in 2018-19 was 2,865,251 TEUs as
against 2,66, 480 TEUs in previous vear i.e. a growth of 7.42%. Our market share in total domestic business
increased from66.27% in 2017-18t0 66.36% in 2018-19.

With stiff competition from PCTOs, it is big challenge to retain our rmarket share in rail containerized
transportation. Your Company is fully prepared to meet these challenges by taking innovative steps in marksting
and meeling customer's expectations towards reliable and cost effective services with increased focus an
double stack operations and providing valua added services to customers.
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Your Company is standing at very strang fundamentals and is creating a very robust infrastructurs for handling
multimodal logistics business in the country. We are very hopeful that we will manage to meet the ambitious
targets set in Mermorandum of Understanding signed by the Company for the year 2013-20 with the Govt. of
India.

INFERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

CONCOR has robust Internal Control Systems and processes in place for smooth and efficient conduct of
businass and it complies with relevant laws and regulations. It has well dscumented system of internal financial
controls in place, in the form of delegation of powers, palicies and procedures that cover critical as well as
important activities of financial and other operating functions. The procedure are in the form of manuals,
guidetines, delegation of powers and T system and controls which are effected through people operating in
various departments within the Company at different levels at each stage of the processes. These are designed
to ensure compliance to the internal financial controls as detailed inthe Companies Act, 2013, CONCOR usesa
state-of-the-art Enterprise Resource Planning {ERP} system that connects all parts of the organization, to
record data for accounting, consclidation and management information purposes. The organization
continuously assess the effectiveness of its internal controls through extensive iMernal audits, which are being
conducted on regular basis by expsrienced independent firms of Chartered Accountants in close co-ordination
with Company's own internal audit Department. The internal audits are conducted as per the detailed well
documentad audit program which has been duly approved by Audit & Ethics Committee A well defined internal
control framework has been developed identifying key controls and independent external auditors verifies the
adaquacy and effectiveness of the internal financiat conlrol system through regular periodic audit and system
review, provides assurance on the compliance of internal polices & procedures of the Company and certify the
appropriateness of internal controls. Internal audit firms directly report to the management at higher Jevet, The
functioning of the interal auditas well as internal financial control systems are periodically reviewed by the Audit
& Ethics committee to ensure comprehensive coverage of the areas and necessary directions are issued
whenever required to further strengthen the internal financial cantrol system & procedures keeping in view the
dynamic business environment in which the Company operates. Reports of the auditors are reviewed,
compliances are ensured and the reports along with the compliances are apprised to Audit & Ethics committee
periadically. Proactive steps have been taken to ensure compliance with various upcoming regulations through
deployment of cross functicnal teams. The Company at all times encourages the employees to adopt fair,
compliant and ethical practices. In addition, implementation and effectiveness of internal financial controls
during 201819 was also reporled by the internal and statutory Auditors of the Company. Further, to discuss
various matters and assess the audit functions in the Company, the Audit & Ethics Committee is meeting Internal
and Statutory Auditors of the Company both in the pressnce of Company management and separately,

FIXED ASSETS:

_ Year ended March 31 ' 2019 2018 %age Growth
Original Cost of Assets 5,703.81 | 4,733.21 20.51%
Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization 1,509.12 | 1,084.82 39.11%
Net Fixed Assets 419469 | 3,648.39 14.97%

Note: As per IND AS, Net Block of Fixed Assets as on the date of transition i.e. 01.04.2015 has been considerad
as original cost of Assets i.2. Gross Block and Assets are re-classified.

An amount to the tune of Rs.972.47crores was capilalized during the year. The main additions were on account
of devetopment/ expansion of terminal infrastructure, purchase of Wagoens! Handling equipments and |T
Infrastructure ste.




WAGONS:

During the year 2018-18, 180 nos. of BLC wagans and 320 nos. of BLL wagons were added to the existing flsat
of CONCOR owned wagons, increasing the helding to 13,417 numbers of High Speed Wagons. Further, 470
numbers of BLCM wagons have been faken on Lease for the period of 10 years. Total wagons
(BLC+BLUM+BLL+BFKN+BVZI} holding including leased wagons has gone upto 15,498 as on 31.03.2019,

INVENTORIES:

The Company being a service comparny, does not have stock in trade. The inventory is represented by stores
and sparas kept by the Company for maintenance of its own equipments,

SUNDRY DEETORS:

Sundry debtors are 1.28% of the operating income of the year. Provision for doubtful debts, wherever
considered necessary, has been made.

CASHAND BANK BALANCE:

The Company keeps majority of its cash & bank balances in short term fixed deposits with the banks. These cash
reserves have been retained for financing the creation of infrastructure and expansion plans as well as
investments in new businesses and alllances, including in J¥s/Subsidiaries as perthe plans of the Company.

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

The current liabilities of the Company comprises of financial and other liabilities. The financial liabilities are of the
nature of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liahilities,

The borrowings comprises of amount of working capital loan taken by the Company. During the year the Board of
Director of the Company approved raising short term working capital Loan for participating in Freight Advance
Scheme of Indian Railways. Accordingly, the Company has raised a short term working capital loan of Rs. 700
crores in March, 2018 from the bank, which has been included in the current liabilittes under the heading
bomowings. As a security for this working capital loan, cash flow receivables to the extent of Rs. 700 crores were
lendered as primary security and the tax fres bonds available with the Company were tendered as collaterat
security. The above working capital loan along with interest has already besn repaid by the Company in May,
2019, The company got benefitted from early repayment of above loan as it has resulted in lesserinterast outgo.,

The irade payable wers amounting to Rs.353.13 crores at the end of the year, which during previous year were
Rs.275.94 crores, it is the amount payable to the vendors and suppliers of the Company.

The other financial liahilities which are on account of emplovee related dues, security depositreceived and other
payables on account of capital works, revenue, etc. was Rs.618.01 crores at the end of the year, which was
Rs.484.27 crores in the previous year.

The other current liabilities of the Company comprises of amount due towards advances/ deposits from
customers against the services, statutory dues and unearned revenue. The halance on this account at the end of
the current year was Rs.351.30 crores, which was Rs.378.90 crores in the previous year.

INCOME:

Income from operations has increased hy 11.77% over FY 2017-18. Between the two business segments i.e.
EXIM & Domestic, EXIM segment contributes the major share of freight revenues. The increase was mainly on
account ofincrease in revenue frorm rail freight, handling and other operating income.

EXPENSES:

Terminal and other service expenses have increased by 8.38% over FY 2017-18. The increase was due to
higher operating expenses coresponding toincrease in ravenus sarned by the Company during the year,

FINANCE AND OTHER EXPENSES:

Finance cost has increased from Rs.0.09 crore to Rs.0.74 crore in FY 2018-19. The other expenses have
increased by 5.30% over FY 2017-18,
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EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION:

The employee cost has increased by 21.19% over FY 2017-18 which is on account of annual incremants,
promation, increase in dearness allowance, provision for employes benefits, performance related pay on
revised basic, efc.

RATIO ANALYSIS:
Details of significant financiai ralios along with explanation thereof are as under:

Ratios FY 2018-19 FY 201718 Change {%)
Debtars Turnover ratio {Times) 87.52 114,33 {-123.45
Inventory Turnover Ratio (Times) Not Applicable

Interest Coverage Ratio {Times) : 2.283.27 15,3871 Aoy BEAT
Current Ratio {Times} 237 297 {-}20.18
Debt Equity Ratio (Times) .07 - -
Operating Profit Margin (%) 25 86 2397 7.9
Net Profit Margin (%} 16.84 16.17 417

AChange in interest coverage ratio is due to increase in interast expense resulting from availing short term
working capital loan in March-2019, which was NIL infinancial year 2017-18.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO:

During the year the total foreign exchange outge on account of various business related activities, including
irmport of stores and capital goods was Rs 236 31 crores which was Rs 52.10 crores during the previous year.

TAXATION:

Current and deferred income tax pravision for the year have been made in accordance with the provisions
contained in Income Tax Act, 1961 and the relevant Indian Accounting Standard. Accordingly, current tax,
including earlier years tax adjustment and deferrad income tax provisions have been worked out as Rs.484.13
croresand {-) Rs. 10,66 crores respectively.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT INHUMAN RESOURCES:

The Company has formulated new HR polices and rationalized the existing policies to contribute towards the
welfare of the employees. The major policy updation has been enumerated below:

» The Company has formulated Egual Opportunity Policy for Rights of Persons with Disabilities {PwD).
¥ Non-Functional Upgradation Policy for all Grades has been rationalized.

#  Study has been undertaken for assessing the level of CONCOR under People Capability Maturity Medel
{PCMM}.

*  CONCOR Medical Attendance Rules have been updated and rationalized.

= Working days and office timings has been rationalized.

» The Company has formulated policy for undertaking internship in CONCOR.
# Sports Policy has baenformulated.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

CONCOR is committed to implement its CSR policy in letter and spirit by taking up various welfare projects,
including on environment sustainability for the betterment of all its stakeholders as well as weaker sections of the
society to enable them to grow and prosper together. In this regard, detailed particulars of the work done have
been provided in the annual report on CSR activities forming part of Directors' report to the shareholders.
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RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has an elaborated Enterprise Risk Management {ERM) framewoerk in place. As & part of
implementation of the ERM framework and in terms of SEBI (Listing Qbligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, CONCOR has in place a Board leve| Risk Management Committee {(RMCY which reports to
the Board about the risk elements, their mitigation plans, etc. at regular intervals. The RMC has been entrusted
with the responsibility to identify and review the risks and formulate action plans and strategies for risk mitigation.
The main function of RMC is o monitor various risks and to examineg the adequacy of risk management policy
and practices adopted by the Company and also to initiats action for mitigation of risks arising in operations and
cther key functional areas of the Company. The Company takes responsibility fo proactively identify and
address risks and opportunities to protect and create value for its stakeholders. All the terminat heads of the
ocperating units are required to regularly define the effectiveness or non-effectiveness of control faction plans
fermulated to mitigate the nsk elements, The EEM reports are reviewed and evaluated by the RMC periadically
and main tisks identifled by the RMC are appnised to Board of Directors,

Some of the key risks which the Company faces and the corresponding strategies undertaken for their mitigation
by the Company are as under:

'Assuciatepl Risk Event o s '_Mitigaﬂon Plan

Abnormally low profit margins | - Develop new streams of business,
for Domestic due to uncontrolfable | . Generate traffic on empty flow directions,
factors + End-te-End lagistics secluticns to customers.

inadequate workforce availability | + Better employee benefits and services,

due to resignation of employses /| | Batier work emvircnment,

Costof Replacing Resigned Emplovees i .
P 9 9 pIoy + Better growth oppontunities for desenving employees,

=  Employee Wellhess programmes, e g. sports, yoga,
participation in marathans, ete,,

+  Prompt redressal of grievances,

+ Speedy HR Services through HR automation in employee
portal.

Threat from competition - Approach custorners for bringing in new business, focus on
long term volume commitments by signing of agresments,
competitive pricing and VDS schemes,

+ Designing new service offering (including additional service
leading to extension of value chain),

+  Exploting new streams and their business potentials, service
guarantee with time tabledtrains.

System downtime leading to adverse | ~ Develop preventive & corrective maintenance plan,
impact on operations - Maintaining standby servar, wherever reguired,
= Full proof security to prevent vandalism,

Defay in procursment of containers | + Periodic review of requirement,

/ Handling equipments / spares | . Turnaround time for procuremant of conainers has been
may lead to ioss of potential revenue defined in the contract along with penalty clause,

(Procurement of equipments} +  Regular follow up with vendors.

Potential revenue loss due to iimited | +  Development of new logistics parks and hasioning with ports
availability of terminals/eritical for new terminals,

terminals acquirsd by competitor + Strategic tie-ups atlocations wheare we are not present,
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STRENGTHS:
CONCOR's key strengths are as under:-

» Fairly large infrastructure base of rolling stock, especially the ownership of high-speed container flats
{BLC/BLL wagons) and specialized container handling equipment etc, The Gompany owns a total of over
332 rakes including 299 high speed (BLC + BLL + BLCM) and 33 BFKHN rakes asen31.03.2019.

¥ Large network of "State-of-the-Art” terminals located across the country, giving it an unparalleled reach and
penetration. Distinct cost advantage offered by CONCOR CFSs 1o users by virtue of their locations within
ICD premises.

= Over 30 years of presence in organising efficiant rail movement of containers & highly professional terminal
management and operations of ICDs, combinad with the experienca of coordinaling fliasoning with Indian
Railways, Customs and other Cantral & State Government agencies.

» Highly committed team of experienced and skilled manpower having in-depth knowledge of multi modal
logistics business with a customer sensitive cutlook. Ability to provide choice of mode of transportation
between railf road! sea {coastal) air as per the neads of the customer.

Lean and Lhin organization with reduced fixed costs.
Strong presence in vintually all container handling ports in India having forged good working partnerships
with these ports.

»  CONCOR is also making foray ininternational market for setting up MMLPs.

¥ Providing Multilayer Stacking for storage of customer's cargo.

» Has established and sustained long term relations with credible high volume custorners in the domestic
sector. Major alliances have also been established with international shipping lines and ather logistics
service providers.

» Has a large fleet of over 25,380 owned containers for domestic traffic. The Company is in the procass of
purchasing 14,000 more containers.

3 Customized software applications for both EXIM and Domestic segments with internst based customer
interface & full EDI connectivity with Customers, Indian Railways and Customs intstfaces.

# Blue chip Company with good market capitalization is being viswed as a very good financial proposition by
investors.

WEAKNESSES :

» Overdependence on a single rail corridor for Exim Business. Any disruption in this sector can have sericus
repereussion on business.

» Large dependence on Railways as a transporter leaves COMCOR vulnerable to increases in haulage
charges & policy changes. To overcome the same, CONCOR has to actively evaluate entry into “end-to-
end" road transportation segment to augment its basic nature of providing inter modal comprehansive
integrated rail based services.

= Al the same, vagaries of road based logislics makes it difficult for CONCOR to directly snter this sector —
especially given its PSU status and hence leaves itdependent on other agancies.

» (Gaps between quality of service and the ever growing expsctations of the customers. At some places
outsourced services are not of desired level on account of differences in the objectives of the service
praviders and CONCOR,

»  Overdependence on EXIM traffic & resultant exposure to vagaries of international business/trade trends.

= Land Acquisition —Abig constraint.

= Difficulty in arranging return cargo, emply running.
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OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS:

Your Company is an undisputed leader in the field of Multi-modal Lagistics in India with the largest available
network of “State-of-the-Art" intermodal terminals acress the country providing an unparalleled reach and
penetration, combined with a strong presence at almost all container handling ports. It has strong financiats and
highly committed team of experienced and skilled manpower having in-depth knowledge of multi modal logistics
business. Availability of fairly large fleet of rolling stock {especially high-speed BLG/BLL/BLCM wagons),
specialized container handling equipments, containers and fully computerized commercial operations with
interngt based customer and customs interface provide it a strong competitive advantage in availing
opporunities for further growth,

There is severe competition from the Read Sector specifically for short lead and light weight cargo and the
Export — Import imbalance leading to empty running. Your Company s well poised o tap the new business
opportunities arising from potential Growth in EXIM container volumes and the likely increase in container traffic
tue to development of Dedicated Freight Corridors {DFC). Its initiative to use the terminal capacity for promoting
double stack movement between hinlerland & gateway ports of Gujarat have helped increase rail co-efficient &
make its services competitive.

It is expected that the economic recovery coupled with growth in the manufacturing sector, which is likely to gain
impetus with the 'Make in India’ campaign, will give boost to the growth plans of the Company. The growing
market potential in air carge. automobile sector, food supply chain management, coastal shipping and
Chstribution Logistics offers scope for diversification which will be effectively worked upon,

The pulting back of the Indian Econormy on high growth paths is bound to result in additional transpart demands.
This, coupled with the anticipated changes in profile of traded goods -from intermediate to finished goods, is
bound to increase the opportunities for cortainerization in domestic market. Added to this, the large number of
Industrial Parks, SEZs stc. being established by State Governments and Ports, offers the excellent opportunity
far adorning the rcle of Logistics Partner for the statesfindustrial estates through arrangements of mutual
benefits to your Company.

FUTURE QUTLOQOK:

During the year, CONCOR has started its Coastal Shipping movement from Kandla— Mangalore-Gochin-
Tuticorin- Kandla. CONCOR will also give hinterland connectivity frem these 4 porls by rail and road. Coastal
shipping will make logisties cost more economical to the trade.

The Company has identified 20 nodes for Distribution Logistics business across tndia under which long duration
partnership amangements with warehouse partners will be done to cperate modern warehousa facilities under
CONCOR's pan India network of warchouses.

Itis trying to develop ICDs in Egypt in a consortivm with PSAGf Singapore and one local partner namely Hassan
Alarm of Egypl.

The Company is exploring the possibilities for providing logistics services in Bussia for which an Mol) has been
signed between CONCOR and JSC RZD Logistics, Russia on the Indian and Intemational Corridors, but not
limited to the International Marth South Transportation Corridor (INSTC).

Container frain services to Bangladesh has been started and it is also planning to start a new route to Nepal via
Batnaha- Joghani- Biratnagar for the transit cargo of Nepal through india’s Gateway ports.

With the changed scenario an infarmation Technology (IT), CONCOR has taken new inifiatives by way of
implamenting paperless working in its offices with the use of  E-Office Application, a digital workplace solution.
From this new initiztive all the paper works inthe Regions and their respective terminals will be digitalized.

CONCOR has implemented &-payments of contractor bills and efforts are being made to inter-link the
contractors' bills through digital mode.

Mobile based App for first mile last mile connectivity is being launched shortly.

STRATEGY TOMEET THE CHALLENGES:

Aqainst the backdrop of above ouliook, your Company has formulated a strategy for further growth with
profitability, despite the challenges of an increasingly competitive market. The broad strateqgy include:
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Setting up of Mult-Modal Logistics Parks {MMLPs} at vantege locations along the Dedicated Freight
Corridors {DFC) and at major industrial estates,

Setting up of Private Freight Terminals (PF T} with road bnidging selutions.

Increase in double stack long haul trains and development of Rail Transshipment Hubs {(RTH;.

To Make CONCOR a One Stap for Lagistics Solution and praviding Services atthe Customer's Doorstep.
Providing more and more Value Addition Services such as cross docking, wrapping, labeling, pallstisalion,
bar coding, inventory management, KYCL, mobile APP and its customization to the requirements of the
customers.

ToVenture into E-Busingss.

Tomake aforay in Integrated Logistics and Manufacturing Zones (ILMZ).

Increase in Revenue by diversification and product differentiation.

Tor venture Intarnationally.

Further growing in the air cargo business.

Providing inngvative 3PLA4PL solutions to the customers.

More extensive and innovative use of Information technolegy in various activities especially for minimizing
transaction costs and meeting customer expectations.

CONCOR has taken the initiative for using the Ice Battery fechnotogy for storage of cargo under controdled
atmosphere.

New integrated gate complex at CFS Dronagiri of Western Region was inaugurated which will facilitate
smooth & faster movement of trucks, convenient documentation and real time tracking of containers, thus
providing value addition totrade.

CONCOR has commenced its regular weekly service of Coastal Movement from ¥West coast (Kandla to
Tuticorin Port via Mangalore & Cochin}. Caastal Shipping will make logistics cost more economical. Further,
to facilitate the trade, CONCOR has plans to start coastal movement at East coast i.e. from Tuticonn-
Katupalli-Krisnapatnam-Paradip-Haldia-Tuticorin.

MEDIUM AND LONG TERM STRATEGY:

Fd
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e

The Company is exploring new business avenues for Coastal Shipping and Distribulion Logistics.
The Company is planning to increase its presence on PAN India basis by establishing new terminals.

The Company plans to enhance more and more doubls stack cperations for efficiant utilization of its Rolling
stocks, improve dwelltime of containers on Port and its terminals ata reduced logistics cost.

The Company also endeavours to venture into the area of ILMZ {Integrated Logistics and Manufacturing Zone}.

The Company is closely studying the freight designs being evolved for bulk transportation of Cement,
Aggregate, Liguid cargo and Auto cars ste. for new opportunities.

The Company is also planning for it's off shore presence inthe neighbouring countries.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Staternents in the Directors' Report and Management Discussion & Analysis, describing the Company's
shjectives, projections and estimatas, expectations, predictions ete. may be “farward looking statements” within the
meaning of the applicable laws and regulations, Forward looking statements contained herein are subject to certain
tisks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected inthe forward-locking
statements. Actual rasults, performances or achievements may vary materially from these expressed orimplied due
to economic conditions, Government policies and other incidental factors such as litigation and industrizl
relation, etc. Readers are cautioned not to place undue conviction on the forward looking statements.

By order of Board of
CONTAINER CORPORATION OF [NDIA LIMITED

Sd-

Dated : 31.07.2019 {V. Kalyana Rama}

FPlace : New Delhi

Chairman & Managing Director
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ANNEXURE 'B’

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CONCOR is 2 Navratna Company and has established a sound framework of Corporate Governance. We
believe that Corporate Governance is about mainfaining valuable relationship and trust with all Stakehoiders
with the commitment to maximize stakeholders' value be it a sharghaolder, employee, supplier, customer,
investor community or pelicymsker. CONCOR's commitment to follow the good Corporate Governance
practices is based upon transparency, fairness, conscience, team work, professionalism, equality and
accountability paving the way for adhering 1o the best standards and building confidense armong all the
stakeholders which is necessary to achieve its chjectives. In addition to adhering to the provisions of SEBI
{Listing Obligalions and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [SEBI (LODR) Regulations], it is also
following Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises {DPE), Ministry of
Heavy Industrics and Public Enterprises, Government of India. The pariculars of Company's report on
Corporate Governance are as under:

CORPORATE PHILOSOPHY:

The Corporate Governance in CONCOR is based upon transparency, full disclosure, independent monitoring &
fairness to all. The Company conducts its activities in an ethical and responsible manner towards sustainable
value creation for stakeholders within the prevalent regulatary framework. 1t has always believed in creating a
frameworic of best policies, practices, structures and ethicg in the organization. TEAM CONCOR subscribes ko
the carporate valuas and imbibes themin its conduct regularly.

The guiding principles of Corporate Gavernance framework at CONCOR are based upon compliance of laws
regulations in letter and spirit, adopting transparant systems/ practices, to promote and safequard the interests
of all stakeholders, integrity and sthical behavior of all personnel and having a climate of trust and confidence by
means of ransparert and timely disclosura of information.

CONCOR is a competitive, customer-friendly and development-criented organization whose objective is to
provide efficient and reliable multimodal logistics support for the country's EXIM and Domestic trade and
commearce. It uses best of the technology 1o provide logistics services, adheres to highast level of safety in
operations, maintains good health of jits employees and provides a clean and green environmant for a better
tomarrow.

Corporate Governance in lhe Comparry has been strengthened by formulating, implementing and updating
various policies viz. Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Parsonnel, Code of Conduct
for Regulating and Reporting Trading by Insiders and for Fair Disclosuras 2015 and Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil
Mechanism. The Company regularly takes steps for furtherance of goals of Corporate Governance like e-
tandaring, onling vigilance clearance, online application for recruitment, customer grievance radressal system,
SMS based container query, emailing annual reports & notices, e-filing for commercial systems, ets. All these
initiatives, together with meaningful CSR activities and sustainable development policies followed by the
Company has enabled your Company to eam the trust and goodwill of its investors, business parthers,
employees and the communities inwhich it operates.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

CONCOR's Govermnance Structure broadly comprises of the Board of Directors and the Committees of the
Board at the apex leve! and the management structures at the operational level. The Board of the Company
canstanily endeavors to set goals and targets aligned to the Company's Mission — "Our mission is ta join with
our community partners and stake holders to make CONCOR a company of vutstanding quality. We do
this by providing responsive, cost effective, efficient and reliable loglstics solutions to owr customers
through synergy with our community partners and ensuring profitability and growth. We strive to be the
first choice for our customers. We will be firmly committed to cur social responsibility and prove worthy
oftrustreposed inus”. Qur sthosis “Customer Value Creation™,

Beard of Directors provides vision, ieadership and guidancs and finalizes the long term strategic plans, reviews
and monitors corperate performance, ensure regulatory compliances and safeguards the interests of the
stakeholders of the Company. CONCOR is headed by an Executive Chairman and Managing Director and four
functional directors i.e. Director (Domestic Division}, Director {International Marketing ang Operations}, Director
{Projects and Services)and Director (Finance) & CFO.
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Pursuant to Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013 CONCOR is a Govermnment Company as 54.80% of its
total paid up share capital is held by President of India. Appointment/nomination of all the Directors in CONCOR
is being done by the President of India, through the Ministry of Railways. The Articles of Associalion stipulates
that the number of directors shall not be less than five and not more than fourteen.

Al Part-time Non-official (Independent) Directors who are normally appointed for a period of three years have
adequate qualifications, expertise and experience which enable them to contribute effectively to the
management of the Company. They play very important rele in deiiberations at Beard and Committee meetings
angd effectively contribute to the decisions through their expertise in various figlds. They are part of various
committees constituted by the Board which are Audit & Ethics Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committes, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committes and C3R Committee.  In
terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Audit & Ethics Commillss and Nomination & Remuneration Committee
are chaired by an independent Director.

As on 31.02.2019, the constitution of Board of Dirsctors of CONCOR was not in conformity with the
reguirements of SEBI {LODR} Regulations as well as Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by DPE, as
the number of independent directors were not 30% of the total strength of the Board.

The Company has been regularly requesting the Ministry of Railways, Government of India, for appointment of
requisite number of independent directors on its Board. During the year, one independent director namely Sh.
Deepak Shetty was appointed on the Board of the Company for a period of three years w.e f. $4.07.2018 and
two independent directors namely Sh. Kamlesh Shivii Vikamsey and Sh. Sanjeev S. Shah completed their
tenure of three years on 31.03.2019. Subsequently Shri Kamlesh Shivji Vikamsey and Shri Sanjeev 5. Shah
were re-appointed by Ministry of Railways vide its order dated 11.07 2012 as non-official independent Director
w.e.f. 01.04 2019 for a period of one year. In additicn in terms of Ministry of Railways order dated 11.07.2018
Shri Jayasankar M. K. was appointed as non-official independent Director by the Board on 31.07.2018 for a
period of three years ending on 07.07 2022, With these appointments now the Company is in compliance with
the provisions of SEB| (LODR) Regulations and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance regarding
composition of its Board.

The Company has a weall laid down procedure for decision making by ihe Board and its Committees. The
Board/Committee meetings are convened by giving appropriate notice, after securing approval of the Chairman
of the Board/Committee as the case may be. The Agenda notes are given to the Directors well in advance forthe
meetings of the Board and Committees thereof for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decision at the
meetings. Sometims additionalfsupplementary agenda item(s) are also permitted. In order to address specific
urgent nesds, meetings are also convened at a shorter notice. In case of urgency sometimes, resolutions are
also passed by circulation, which are later nated in the next Board/Committee meeting. Whenaver required the
departmental headsfsenior management officialsfexperts are also invited to provide additional inputs or give
presentations on the matters being discussed in the meetings of the Board/ Commiltee of the Board. The
Mesetings of the Board of Directors are normally held at Registered Office of the Company. The Board meets at
laast ohee in & quarter to review the guarterly performance of the Company and other items on the agenda.
Additional meetings of the Board are also held whenever necessary.

The quantum and quality of information supplied by the Management to the Board and its committees goes well
beyond the requirement stipulated in the SEBI (LODR} Regulations,

The information being provided to the Board inter-alia include the following:

a. Capital and Revenue budgets and any updatas.
Quarterly rasults forthe Company, including segmental performance.
Minutes of meetings of Audit committee and ather committees of the board,
Minutes of the board meetings of the subsidiary companies,
Status of on-going Arbitration cases.

0 a6 o

Quarterly status of isk managemeant and mitigation plans.
Status of major statutory and commercial claims on the Company.

= @

Particulars of Related Party transactions.
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Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including any
judgmentor arder involving substantial amaunts and which may have passed strictures on the conduct
of the Company.

Status of joint venturas alerg with their perforrmance.

—

k. Saleofmaterial nature of investments, subsidiaries, assets, which is notin normal course of business.
I Majorinvestments, formation of subsidiaries and Joint Ventures, Strategic Alliances, etc.

Quarterly Repott on Investment of Funds,

Appointment of Directors and KMPs.,

Compliance of various |aws by the Company.

Action taken report on matters desired by the Board,

Changes in significant accounting policies and practices and reasons forthe same.

a8 o P o3

Disclosure of interests made by diractors to the Cormpany.
Quarterly report on Corporate Govermnance filed with the Stock Exchanges.

2]

t.  Quartetly report an investors Grievance redressal filed with the Stock Exchanges.
u.  Allather information required to be presented to the Board forinformation or approval.

Mo Director of the Company helds office at the same time as director in more than twenty {(20) Companies. No
Director of the Campany is a member in more than ten {10) committees or is a Chairman of more than five (5)
committees across all Companies in which hafshe is a director.

As on 31% March, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of five Executive functional Directors,
ieluding a Chaimman and Managing BHrector, two part-time Qirectors {Government Nominea) and six part-time
Mon-Official {Independent) Directors including one woemen Director.

The directors on the Board are appointed by Government of India by fallowing due procedure. The Board of
Directors of the Company comprises of highly professional and competent persons with vast experience in
different fields of managemesnt. The credentials of the Board of Directors have been given in the annual report of
the Company and same have also been placed on the website of the Company.

DPE vide its OMs F. Mo, 18 {(17W2005-GM, dated 24.05 201 8 and 18.07.201 8 had mandated ta hold at |east one
or two Board Meeting{s)¥Strategic Meet{s) or Conference(s) etc. at any of the prescribed lecations lo boost
tourism sectar of the country. In compliance of requirement of said DPE's OM, one meeting of the Board was
convened during tha year at Mahabalipuram.

The Board met 7 (Seven) times, on the dates mentioned below, for transacting various businesses during the
financial year2018-19:

Board Meeting No. Board Meeting Dates
198 30.042018
1949 26.07 2018
200 30.08.2018
201 30102018
202 2012 2018
203 120220189
204 25.03.2(19
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

As a Government of (ndia Undertaking, the functional Directors are appointed by the President of India through
Ministry of Railways. Their remuneration is drawn as per Industrial Dearness Allowance (IDA} pay-scales and
tetms and conditions determined by the Government. The Payment made to the functional Directors of the
Company includes performance incentive, as per the policy of the Campany, which is applicable to all lhe
employees of the Company and is based upon performance parameters. The details of remuneration of
functional Directors for the financial year 2018-19 are asunder:

{Figures in Rs. Lakhs)

Salary & . { Contribution

Name of the Director ¥ Perquisites toPF& | Total
Allowances Benefits

Shri V. Kalyana Rama,

Chairman and Managing Director 78.59 2.74 6.55 67.88

Shri Pradeap K. Agrawal,

Director {Domestic Division) _ 78.74 2.34 6.86 87.94

Shri Sanjay Swarup,

Director {Int. Marketing & Cperations) £9.93 2.10 6.08 68.11

Shrl Rahul Mithal, .

Director (Projects & Services) 57.83 2.1 611 - 66,15

Shri Manoj Kumar Dubey,

Director {Finance} & CFO 17.50 0.13 2 91 19.84

w.ef 31.10.2018)

Note: The above remuneration does not include performance incentive benefits payable to the whole time
Functional Directors as employees of the Company as par the policy applicable to all employees ofthe Company
as per DFPE Guidelines.

The Government Nominee Direciors do not draw any remuneration from the Company. During the year 2018-
19 the sitling fee being paid to independent Directors was reviewed and the sitting fee being paid at present to
part-time non-official Dirgctors (Independent) is Rs.40,000/- per meeting of ihe Board and Audit & Ethics
Committee and Rs.30,000{- per mesting for cther Committee mesting, including separate mesting of
Independent dirsclor. In addition the incidental expenses related to their travel and stay were also borne by the
Company.

The details of sitting fee paid to part-time nen-official (independent} Directors, for attending meetings of the
Board of Directors and Committee(s) thereof, during the year are given below:

Name of the Directors {Figures in Rs. Lakhs*)
Shri Kamlesh Shivijl Vikamsey 8.05
8hri Sanjeev 3. Shah 6.30
Ms. Vanita Seth 485
Shri Lov Verma 7.25
Shri Anjaneya Prasad Mocherla 490
Shri Deepak Shetty 4 00

*gxcitding appficable tax,




MEETING OF INDEPENDENT HRECTORS:

In terms of provisions under the code of independent Directors under Companiss Act, 2013 and SEBI {LODR,)
Regulations the independent Diractors are required to meet at least once in a financial year. Accordingly, a
meeting of independent Directors of the Company was held on 12.02.2019 without the presence of Chairman &
Managing Director, funclional, Gowvt. Directors and the manzgement team. The meeling was attended by all the
independent Directors as existed on the date of the meeting, except Shri A, P. Mocherla dus to some personal
exigencies. In the said meeting, the independent Directors discussed the matters to be taken up at the separate
meeting of Independent Directors in terms of Companies Act 2013, SEBI {LODR} Regulations, 2015 and DPE
Guidelines, inciuding their roles and responsibilities, the board processes, the efficacy and quality of information
being made available lo Board, compliance of laws, training of Directors, etc. Further, the provision of prevailing
Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 states that review of performance of Chairperson, non-independent
directors and the Board as a whole shall be done by the independent Directors in their separate meeting. It has
also been provided in Schedule-1V that on the basis of performance evaluation of indepandent Directors done by
the board, it shall be determined whsther to extend or continue their term of appointment. However, the above
provisions of Schedulz IV regarding perormance of Chairperson, non-independent dirsctors, Board and
indepandent Directors shall not apply to a Government Company if the requirements in respect of same are
specified by the concemed Ministries or Departments of the Central Government and such requiremsnts are
complied with by the Government companies. Since the appointment of the all Directors in the Company is
decided by the Govt, of India, the requirement related to evaluation of directors as stated in Schedule-lV are not
applicable to CONCOR. The minutes of meeting of independent Directors wers placed in the meeting of the
Board of Directors,

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

In terms of provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and provisions of SEBI {LODR) Regufations,
your Company had a committee of the Board viz., 'Nomination & Remuneration Committeg'. However,
CONCOR being a gevernment Company, the provisions of Section 178 in respect of identifying persons who are
eligible to become diractors and formulating criteria for determining their qualification, etc. are not applicable to
it. The Committee's terms of reference is to deal with matters as specified under Section 178 of the Companies
Act 2013, SEBHLODR) Regulations and activities to be carred out by the HR & Rermuneration Committee under
the DPE guidelines. Itinter-alia examines and provides inputs an HR policies and initiatives of the Company
basides finalization of the annual variahle pay and policy for its digtribution across the Executives and Non-
unionized Supervisors.

During the vear, four meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Cornmittee were held on 30.04.2018,
30.08.2018, 20.10.2018 and 11.02.2019. The necessary quorum was prasent for all the meetings. The
membership of this committee and the attendance of members in the meetings during the yearwere asunder;

' : Number of Mestings*
Mame of the Directors ~ Position
' o Held Aftended
Ms. Vanita Seth | Chairperson 4 4
Shri A. P. Mocherla tMember 4 3
Shri Sanjay Bajpai, wee f. 27.04.2018 _ Member 4 2
Shri Manoj Kumar Srivastava, wef 30.04 2018 Mamber 3 3

* Held and aftended in their tenure in the committee during the year.

AUDIT & ETHICS COMMITTEE:

The Audit & Ethic Committes constituted by the Company is in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 read with SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The terms of reference of the Audit and Ethics committee are in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the guidelines set out in 3EBI (LODR)} Regulations and the DPE
guidelines, which inter alia include recommendation for appeintment, remuneration and terms of appaintment of
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auditors Teview and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, effectiveness of audit process,
review of the related party transactions, director's responsibility statement, quarterly and annual fimancial results
before submission to the Board, scruting of inter-corporate loans and investments, evaluation of intemal
financial controls and risk management systems, etc. Further, the Commitiee oversee financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial information, reviews the adequacy of inlernal audit function and
internal control systems and discusses with internal auditors any significant findings and follow-up thergon fram
time to time. The Committes attempts to ensure that decision making in the Company is objective and there are
adequate internal controis to ensure efficient realization of revenue and due propriety of expendilure. The
Committee invitas the executives of the Company, as it considers appropriate, including Chairman & Managing
Director, head of Finance, representative of Statutory Auditors, representative of Internal Auditors and others at
its mestings.

As on 31.03.2019, out of the six members of this Committee four were independent Directors. Executive Director
{Finance) & Company Secretary acts as Secretary to this Committee. The Audit & Ethics Committes met seven
times during the financial year 2018-19 on 30.04.2018, 25.05.2018, 25.07.2018, 30102018, 11.01.2019,
31.01.2019 and 11.02.2019. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings of this committee. The
details of Audit & Ethics Committee mesting held and atiendance of the Committee members, al the meetings
conducted during the year, were as under:

Number of Meetings™®
Mame of the Directors Position
Held Attended

Shei Kamiesh Shivil Vikamsey, Independent Director Chairperson 7 7
Shri Sanjeev 5. Shah, Independent Director Member 7 7
Shri Sanjay Swanup, Director (IM&O) ' - Member 7 7
Shri Lov Verma, Independent Director Member 7 6
Shri Pradip Kumar Agrawal, Director {Domestic Divigion), '

w.e.f 30.10.2018 and upto 17.04.2019 ' Msmber 3 3
Shr Deepak Shetty, Independent Directar, Member/ 3 3
w.e.f 30102018 Chairman

* Held and attended in their tenure in the committee during the year.
STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

CONCOR has a Stakeholders' Relationship Committee which is in compliance with the provisions of section 178
of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI {(LODR) Regulations. The Committee periodically reviews the status of
shareholders grievances and redressal of the same and various aspects of protecting interests of shareholders.
The terms of reference of this committee inter-alia include resolving the grievances of the security holders
including complaints related to transferftransmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of
declared dividends, issue of new/duplicaie certificates, general mestings etc, review of measures taken for
effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders, review of various measures and iniliatives taken by the
Company, ete.

The Committee met four timas in 2018-1% on 30.04 2018, 2507 2018, 30.10.2018 and 11.02.2018. The
necessany quorurn was present for all the meetings. Executive Director {Finance) & Company Secretary acts as
the Secretary of the Cammittee and is also the Compliance Officer in terms of Listing Agresments with the Stock
Exchanges. The details of Stakeholders' Relationship Committee meeting held and attendance of the
Committee members, at the maetings conducted during the year, were as under:




- CONTAINER CORRGRATION OF INDIALIM{TR

U | Number of Meetings *
Name of the Directors Position :

n ' Held Attended
Shri Anjaneya Prasad Mocherla, .
Non-Official part-time Director Chairperson 4 3
Shri Sanjay Bajpai,
Part-time Goavernment Director we.f. 27.04 2018 Member 3 2
Shri Pradip K. Agrawal, .
Director {(Bomestic Division) Member 4 4
Shri Sanjay Swarup,
Director {Intl. Marketing & Operations} Member 3 4

" Held and attended in their tenure in the committee during the vear.

The Company has taken various steps 10 ensure that the shareholders related matters/issues are given due
priority and are resolved within a reasonable period. For this purpose the Company has an exclusive designated
s-mail address investorrelations@eencorindia.com. Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent {R&TA) has
designated an exclusive e-mail address viz. concor@bestalfinancial.com to facilitate investors to register their
complaints, if any. Member{s) may 2lso visit the website at www concorindia com, Investors Grievances Section
for further reference. During the year, the Company has addressed its investor grievances expeditiously. No
investor complaint was pending at the end of financial year 20158-19.

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE & SYSTEM:

The Company has a Share Transfer Commitiee in place which considers the requests for transferftransmission
of shares, issug of duplicate share certificate, re-materialization etc. The composition of the Share Transfer
Committee of the Company is as under;

Director {Domestic Division} - Chairman
Director (Intarnational Marketing & Cperations) - Member
Executive Director (Finance) & Company Secretary - Member

The trading of shares of CONCOR is in compulsory demat form. The Company has appeinted Mfs. Beelaf
Financial & Computer Services (P) Lid. as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (R&TA}, to effect the ransfer of
shares, depository connectivity and other related work. No request was received for transfer of shares in
physical mode during the financial year 2018-19. The Sharehalders are also informed that now transfar of listed
securties can be done only inthe dematerialized form with a depository.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY AND SUSTAINABILITY (CSR & 5):

Tha Company has a well laid down Board approved CBR policy in place, which was recommended to the CSR
committes of the Board. Therg is a board level CSRE Committee (Tier-l} constituted in the Company, The CSR
Committes inter-alia formulates and recommends to the Board the CSR policy and expenditure to be incurmed on
TSR activities and monitor the policy/activities from time to time. This Committee assists the Board in taking
decisions on C3R related policies/activities and the minutes of its meeting providing therein its deliberations,
recommendations, etc. are placed before the Board of Directors for information, noting, consideration and
necessary directions and comply with the other requlatory requirements and Govt. Guidelines inthis regard.

Your Company has a two Tier system for management and implementation of TSR & S activities, Tier-l CSR
Committee is 2 Board level committes and Tier-ll Committes is a2 below board level commitiee of Senior
Executives of the Company headed by Executive Director (MIS & CSR), which assists the Board level
committze (Tier-0) in carrying oul their functions. The constitution of the committee is in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and revised guidelines of DPE on this matter. The Tier-l Committee has met
four times during the year an 30.04.2018, 26.07.2018, 30.10.2018 and 12.02.2019 to transact various
businesses. The particulars of Tier-l CSR committee meetings held and attendance at those meetings of the
commiltee members is as under:
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: _ Number of Meetings *
Name of tha Directors Position
Held Aftended

Shri V. Kalyana Rama, .
Chairman & Managing Director Chairperson 4 4
Shri Pradip K. Agrawal,
Girector (Domestic Division) Member 4 4
Shr Kamiesh Shivii Vikamsey,
Independent Director Mermnber 4 4
Shri Lov Verma,
Independent Director Mamber 4 4

* Held and attended in theirtenure inthe committes during the year.
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (RMC}:

Risk evaluation and management is an ongaing process within the organization. CONCOR has a robust risk
management system in place to identify, monitor and minimize risks. The Board of Director reviews the risk
management mechanism in the Company pericdically. The Company had a Risk Management Committee
(RMC) compriging of functional and independent Directors of the Company. The terms of reference of RMC
inter-afia includes providing direction to the Risk Management initiative, laying down procedures about risk
assessment and minimization, development and implementalion of a risk management policy, review quality of
mitigation plans, ete. The members of the RMC of the Company as at the end of the year comprises of.

1. ShriP. K. Agrawal, Direcior (Domestic Division} - Chairman
2. ShriSanjay Swarup, Director {International Mktg. & Qperations) - Member
3, ShrManeoj Kumar Dubey, Director {Finance)w.e f. 20.12.2048 - Member

r

4. ShriDsepak Shetty, Non-Official part-tims Directorw.e. £, 20.12.2018 Mernber

The Committee met four imes during the year on 20.04. 2018, 20.07.2018, 22.10.2018 and 12.02.2015. This
Committee furnishes its report to the Board of Directors. The particulars of meetings held duting the year and
atterdance at those meetings of the committee members is as under:

Number of Meetings”
Name of the Diractors

_ Held Attendad
Shri Pradip K. Agrawal, Director {Domestic Division) - 4 4
Shri Sanjay Swarup, Director (Intemational Mkig. & Operations)

Shri Rahul Mithal, Director [Projects & Services) upto 20.12 2018
Shri Mangj Kumar Dubey, Director {Finance) & CFQ we f20.12.2018
Shri Deepak Shetty, Non-Official part-time Director w.e.f 20.12.2018
*Hgld and aftended in their tenure in the committee during the year,
GENERALBODY MEETINGS:

Details of date, location and time of last three AGMs ars as under:

AGM Date Location
20092018 Alr Force Auditorium

i | s |
el =R




Subroto Fark,
Mew Delhi- 110011,

20.09.2017 Auditorium 4.00p.m.

Mational Raiiway Museum,
Myaya Marg, Mear Bhutan Embassy,
Chanakyapuri, New Delhi- 110021,

13.09.2018 Auditarium 400 p.m.

National Railway Museum,
MNyaya Marg, Near Bhutan Embassy,
Chanakyapuri, New Dalhi- 110021,

SPECIAL RESOLUTION(S) PASSED DURING PREVIOUS THREE YEARS:

A, MNo specialresolution was passed by sharehaolders at AGM held an 20.09.201 8.
B. No special resolution was passed by shareholders atAGM held on 20.09.201 7.
C. The following special resalutions were passed by sharsholders at AGM held en 13.08 2016:

)

i}

Resolulion was passed for alteration of Clause ¥ of the Memarandum of Association of the Campany
whereby the authonzed share capital of the Company was increased froim Rs.200 crores divided into 20
crores Equity Shares of Rs.10/~ gach to Rs.400 crores divided inte 40 crores Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~
gach,

Resalution was passed for alteration of Article 5 of the Articles of Assaciation of the Company relating to
authorized Share Capital wherehy the gaid Aricle was substituted with “The Authorised Share Capital of
the Company shall be as stated in clause ¥V of Memorandum of Association ofthe Company.”

RESOLUTION PASSED THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT/ E-VOTING DURING THE YEAR 2018-19:

i

On 12.08.2018, an Ordinary Resolution far sub-division of Equity shares of the Company from Rs 10/~
each to Rs.5/- each and a Special Resolution for amendment in Memorandum of Association of the
Company for amending the authorized capital claugs to have par value pet share to BEs.5 each was
passed with 99.9939% votes in favor of the resclution. The postal ballot process was scrutinized by Shri
Rakesh Kumar of M/s R K & Associates, Practicing Campany Secretary.

On 26.01.2018, an Ordinary Resalution for issue of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:4 {one bonus share for
every four shares held) was passed with 9%.99997% votes in favor of the resolution. The postal ballot
process was scrutinized by Shri Rakesh Kumar of Mis R K & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary.

Furtherthere is no proposal to be conducted thraugh postal ballct at ihe snsuing AGM.
DISCLOSURES:

{i)

(i)

{iii)

During the year, there was no transaction of material nature with the directors or their relatives that had
potential conflict with the interest of the Company,

The CEQ and CFO of the Company has cerified the specified matters to the board and Audit & Ethics
committee as required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. In lerms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, a
Cerificate duly signed by Shri V. Kalyana Rama, Chairman & Managing Director and Shri Mangj Kumar
Bubey, Director {Finance) & CFO was placed before the Board of Directors in its 205" meeting held on
30.04. 2019 while consideralion of the Annual Financial Statements of the Company forthe financial year
ended on 31.03.2015,

CONCOR's Board framed the Code of Conduct for Board membears and Senior Management Personnel,
effeclive from first day of January, 2006, The code of conduct has been revised from time totime so as to
incorporate the changes in framewoerk and reporting formats. Further, it is hereby declared and certified
that the Provisions of Code of Conduct have been affirmed to be complied with by the Board Members as
well as by the Senior Management Fersonnel for the financial year ended 31.03.2019, A declaration in
this regard, confirming the above is enclossed. The said Code of Conduct is available on the website of the
Cornpany at http:/fwsw.concorindia.comfassets/pdffCode_of conduct. pdf,
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(iv)

(¥)

{vil)

{vill)

{x}

{x)

{xii}

{xiii)

Your Gompany has filed report on Corporate Governance in specified format{s) to Stock Exchanges,
Ministry of Railways & DPE within the stipulated time provided fer the same.

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, CONCOR has a
Whistle-Blower Policy which establishes a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees 1o report
genuine concerns regarding unathical behavior, actual or suspected fraud(s), ete. The said mechanism
also pravides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and
makes provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit & Ethics Committee in appropriate or
exceptional cases. Inthis matter, the Company affirms that no personnel have been denied access to the
Audit & Ethics Committee. The said Whistle-Blower Policy has bean hosted on the website of the
Company at http:/Avww.concorindia comiassets/pdif WhistleBlowerPolicy. pdf,

In compliance with the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading} Regulations, 1932, (as
amended from time to time) and to preserve the confidentiality and prevent misuse of unpublished price
sensitive information, the Company has adopted a Policy for Prohibition of Insider Trading for Directors
and specified employees of the Company. This policy also provides for pericdical disclosures from
designated employees as well as pre-clearance of transactions by such persons. The said Palicy has
been updated from time to time and hosted on the websile of the Company at
hitp:fiwww.concorindia.com/assets/pdff CONCOR_INSIDER_TRADING_ DISCLOSURE_RULES.pdf.

The Dividend Distribution Policy {DDP) of the Company is provided separately in the Annual Report and
i5 also available on website of the Company under’Investors Relations Section',

The Cormpany has laid down procedurs to apprise the Risk Management Commiltee, Audit & Ethics
Committee and the Board about the risk assessment and mitigation plans and procedures of the
Company. The same are reviewed by tham to ensure that the integrated risks are managed through a
properly defined framework and reported from time to time.,

The Company has systems in place for moniloring statutory and procedural compliances, The Board has
been reported lhe stalus of the same so as to ensure proper compliances of all laws applicabis to the
Company.

All mandatory requirements on Corporate Governance in DPE guidelines for CPSEs and SEBI{LODR)
Regulations have been duly complied with by the Company, except these relating to appointment of
requisite number ofindependant Directors on the Board.

No item of expenditure has been debited in books of accounts, which were not for the purposes of the
business and no expenses, which were personal in nature, have been incurred for the Board of Directors
and top Management.

The Company has not entered into any materal financial or commercial transactions with the directors or
the management or their relatives or the Companies and firms, etc., in which they are either directly or
through their relatives interested as directors andfor pariners. Further, the transactions with related
parties are in the ordinary course of business and at amm's length and the disclosure of the same has
been made as per requirements of relevant Accounting Standards in Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Company.

Your Company nominates its representatives on the Boards of its joinl ventures and subsidiary
Companies and monitors the performance of such Companies periadically. I terms of listing
regulations and DPE guidelines, performance of the subsidiary Companies is inter-alia reviewad by the
Audit & Ethics committee and the Board ssunder:

a} Financial Statements of ihe subsidiary Companies are reviewed by the Board & Audit & Ethics
Committee,

b} Minutes of the meetings of Audit Committee and Board of subsidiary Companies are placed before
the Audil & Ethics Committes and Board of the Company respectively.

(xiv) Your Company does nat have material listed or un-listed Indian subsidiary Companies in terms of SEBI

{LODR) Regulations and DPE guidelines on Corparate Governance.

(xv) As required under Regulation 16{1)(c} of the SEBI {LODR) Regulations, the Company has a Falicy for
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determining ‘'material’ subsidiaries which has been placed on the website of the Company at
hitp:iwww.concorindia.com/assets/ pdifCONCOR_Policy MRPT pdt.

(xvi) The Board members, based on their requirements, attended various seminars, conferences, trafing
programmss from time to time. Further, as per the requiremant of Corporate Governance Guidslines
issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), far imparting training to directors, the Company takes
initiatives and direclors arg being nominated on training programmes arganized by DPE, SCOFE and
other reputed agencies from time to time. The Company also conducts familiarization program for its new
independent Directors. Company's policy in this regard has besn hosted on its website at
hitpifwww.concorindia.com/assets/pdfPolicy%20on%20Familarisation%:20program.pdf. The
particuiars of training imparted to the directors during the year, has been disclosed on the website of the
Company at http://www.concorindia.com/assets/pdf/Detailsoftraininglmpartediolndependent
Directors pdf.

{xvii) There wers no instances of penalties / strictures imposad on the Campany by the Stock Exchanges or
SEBI or any statutory authority due to non compliance on any matter refated to capital markets during the
last three years, except fine imposed by NSE and BSE on the Compary for not having requisite number
of Independent Directars on the Board of the Company during the quarters ended (QE)31.12.2018 and
31.03.2018. The total fina imposed by BSE and NSE for these two guarters, including GST was
Rs.17,93,600/-. Board of Dirsctors {BOD) of the Company were apprised about the above and it was
decided by BOD that as appointment of Independent Director{s) is done by the Government and the
Caompany has been regularly requesting Govemmenl ko appeint the requisite number of Independent
Directors on its Board, therefore being 2 Government Company the fine is not payable by CONCOR. As
per abovs decision of BOD, the fines imposed by BSE and NSE for the QF on 31.12.2013 and
31.03.2019 were not paid by the Company. The decision of BOD has been informed to the Stack
Exchanges. This matter has also beeninformed to the administrative ministry i.e. Ministry of Railways.

{xviii}During the year, half-yearly certificate(s), confirming due compliance of the share transfer formalities by
the Company [under Regulation 40 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]; and guarterly Reconciliation of
Shars Capital Audit Report [under SEBf {Deposilories and Participants) Regulations, 1996] were
obiained from practicing Company Secretary and the same were submitted to the Stock Exchanges
within the stipulated time,

{xix} No significant or materiat orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
going concem status and Company's operations in future,

{(xx} Nofraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit 8 Ethics Committee or the Board.

{xxt} The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. $5-1and $8-2, relating to 'Meetings ofthe
Board of Directors’ and 'General Meetings', respectively, have beet duly followed by the Company.

{xxit} The Campany has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming
thiat they meet the criteria of independence prescribed under the Act and the Listing Regulaticns. On the
basis of said confirmation, itis confirmed that these Direclors are meeting the ctiteria of independence.

{xxiii}During the year 2018-19, totat Fee on consolidated basis paid to Mfs Arun K. Agarwal & Associates,
Statutory Auditor of the Company and all enlilies in the network of the firm/ network entity of which the
Statutory Auditor is a part, if any, by the Company and its subsidiaries was Rs.14.03 lakhs, excluding
GS5T.

{xxiv}In relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013, ore cormnplaint was fifed during the yearwhich was pending as on 31.03.2014.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
Website Updation:

Regarding Eisctronic means of communications, the Quarterly Un-audited financial results, shareholding
pattern and Annual Report are uploaded on CONCOR website www.concorindia.com and thess are updated
based on infarmation provided from time to time. Tenders of various Regions/Departments are upivaded on
CONGOR's website and also on Central Public Procurement Portal {CPPP) http:#eprocure.gov.in for giving
wide publicity and ensuring transparency in tendering process. CONCOR has re-designed its Corporate
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website to the responsive websile,
AutoMails:

Auto mails from all commercial systems and other enline systems are being sent to customers { stakeholders as
per the requirement.

SMS5 based Container guery:

COMNCOR provides SMS based Container Tracking facility to its customers, Thisis in line with website query of
track and trace of containers, This is a facility by which any customer can track their container by sending a SMS
through their mobile phone. The query can be made by typing “ci {single space) container no.” for EXIM
containers and type “cd (single space) container no.” for domestic containers and sending it to 56877

Auto SMS:

CONCOR has introduced SMS alert system for PDA Credit of its customer and salary and reimbursement
credits for employees.

Financial Information:

Timely disclosure of consistent, relevant and reliable financial information on financial performance is at the core
of good governance. Towards this end and in order to attain maximum shareholders’ reach, the financial results
of the Company during the year 2018-19 were communicated to the Stock Exchanges and were pubtished in
lzading dailies having wide circulation across the country. In addition the updated information relating to financial
results and shareholding pattarn is available on the website of the Company.

Further, the Company communicates with its shareholders through its Annual Report, General Meetings and
disclosures through website. All important information pertaining to the Company is mentioned in the Annual
Report for each financial year containing inter- alia Audited Financial Statements (Standalone & Conselidated),
Directars’ Report, Auditors’ Report, Report on Corparate Governance, ete. which is circulated to the members
and others entitled thereto.

InvestorsiAnalysts meetings:

Past results conference calls conducted to investors' and analysts on the Gompany's quarterly, half-yearly as
well as annual financial results. The presentations and schedule of analyst or investors meet are also put on the
Company's website as well as sent to the Stock Exchanges. No unpublished price sensitive information is baing
discussed in meeting/presentation with institutianal investors and financials analysts.

Website:

The Company's website {www.concorindia.com) contains a separate dedicated section Investor Relations'
whera shareholders'information is available.

Annual Report:

The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statements, Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements, Board's Report, Auditors’ Report and other impartant information is circulated te members and
athers entitled therate, The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MDaA) Report forms part of the Annual
Report. The Company's Annual Report is also available in downloadable form on the Company's website and
can be accessed at hitp: hwww concorindia.com,

Chairrnan’s Communigue:

The printed copy of the Chairman’s speech is distributed to shareholders at Annual General Meeting. The
document is also pul on the Company's website and sentto the Stock Exchanges.

Reminderto Investors:

Reminders for unclaimed! unpaid dividend amount on equity shares are sent to the shareholders / debenture
holders as perf records every year.

NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS):
The NEAPS is a web-based application designed by NSE for corporates. All periodical/ event based compliance
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filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, media releases, statement of investor
complaints, among others are filed electronically on NEAPS.

BSE Garporate Compliance & Listing Centre (“Listing Centre”):

BSE's Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for corporates. All perindicall event based compliance
filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, media releases, statement of investor
complaints, among others are filed electronically on the Listing Centre.

SEBEI Complaints Redress System {SCORES):

The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based complaints redressal system. The salient
features ofthis systemare: centralised database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports {ATRs)
by concemed companies and onling viewing by investars of acltions taken on the complaint and its current
status.

DVIDEND:
Book closure and Dividend payment dates

Faor the financial year 2018-15, the Board of Directors recormmended the payrment of dividend, for which the
Record Date/Book Closure and dividend payment dates are as under:

Dividend Record Datef - Bividend Payment
5. No. - Declarad - Dividend Book Closure * Date
. Final Dividend : | 171% (Rs.8.55 21.08.201% o 02.0%.2019 onwards
per share of 27082019
Rs.5/- asach)

The Company has proposed a Final dividend of 171% (Rs_8.55 per aquity share of Rs.5/- each} on the paid-up
equity share capital, forthe year ended on 31.03.2019 which shall be paid aftar the approval by the shareholders
inAGM,

Change of Address/Bank Details/NECS Mandate/E-mail ID;
Far change of address/bank detaits/dividend mandate/E-mail ID, Members may approach —
i} iFshares are held in physical mode, to the Company/R&TA of the Campany.

iy if shares ars held in electronic mode, to their Depository Participant {DP). The Company/R&TA will not
entertain such requests, ifany.

Bank Account details and 9-digit MICR Code of their Bankers, as noted in the records of their DP is used forthe
purpese of overprinting on Dividend Warrants or remittance of dividend through permitted electronic modes,
wheraver applicable. It is, therefore, necessary that the members holding shares in electronic mode should
ensure their correct bank detsils andfor 9-digit MICR Code number are noted in the records of the DP so that no
rejection takes place. As per the dividend mandate noted in the records of DP, the amount of dividend will be
credited direcily to bank account of the shareholder. The credit of dividend amount can also be confirmed from
your pass book/bank statemeant.

Transfer of unpaidiunclaimed amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund:

Pursuant to the applicable law, dividend amount(s} remaining unclaimed and unpaid for a period of seven years
is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEFPF) established by the Central
Gaovemment in this bahalf.

During tha year, your Company had transferrad an amount of Rs 80,072/~ and Rs 44,933/ in the |nvestor
Education and Protection Fund (JEFF) for unclaimed/unpaid final dividend for FY 2010-11 and interim dividend
for FY 2011-12 respectively. The particulars in respect of unclaimed/unpaid dividend, indicating name of
shareholder, amount of dividend, etc. as on last AGM date are also available on the website of the Company at
httpfwww concerindia. co.infassets/pdffunpaid_note .POF.

The unclaimedfunpaid final dividend for the FY 2011-12 which is due for transfer to IEPF, should be claimed by the
members before 24.10.2019._ After that date, no claim shall lie against the Company, in respect of the said amount.
The due dates of transfer of unpaid/unclaimed dividend to IEPF forthe imminent financial years are as under:
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Financial Dividend Dividend Last date for Due date for
5. No_ Year Type {%) “Ia“gi':i%;jn“ ald transfer to IEPF
] 2011-12 Final 90 24.10.2019 23.11.2019
Interim 80 06.03.2020 05.04.2020
2 2012-13 Final 95 02.10.2020 01.11.2020

Since after the transfer of unpaidfunclaimed amount of IEPF, no claim shall lie against the Company/R&TA,
members who have nat yet encashed their Dividend Warrant may approach the R&TA/Company for issuance of
demand draft{s} upon completion of necessary formalities in the said behalf in lieu of such warrant.

Transfer of shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund:

The shareholders may note that pursuant to the applicable provisions of lhe Companies Act, 2013 and the
provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules,
2016 {"the Rules") notified by the Ministry of Corporate affairs effeclive September 7, 2016 as amended from
time to time, all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund {(“IEPF"} established by the Central Government, after completion of seven
years. The Rules, inter alia, contain provisions for transfer of alf such shares in respect of which dividend has not
been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years or more with IEPF Authority. In
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Company has fransferred 2,246 such equity shares of
Rs.5/- each on 09.04.2019 in respect of which dividend was not claimed by members for seven consecutive
yaars or more to IEPF Authority as per the prevailing provisions under these rules, Therefore, tha shareholders
are advised to claim their dividend which has remained unpaidf unciaimed from the Compary or its Registrarand
Share transfer Agent as the Company is mandated to transfer such shares to |[EPF in respect of which dividend
has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years or more. The Compary has
uploaded on its website the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on the last AGM
{l.e. 20.09.2018) and details of shares transferred to IEPF and the same can be accessed from
WWW.COnNCorindia. com.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

{i} Number of Anrual General Meeting 31° AGM
Cate 2708219
Time 04 00 PM.IST
Yenue Auditorium, National Rail Museum,

{ii)

Financial Calendar
The unaudited financial results of 1 2™
and 3" quartsr

Limited Review Report for above
Guarterly un-audited financial Results

Approval and authentication of annual
accaunts by Board of Directors

Adoption of audited Annual Accounts by
Sharehoiders
Date of Book Closure

Dividend Payment Date
Listing on Stock Exchanges

Nyay Marg, Near Bhutan Embassy
Chanakyapuri, New Delhi— 110021

Within 45 days of close of quarter
Within 45 days of close of quarter
Within 60 days of close of Financial year

Before 31% August, 2019

21.08.201%1027.08.2019

{both days inclusive)

Within 30 days of Declaration

{a} The Bombay Stock Exchange Lid.,
Phiroza Jesjeebhoy Towers,
Dalal StreetFort,
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tMumbai— 400001,
{b) National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.,
"Exchange Flaza"
Bandra - Kurda Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai— 400051 .
fwi) Security Code and ISINNa.

MSE CONCOR
BSE B31344
I5IM INE111A31025

fwii} Market Price Data{lnRs.)

Month : NSE BsE -
High Low - High - Low

Aprif18 1380.00 121700 1374.45 - 1219.35
May & 1423.70 1317.80 1422.00 1318.85
June’t8* 1377.90 - 598.00 1370.00 599.80
July'18 686.90 813.25 G686.00 812,70
Aug'18 678.00 624.80 677.35 623.15
Sep'lg 670.10 B603.15 670.45 803,15
Qct'18 659.0¢ 542.00 658.50 541.45
Mov'18 695.80 B832.80 695.40 B33.75
Dec'18 696.90 636.10 598.50 635.65
Jan'19 705.00 £28.50 704.00 B28.95
Feb"19* . 678.80 468110 664.90 - 461,50
Mar'12 535.00 469,10 532.80 470.30

* In June 2018, sub-division of one equity share of Rs.10/- each o two equity shares of Rs.94- sach
was implemented. Thereafter, bonus issue of 1:4 shares also took place in February 2019, In the
ahove table, the datais the aclua! price being quoted on BSE and MSE in the respective periods,

{viii} Stock Exchange Index

Month NSE :  BSE :

High Low High Low
Aprilg 10759.00 10111.30 © 35213.30 32972.568
May'18 10929.20 10417.80 35893.53 34302.89
June'18 10893.25 10550.80 35877.41 34784.68
July'18 11366.00 10604.65 37644 58 3510657
Augs 11760.20 11234.95 38988 65 37128.99
Sep'18 11751.80 10850.30 38834.35 35985 683
Oct'18 11035.65 10004.55 36616.64 33291.58
Nov'18 10922 45 10341.90 36389.22 34303.38
Dec18 1088515 10333.85 36554.99 34426.29
Jan'18 10987.45 1058365 36701.03 35375.51
Fepb19 11118.10 10585,65 37172.18 35287.16
Mar19 11630.35 10817.00 3874854 35926.04
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{ix) Registrar and Share TransferAgents

(x) Distribution of Sharehalding as on 31.03.2019

his Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pyl Ltd.
BEETAL HOUSE,

3 Floor, 99, Madangir,

Behind Local Shopping Centre

Mew Delhi-110055.

Phone Mo (11-29361231-83

E-mailid: beetalf@beetallinancial.com

h;ﬁ;,::g‘;:g shar'::lllgf dors % of total Mo, of shares % of total
01 754 1.18 754 -
02-10 6557 10.25 33014 D
11-50 16232 2537 461728 0.08
51-100 S76Y 16.29 726464 0.12
101-200 15064 2354 2219344 0.36
201-750 11710 18.30 4187817 48
751-5000 2546 . 4.60 4739536 0.78
5001-10000 275 0.43 1942774 0.32
10001-15000 83 0.15 1138215 0.19
15001 & Above® 574 0.88 533863102 97 46
Total 63992 100.00 609294343 100.00
*includes President of India holding of 33,38 84,875 equity shares.
(xi) Geographical Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.02.2019
No. of city No. of % of total No.ofshares | % oftotal
sharesholders

Ahmedabad 2296 3.59 406506 0.07
Bangalore 4100 6.41 739756 g1z
Chennzi 2544 3.98 Go1664 G.10
Kolkata 2435 3.81 2626293 043
Mumbai 18648 29.14 262308172 43.05
New Delhi* 5024 7.85 3366513891 55.25
Punsa 3661 572 1603338 0.26
Others 25284 39.50 4350228 0.72
Total 63992 100,00 609294348 100.00

*includes Prasident of India halding of 33,38,84 975 equity shares,




{xii)

{xiii}

{xvi)

{x=vii)

Shareholding Pattern as on 31.03.2019

Particulars No. of Shares " % of total

(a) | Govemmentoflndia - | 33,38,84,975 54 80
() | Banks, Financial Institutions 3,60.01,359 5.81
(¢} | Foreign nafitutional Investors : B 17.37,.76,466 28.52
{d) | Mutual Funds and UTI 378,098,848 B.21
(e) | Bodies Carporate . 92,66,196 N
ifi | Indian Public 1,34,04 872 2.21
(9) | NRIsf OCBs 13,75,08¢ |- .23
{h) | Others 36,85043 0.60
Total . : 60,92,94,348 100.00

The above was the position as on 31.03.2019,

Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity:

For electronic trading of shares, CONCOR has an agreement with NSDL & CDSL. Out of 80,92 94 348
Shares listed on Stock Exchanges £0.92 88 387 equity Shares were in demat mode a3 on
31.03.2019,

Outstanding GDRs [AADRSs! Warrants or any convertible instruments:  MNLA.

Flant locations: The Company has as on 31.03.2019 total 83 Terminals from which itis operating. Out
of which 75 are Company's own terminals compriging of 14 pure Exim Terminals, 37 Combined
Cortainer Terminals, 24 pure Domestic Terminals and balance 8 are the terminals for which it has
strategic tie up with others,

Address for Correspondence Executive Director (Finance) & Company Secretary
Container Corporation of India Ltd.,
CONCOR Bhawsan, C-3, Mathura Road,
MNew Delhi—110076.
Ph. No. 11141673149
Email investorrelations Gleoncorindia. com

As part of its "Green Initiatives’, now Companies can provide various documents to its Shareholders in
electronic formi.e. through e-mail. Your Company is fuliy commitied towards such a welcome initiative
and is accordingly requesting its Shareholders to provide or update their e-mail ids with their respective
DPsfCompany Registrar, as the case may be, and give their oplion for receiving documents in
slectronic form. The shareholders whose email ids wers already registered with the respective
Depository Participants {DPs) and downloaded from the depositories i.e. NSDL/CDSL and who have
not opted for receiving Annual Report in physical form are being furnished information in sleclronic
form,

By order of Board of
CONTA|NER CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

Sdi-

Dated : 31.07.201% (V. Kalyana Rama}
Flace : New Delhi Chairman & Managing Director

[69 ]




DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENICR MANAGEMENT

PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE QF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Board of
Directars and would comprise all Executive Directors, Chief Vigilance Officer (CVQ), Chief General Managers
{CGMs), Regional General Managers (RGMs) Group General Managers {(3GMs), This code (s avaitable on the
Company's website at http:fconcorindia.co.in/assets/pdffCode_of conduct pdf.

| confirm that the Company has in respect of the year ended March 31, 2019, received from the Members of the
Board and Senior Managemsnt Personnel of the Company, a declaration of compliance with the Code of
Conduct as applisable ta them.

By order of Board of
CONTAINER CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

S5d/-
Dated : 31.07.201% (V. Kalyana Rama)
Place : Naw Delhi Chairman & Managing Director
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CONCOR

ANNEXURE "C’

AKHIL ROHATGI AKHIL ROHATGI & COMPANY,
M.Com. L.LB.F.CS. Comparny Secretaries
21, Shamnath Marg, Civil Lines,
Dalhi — 110054,

Phone : 23926504, 88108906833
Email: roehatgi_co_secy@yahoo.coin

CERTIFICATE
To the Members of

CONTAINER CORPORATICN OF INDIA LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by CONTAINER CORPORATION
OF INDIALIMITED for the year ended 31" March, 2019 as stiputated in SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 {SEBI {LODR}) Regulations] in respact of Equity Shares of the said Cormpany
listed with Stock Exchanges and the DFE guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises issued by the 'Department of Public Enterprises’, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public
Enterprises, Government of India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Qur
examination, carried outis in accordance with the Corporate Governance (Models of Best practices) issued by
the Institulte of Company Secretaries of India, was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. itis neither
an auditnor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company,

We have obtained alf the information and axplanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessaty for the purposes of certification and have been provided with such records, documents, cerification,
gtc. as had been raquired by us.

In our apinion and to the best of our knowledge and information and according 1o the explanations given to us,
we cerlify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
abave mentioned SEBI (LODR) Regulations and in the guidelines on corporate governance issued by the
‘Depariment of Public Enterprises' except that the number of Independant Directors on the Board was less than
half of the total strength of Board as required unpder SEBI {LODR) Regulations and the DPE Guidelines for
which company has already writlen to its administrative ministry i.e. Ministry of Railways for appointment of
appropriate number of Independent Directors on the board.

Further, we also certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority,

We further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to further viability of the Company nor lhe efficiency
areffectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Akhil Rohatgi & Co.

sd/-
Place: New Delhi {Akhil Rohatgi)
Date : 16.06.2019 Company Secretary in Practice
FC.8: 1600

C.F. No. 2317




1.

ANNEXURE ‘D’

The Annual Report on CSR

A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of
projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to
the web link to the CSR policy and project or programs.

A brief outline is attached,

Weblink : http://www.concorindia.co.infcsr. pdf,

The composition of CSR Committee.

COMNCOR has two Tier £5R Committee system for implementing it's C5R activities,
The Tier-I committee comprises of : (1} 5h. V. Kalyana Rama, Chairman & Managing
Director {2) Sh, P.X. Agrawal, Director{Domestic) {3) Sh. Kamilesh Shivji Vikamsey,
Independent Director {4) Sh. Lov Verma, Independent Director. To assist the Tier- I
committee, the company has constituted a Tier-II comrmittee which is headed by
ED{MIS & CSR) including two other senior officers. Further the Tier II committee is
assisted by Dy. Genaral Manager (OL & CSR),

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years.
Rs.1,293.73 crores.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (twe percent of the amount as in item 3
above).

The company required to spent Rs.25.88 crores towards CSR activities.
Details of CSR spent during the financial year;

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year
Rs.36.88 crores.

{(b) Amount unspent, if any
Rs.23.4% crores,

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is
Detailed below:




_ﬂﬁuﬁ;ﬂﬁﬁb&k#bgﬁrlqu_ W

CSR Expenditure during the Financial Year 2018-19

(R=. in lacs)
1 A 2 3 4 5 & 7 8
M. CSR project or - Sectorin | Projects or Amount | Amount | Cumulative Asmount”
. activity identified | which the | Programs outlay | spanton |expenditurel - spent:
Projectis |{1) Locat (budget) tha up Direct{D} or
covered | area or project or] projects -t through
other programs| - or. reporting | implernenting
wize |programs:| poerod, agency
) Specify ’ IA
i‘hl State Direct | (excluding i
and district jexpenditure| PTEVIOUS
whaere ' on projects, Years .
profects or . {expendltures
programs '
was
undertalken
1. Construction of Class | Education (1) Local area | 240,00 45,110 4500 D-Hil
rooms in the six {§) By Banfam IA = Rural Works
High Schools of Berhampur Division-[T,
Gargarm Districts of Qdisha Ganjam
ODISHA Berhampur,
Odisha
2. Construction of 2 Education . | 1} lacal area A | 10,09 10.00 B-Hit
dass roomsin - ' 2] Chakradhanur) ' 1A - office of
Senior Higher - Iharkhand ' | DIRM, South
Sevenchary Mixed . ) Eastern:
Sehipal in _ ’ Rallway,
Chakradhamur, . Chakradharpur
South Easter: T
Raihway.
3. Gedhuli - Support Education 13 local area 11,95 1195 11.55 Cr-Mll
towards education of 23 New Delhi 1A - Goxdbull
Street Children of MNew Dalhi
Meerabagh, New
deihi.
4. Suppert to Brahm Education Dyiocal area 12,70 12.70 12.70 D=l
| Shakti 5r, Sec, ' 2} Sanepat, _ . I4 - Brahm
School, Thana Kalan, Haryana - Shakti Sr. Sec.
Sonepat for School,
construction of nilet . ' Sonepat,
blacks, Haryana
5. Suppart, the Centre Education 1) kcal area B2.00 62.00 (2.0 L=l
for Social 21 Belhi IA - Centre
Responsibility & for Social
Leadarship (CSRL), Responsibility
Hew Celhi for %
imparting coaching Leadership{Cs
towands preparation RL), Mew Delhi
of higher studies.
6. Support o Edhrztion 1) loral area BO.OO 19.71 19.71 [D-Mit
Ramakrishha Mission 2} Delhi Ia -
for the Awakanaed Rarmakrishna
citizen Program and _ Mission , New
heatth camps. Drathi




1 2 3 4 5 & 7 8
5N, CSR project or Sactor in | Projects or Amount | Amount | Cumulative Amount
activity identdfied | which the | Programs outlay | spenton [expenditure spent :
Projectls | (1) Local {budget} the up to Dlrect{D) or
covered |areaor project or; projects thea throuwgh
other programs or raparting | Implementing
‘wise |programs:| period. agency
(2) Spedfy (£7.]
the State pirect | {excluding
and district laxpenditure] Previcus
where on projects| Years
projects or expentitires)
programs '
was - .
undertaken

7. Support o UPSIC, Education 1} kocal area  B2.75 45.00 45.00 D-Hil
kanpur for 2) Ghaaipur, IA- Udar
renavation and Uttar Fradesh Pradesh Small
beautification of 5 Industries
schoals at Ghazipur, Carporatlon
Udar Pradesh Ltd., Kanpur,

Uttar Pradesh,

B. Support o society Education 1) locl area 0.38 10.38 10.38 DMl
for disability and 23 Dehi IA- Soclety
Rehabllitaton for disakbility
studies, Mew Delhi and
for providing Brailie Rehabiliztion
Scripted Laptops to shudies, New
student af Delhl D2l
Univearsity.

Q. Suppert for Education 1} local area 24.98 £.00 5.00 D-Mil
construction of 2) Sharavasti, IA - Gramin
building in Banvari Uttar Abhivantran
Deyvi Ashok Kumar Pradesh. Yikhag,
Mahavidyalaya, DHwvisien
Sharawvasti, Uttar Sharavash.
Pradech, Uttar Pradesh

10. | Suppwt to Pumla Education 11 kocal area 24,89 &.00 6.0 D-MIl
Public Scheol, Pumiia 2) Pugmiia IA - Lktar
Bihar for Bibar Pradesh Small
oonstruction of two Indusiries
class roams. Corporatlan

Lk Ghaziabad
Littar Pradesh

11. Construction of two Bducation 1) local area 19,91 5.00 500 C-Mil
classroums at Cane 2] Lakhimpur 14 - Littar
Growers School at Khin, Utiar Pradesh Small
Lakhimpur Khiri, Pradesh Industries
Uttar Pradesh. Corporabion

Ltd., Ghaziabac
Uttar Pradesh. 3

12. | Support to Sanskritz | Education 1) lotal area 10000 25.00 25.00 DMk
Bharati, New Delhi 23 New Dethi IA - Sanskrita
for the construdcicn Bharati, Newr
of one flnor at Deen Delhi
Davyal Upadhyaya
Marg, Mew Delhi.




1 2 3 4 5 . b 7 B
5.N. CSR project or Sector in | Projects or Amount | Amowvnt | Cumulative Amount
activity identified { which the | Programs . outlay | spenton |[expenditure] . spent:
Projectls | {1)Llocal . (buchget) the ‘upto Direct{D} or
covered |areaor project or| projects the through
o oihesr programs or reporting | fmplermenting
wise | programs: | period, agency
{2} Specify : 1A
the State Direct | (excluding )
and district . [enpenditure; PTEVIOUS
where on projects] - YEAFS :
profects or . expandinmres)
programs
was
undertaken

13, | Support to Aslfabad, | Education 1) okhers 251.51 125.75 125.75 D-Mil
Telangana for 2} Asifabad, IA - The office
science labs and Telangana of Collectar
heakh cara and District
equipments. Magistrate,

Asifabad,
Telangana

14. | Suppor to : Education 1) local area 8.87 5.00 5.00 B-iil .
Govermment Higher 2} Khatunwas, . 1A — Shartiva
Secondary School, Rigjasthian cooperative
Khatuwas far ' Gramin Vikas
trinking water, tollet evem Nirman
facifity, repair of . Lid.
dassrooms etc by

| Bharthya coperative -
Gramin Vikas evem
Mimman Rid.,
Luckniow. :

15. Support to Bhartiya Bduration 1) ol arems [G.8B 5.00 5300 DRk
Adiarsh Vedlk Ballka 2} Tilpatta, IA— Uktar
Intar college, Greater Noida Pradesh Srmall
Tilpatts, Greater Indystries
Moida for Corporation
Constrpcton: of Ltd. ,Ghaziabad
tolletes, 10 Ittar Pragdesh
computers and 100
desks etc, by UPSIC
Ghazlabad,

15. | Support o IRITM, Education 1} local area 25.00. 10.00 1000, D-Nif -

: Lucknow for 23 Lucknow ' . . IA - Indian
restructuning and Uttar Pradesh Rallway
modification of Institube of
IRITM fibeary. Transport

' Managenent
(IRITM,
_Lucknow

i7. Assistance to Education 1) local area 00,00 .00 0.00 D-

AP.Govt. in setting 2] Andhra IA - Andhra
up A.P. Logistics Pradesh Government
Liniversity.

18, | Constructlon of 20 Health 1} local ared 25.00 700 700 D-Hil
bed hospital at 2Z)vishakhapatn 1A Mlinana
Yilnana, vihara am, Andhrz Vihara secicty,
Visakhapatniam, Pradesh Vishakhapatn
Andhra Pradesh am, Andhra

) Pradesh
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 B
5.N. SR project or Sector in | Projects or Amount | Amount | Cumulative Amount
activity Identified | which the | Programs | outlay | spent on |expenditura| spent :
Project Is | (1) Local - {budget) the up to Diract{D) or
covered §ares project or| projects tha through
other programs or reporting | implementing
. wise |programs:] penod. agency
(2) Specity (18)
the State Direct | (excluding
and district expernditurg PrEVIOWS
where on projects|  Years
projects or expendibures);
programs
was
undertaken
149, Organization of 77 Health 1} local area g0.26 47.36 47,36 O-Mil
Health Camps by 2} Tuglakabad, 1A - Mahavir
Mahavir Okhla, Dadri International,
International, Mew Ratlam, Agra, Mew Delbi
el hi Jadhpur,
Kathuwas,
Ankleshwar,
Gandhigham,
Mawr Mulund,
Mumbai ete.
. 20 Expendilure towards | Health - 11.55 10,36 10.36 Crirect
arganizing health : .
CAMpPS.
21, Construgtlon of ward | Health 1} lzcal area 150.00 50.00 50.00 Cx-Nil
block at MGM Eye 2} Raipur, 1A - MG Eye
Institute, Ralpur, Chhattisgarh Institute,
{Chhattisgarh Faipur,
Chhattisgarh
22, Organization of Health 1} local area 13.50 6.75 .75 il
Health Camps by 2) Chanduali IA - Makawir
Mahavir (UP) and Intermnational,
Inbzmational, Visakhapaina Drelhi
New Delhl in AR}
Chanduali {UF) and
Visakhapatnam{AF})
23, | Supportto ALIMCO, | Health 1} local area | 67.05 34.00 34.00 Ll
Kanpur For Fitment LA - ALIMOCC,
of Cochlear Implants 2} PAN India Kanpur
to 10 Children with
hearing impainmant,
. | Support to ALTMCO, | Health 1) kxcal area | 160.00 40.00 4,00 O
Kanpur for 2) IA - ALTMCO,
distributing devices Sharavasti{UF), Kanpur
to zpprow. 2000 Chandaull (UPY,
numbers of MWW"‘&
divyangjans at {HAPIF had
Sharavast {UF), (Telanganal}
Chandauli (UP}, ’
Visakhapatmam {AF
8 Aazsifabad

{Telangana)).




machires, provision
of Bio toilets and
plantation of larga
size potted plants at
railway premises

N - 3 4 5 ] 7 -]
&N, CSR project or Sectar in | Projects or Amouvnt { Amount | Cumulative Amount
activity dentifled | which the | Programs outlay . | spenton [expenditure]  spemt:
) T Projectls [ (1) Lol - | {axdget) | the vpto | Direct(D}or
covered | areaor prejeck or| projects tha through
© | other programs or - teporting | implementing
. wise | programs:| period, agency
2} Specily : ’
Ehl State Diract | (excluding “m
and district ftere| PYEVIOUS.
where "lon projects| Years
projects or ' expentditures)
Programs
Was
i . ) undertaken )

25, Maintenance of 9 sanitation 1} It area 117.00 38.84 3E.84 D-mil
Comrnel nity koilet 2} Ghazipur, IA - Sulabh
Blocks by Sufabh Uttar Pradesh International
International Social Social
Organization i Organization,
Ghazipur district of Delhi
Uttar Pragesh,

26, Construction of sanitation 1} local area 15,63 0,037 0.037 | C-Hil
Commiinity Toikt, 2} Jaharabad, . IA - Jita
Bathroom In Sihar Abhiyanta Jila
Makdhuripur, Prishad
Jahanabad, Bihar Jahanabad ,

Bihar

27. Constructlon of 10 sanitation 1} local area 130,00 58.00 Sa.00 G-Hil
public toilet Mocks In 2] Chandauli 1A - sulabh
Chandauli and and YVaranasl International
Yaranasi districts of Uttar Pradesh Social
Uttar Pradesh by Organization,
Sulabh intermational. Dl

ZB. Construction to four | sanitation 1} local ares 5350 33,50 33.50 =M1
seatar bio-tolet 21 Jaipur, : IA -Jaipur
blocks at 10 Sations Rajasthan Division, Marth
i Jafpur of North . Wastern
Western Ralkway. Raibyay

29. To install 20 toilets sanitation 1} local area 5.50 (.00 0.0 =il
in Vernama, Taluka 2} Vermama, IA - Manav
Yadodara, Gujarat. Taluka Seva

Yadodara, foundation,
Gujarat. Yadodara

30 Construction of twe | sanftation 1) local area 10.00 £.00 5.4 D=Hil
blo tolket Brocks at 2) fjmer 1A - Office of
Ajrer Rallway Rajasthan DRM, North .
Statton, Weskemn

Raitway, Ajmer
Division

31 Support to Central sanitation 1) local araa 15.00 Q.00 (.00 O-Nil
Ratlway for 2 Hagpur ia - Centrat
installation of water Fallway
bottke crusher




1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
5.N. C5R project or Sector in | Projects or Amount | Amount | Cumclative Amount
activity [denbtifiad | which the | Programs outiay | spent on |expandiiar) spant ;
Projectis | {1) hocal- [(budget) the g to Direct(P) aor
covered | area or - project or| projects the through
other programs or reporting | implanenting
- wise |programs:| perod. agency
2) Specity 1A
Ehl State birert | (excluding v
and district expenditure| PTEVIOUS
where on projects| Years
projects or expenditures)
programs
was
undertaken
32 | Support to WATSAN. | sanltRbion 1) locat area 11.80 4,00 4.00 D-pil
. Erwiratach Private 2)Nagapatinam 1A - WATSAN
Limited, Chennal for Tamilradu Emvirotech.
installation of 40 Private
FRP tollets at Limited,
Magapatinam, Chennad
Tamiinadu
33 Support bo Western | sanitation 1) tocal ares 500,69 125.15 125.15 C-Mil
Rallway Zone 2) Gujaraf 1A — RITES
towards construction L.
of 20 public toilets at
Railway stations,
34, [nstalfation of SO0 Enwvironment | 13 local area 104,497 10.45 10,45 D-mil
solar Hahts in sustalabillty (23 Ghagipur, 1A - Rajasthan
{Ghagzipur, Lttar Litter Pradesh by Rajasthan
Pradesh Electronics &
Instruments
Lirpited, Jalpur
35, | Passenger amenities | Enviranment | 1% local area 295,40 1.13 1.13 O-nil
activities at Mew sustainabiity | 2} New Delhi, 1A — Mew Dalhi
Delki (Rs 212,00 Vadodara and Vadedara
Lacs § and Vadodara Gujarat division of
raifway station (RS. Indian Rallways,
23.40 lacs).
36. | Skill development SkIH lilocal area | 64.48 51,59 51.55 D-pil
training to 360 development | 2 Dadr, Uttar 1A~ National
QB fothar Pradesh, Backward
beneflciaties at Khodiyar daszes
Dadrl, Tamilnady, (Gujarat), Finance and
Gujarat and andhra Sanathnagar Devaloprent
Pradesh In garment {Sikandaraba Corporation
sector by NBOFDL, d) THFM, (WBCFDC),
Chennai MNew Delhi
27. Skill develspiment Skill 1} local area 39,12 27152 2752 Cr=Mif
training For 200 develtpment | 23 Tuglakabad, 14 — Nabional
bencficiaries in Credhi and Backward
Ingistic sector by Vizag, Andhra dasses
NBCFDC at TED Pradash Flmance and
Delhi and Vizag Cevelopment
Andhra Pradesh Curporation
(MBCFL),
Haw Delhi.




1 -2 ~ 3 4 - g 7 -
£N, CSR project or .| Sectorin | Projects or Amount | Amount |Cumuiative| . Amount
- - -| activity identified | which the | Programs outlay | spent on |expenditure| = spent;
1. B Projectis |{1)Local - | (budget)|. the up to { Dlrect{D) or
covered |arcaor project or| projects the | . through
other Prigrams or | reporting |implementing
wise | programs:| period. © . agency
2) Speity : ’ : IA
Ehlsm ' pirect | (excluding -{ .
and districk |- - pendityre| Pr&VIoUS
where on projecks| Years
projects or Co expenditures)
programs ' . : ’
Was
. undertaken : : o
36. | Sl development SKiN 1) local area . | 20.67 4,15 4.15 BN
tairing to 120 development | 2y Baddi, . | - : oL 14 — National
.| beneficiades from : Himachal -~ - o : .| Backward -
Bateli, Himachal Pradesh B 1 dasses
Pradesh hy NBCFDC, : : ' ' " | Finance and
: Devebopment
Corporabion
| {NBCFDO),
: : New Dethl.

9, Skill development Skill 1] local area 10.00 2.00 2.00 LMl
training in beauty develapment | 2 Nallare, IA = Hational
antd weliness seckor Andhra Backward
to 75 beneficiaries Pradesh Classes
from Mallore, Andhra Finance and
Pradesh by NBECFDC. Devalopment

Corporation
(NBCFDC,
New Delhi,

40. [ Supportic Kl 1ozl area | 13.94 4.00. 4.00 ~§ DNil
Shanthight Ashram, - development | 7 Now Dehi : ) . -
Mewe Desthi for - : Shanthigiri
Aooring of first and ' Ashram , New
second floor. _ . : ' Dethi,

41. Support te UPSIC, Drinking 1} Iocal ares 10.45 4.00 4 {0 D-Mil
Kanpur for waler ) Aligarh, 1A — Litar
installation of 19 LIttar Fradesh Pradesh Small
handpumps at Industries
Aligarh, Uttar Corporation
Fradesh. Lid., Kanpur,

uF

42, InstaHation of 100 Drinking 1} kocal arca 3950 29.50 25,50 | ©-Nil
handpumps at water 2] Lamuha IA - Liiar
Lamuha Subianpur, o Submnpur, ' ’ Pradech Small
Litar Pracesh by Littar Pradeash, Industries
UPSIC, Allahabad. ’ Corporation

. Ltd,,
Allahabad,
LLP.

43, Installation of 100 Drinking 1) lowcal ares 40.00 30.00 30,00 G-l
handpumps at public | waker 2} Ghagipur, LA — Litar
places of Ghazipur, Uttar Pradesh. Pradesh Smal|
Uttar Pradesh hy Industries
LIPSIC Adiahabad. Corporation

Ltd.
Allahabad,
- U.p, -




p Projects o
activity identified | which the | Programs outlay | spenton |expenditure| - spent!
Projectis | {1]) Local {huwdyet) the up to Direct(p) or
coverad | area or project or| projects the +through
other programs or reporting | Implementing
wise | programs:| period. Agency
{2) Specify {IR)
the State Diract | {excluding :
and district expenditure| Previous
where on projects| Years
projects or expenditures)
programs
Was .
undertaken
44, Construction of Rurat 1) locat srea 452.00 122,22 12222 Dbk
Perishable Cargo development | 73 Varanasi, IM-CONCOR
Cantre at Rajatalab UF
and Ghazipur, UP
45, Construction of Fural 1} local area Sa0.00 0.0 000 o-Mil
o Gpurpose cold development | 2 Masik, ™-
store ar Lasalgoan, Maharashtra
Masik
a8, | Support to North Naticnal 1} local area 27.17 10.00 10.60 -il
Western Raibway for | Heritage | 2) Ahmadabad, IM- North
art work at Gljarat Westarn
Ahmadabad Raliway ) Raibway
station.
47, Support te Nowgong | Spors 1) tocal arsa 200.00 S S0.00 DMl
Sports Association, 2) Nawgaoar, IM- MNowgong
Ascam towards Aczam. Sports
upgradation of the Association,
sports infrastructure Agsam
buitding of Rural
Arin Stadium,
Mawgoan, Assdm.
4B. | Support to Wakair | Sports 1) fecal area | 97.33 25.00 25.00 O-Hil
Division of East 2) Visakhapainam, M- Waltair
Coast Railwary Ancdbia Divishar of
wwards Pradesh East Coast
Developrmaent of Ralbvay,
Sports facllitles i.2. Visakhapatnam
construction of
squash court,
gymnasiom &
provision of canteen
at Sports Complex In
. Visakhapainam
49, | Support to Mational | Sports 17 local area | 15.00 15.00 15.00 D-Mil
Sports Developiment 2] PAMN M- Govk, of
Fund, INDTA, India
50, Contribution to Armed 1} local zrea 100,040 100.00 104300 D-Hit
Armed Forces Flag | forees Z) PAN INDILA M- Govt. of
Day Fund {AFFDF). India
TOTAL #4798.27 | 1351.05 | *1351.05




FTIE
LONCOR

# The amount stated here is value of projects undertaken, including the brought forward projects which in
totality is more than the amount available under the budget (including unspent buddet of previous yaar).

*  Amount spent during the year towards C5R activities {net after unutilized amount of Rs.11.80 lacs refunded
in FY 2017-18) i.e. Rs.13.39 crores.

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net
profit of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall
provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.

The company was advised to take its CSR activities in Aspirational districts for which
guidelines were issued on 10™ December 2018 which has led to delay in finalization of CSR
projects resulting in short spending of CSR budget which will be carry forwarded and be
utilized in following year i.e. 2019-20,

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and
monitering of CSR policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and pelicy of the
company.

The CSR Committee of the directors have confirmed that the implementation and monitoring
of CSR policy, 15 in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the company.

Pated ; 31.07.2018 Sdi-
Place : New Delhi CMD, CONCOR and Chairman CSR Commitee




CONCOR CSR Policy - Brief Outline

In alignment with mission of the company its CSR initiatives shall aim at earning
community goodwill for CONCOR and help enhance and reinforce its positive & socially
responsible image as a corporate citizen. CONCOR will follow highest standards of
business ethics and transparency to fulfill its commitment to its stakeholders to conduct
business in an economically, socially and environmentally sustainable manner.
Stakeholders inciude employess, investors, shareholders, customers, business partners,
clients, civii society groups, Government and non-government organizations, local
communities, environment ang society at |arge.

CSR initiative at CONCOR will be based on its sensitivity to the needs of all the socially
and economically downtrodden sections of the society. For spending the amount
earmarked for CSR, the projects will be taken up in India and it shall give preference to
local area and areas around it where CONCOR operates specifically in states where itis
expanding its infrastructure. The objective of these initiatives would be to endeavor for
positive results over a period of time, enhancing the quality of life & economic
well, being of the local populace.

Under CONCOR’s CSR pelicy various thrust areas have been identified as per provisions
of schedule V1T of Companigs Act 2013, which include health & medical care, sanitation,
education/literacy enhancerment, community development & rehabilitation measures,
rural development, environment protection, conservation of natural resources, natural
calamities and infrastructure development including areas specified in Companies Act
2013. CONCOR has executed it's major projects in the area of education, health, skill

development & environment sustainability.




FORM NO.AQC -2

FATRIL
CONOGR
ANNEXURE - E

[Pursuant to clause {h) of sub-section {3} of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with the related
parties referred to in sub-saction (1) of section 188 of the Companiss Act, 2013 including certain arms-length
transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
5. | Name of the  [Nature of Duration of | Salient Justifleation | Dale of Amount iDate
No.| related party [conbacts! | contracts!  Meaturesof |forentering | approvalbylpaidas |on
and nature of (amangements arrangements Whtral:tﬂ into such the Board} | advances, whh:!.h
Relationship [transactions | firansactions atvangements| Gontracts! Audit ifany - special
| Hransactions,| Arrangements | Committes 0 lwas
including - | Aransactions passed
valus, if any in
' general
maefing
ufs
1a3{1) v}
—_ — ML — -
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis:
S. |Nameofthe |Ntweci |Durationof |Salient | Justification |Dateof | Amount |Dats
No. | related party [contracts! | contracts! | features of |forentering | approval by| paidas-  [on
and nature of |amngements: aTangeMents contractsi | Into such the Board/ | advances, *hich -
Relationship |fransactions | Aransactions 'arr'angqma nts] Contracts! Audit Hany = ﬁ:ﬂm
Mansantiuﬁs, Arrangémants Committes was
including firansactions passed
value, if any in
general
meeting
ws
1885 )
1. | Star Track J On going :’-’fnugnaementi Commercial Refer M4, MNA,
Terminais amesment for setting decision Note-1
P, Ltd. dt, 31.041.200% up &
{CONCOR's managing
sharehakding CFs at
49%} ; DadrifULP.

[£3 ]




S. | Name of the |Natwreof | Duration of |Salient Justification | Date of Amount |Date
No. | related party |conracts! | contracts/  |featuresof |forentering |approvaiby|paidas |o0
and nature of [amrangements| amrangements coyraets! | into such the Board/ |advances, m!lal
Relationship |Aransactions | fransactions arrangements| Contracts! Audit if any Emﬂ
Mransactions,| Arrangements | Committee Was
including ftransactions passed
vahue, if any in
general
masting
ws
131 fh}
2. | Albatross M Ongoing | Agreement | Commercial Reier M. A MLA,
Inland Ports | 2greement for setting | decision Note-1
Byt. Lid. dt. 13.05 20 up &
{COMCOR's managing
sharaholkding CFS at
48%) Dadri/U.P.
3. Gétewa].r Jy On going | A Joint Commercial Refer MLA. M. A,
Terminals agregment Vﬁﬂt;r:hfl decision Note-1
- 41, 01,07, 2004 wi
lndia Pvt. Lid. ICONCOR' Tennill'fals
—— Mauritius
SHAEnaicing Lt for third
24%) berth at JN
Fort,
tdumbai.
4, | CMA-CGM J¥ O going ﬁgreenjent Cormmercial Refer MLA, M. A,
Logistics angreement fior setting decision Mote-t
Park (Dadri)  |g1.03.02.2004 “miﬁa "
Pvi. Ltd. (CONCOR's CFSagt 4
shareholding DadrifU.P.
49%)
5. | Himalayan | Ongoing | Ajoint Commercial Refer NLA. M.A.
Terminals agreament :;?tr;ture decision Mote-1
Pyt. Lid. dh. 23.06.2004 Nepaless
(CONCOR's Enterprises
sharehokfing Transwaorld
4%} group of
COmpanies
for
managament
and operation
of rail
cantainer
terminal
at Birgunj
L {Nepal). 1 n

[ &4 ]




. | Name ofthe |Matura of Duration of | Salient _ Justification | Date of Amount  |Date
No.| related party |contracts) |-contracts! . |featuresof |forentering | approvalby| paidas |on
and nature of - \amangements| amangsments( \oniarter. | into such the Board/ | advances, [WFeh
Relationship fh‘ansa:hnm r’transacbmg 4 "ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁlﬂﬂﬁ contran_:t of Audit Aifany -|special
fransactions, Arrangaments | Commitiee. was .
inchrding Hransactions ' passed
value, if any In
Lo general
meeting
s
188{1) (b}
6. | Indig v Ongoing | Ajoint Commercial Refer NA. N.A.
Gateway  fagement veniure | gagision Note-1
Terminal dt 31 01 2005 with Dubai
P"l"t.. Ltd, CON r Port .
{CONCOR's Intemational
sharehokding (DPI) for
; 1E7%) setting up
and
managing :
Container
Terminals at
Cochin. ‘
7. | TCIRCOMNCOR| N agresment | On going | A Joint Commercial Refer MA, NA.
Multimodal |4 28032007 Wenture decision Note-1
Solutions {with RLPL) with
Pwt. Lid. 13102510 Transport
with TCIL Corporation
(CONCOR's of India Ltd.
shargholding (TCIL} ta
49%) provide
integrated
logistics
services .
; across !
i the country.
8 | Container .J‘ufagl'eem&nt; On gaing | AJoint Commercial | Refer MN.A, NLA.
Gateway Lid. |& 28032007 Venture with| decision., Mote-1
CONGOR'S However, this
i‘ha{ehaldin Gateway JY could not
3 . .
49%) Rail Freight] lake off and
Ltd the matter is
: under
for Arbilration
operations




Na.

Name of the
related party
and nature of
Retatlonship

Hature of

aratgenents
fransactions

Duration of
coniracis!
amangements
fransactions

Sallent
faatures of
contracts!
arrangements
lransactions,
including
valua, if any

Justificatlon
for entering
fnto such
Contracts!
Arrangements
ftransactlons

Data of
approval by
the Board/
Audit
Committes

Amount
pald as
advances,

if any

of existing
railfroad
container
terminal at
Garhi
Harsaru,
Surgacn
{Haryana;

Allcargo
Logistics
Park

Py, iLtd.

JY agresmment
dl 26,00 208
{CONCOR's

shareholing
149%

On going

A joint
Veniure
with
Allcargo
Global
Logistics
Ltd. for
setting up
and
nnning
CF3 at
Dadri.

Commercial
decisian

Rafer
Mote-1

MLA.

N.A.

10,

HALCON

Agreemant

d

26 092003

(CONCOR's
share 50%)

On going

Abusiness
arangamant
with
Hindustar
Asronatics
Lid,

for operating

' an air cargn
| complex &

[CD at Czar

Commercial
decision

airport, Masik |

Refer
Mote-1

M.A.

MLA.

BE




N,

N,amg of the
related party
and nature of

Relationship [fransactions

Hature of
comracts/ _
arrangements

Duration of
contracts!

arrangements
Hransactions

Salient -
features of
contracts/
arangements
Hrar_ls'autiuns,
including
value, if any

Justification
tor entering
Into such
Conbracts/ ¢
Arrangemenis
ftransactluns'

Date of
approval by
the Board/
Audit’

Committea

Amount
paid as -
advances,
if any

general
mesting
ws

L U

1.

SIDCUL
CONCOR
tnfra
Company Lid,

JV egreement
dt. 1701 2013
{CONCOR's
sharsholding
T4}

On going

A Joint
Venture with
SIDCUL
{State
Infrastructhure
& Industrtal
Development
Corparation
of | rakhand}
for the

| devalopment

of bogistics
park in the
state of
Uttarakhand .

Commerciai
decision

Refer
MNote-1

M.A.

M4,

12.

Funjab
Logistics
Infrastructure

| Ltd.

1JV agreement

dt 13032443
{CONCOR's
sharchokding
51%)

On going

AJoint
Wenture
with Punjab
State
Container &
Warshousing
Comoratian
Lirrited
(COMWARE)
for
developroent
of
multimodal
logistics
Fark near
Kila Raipur
on feedler

[ routa of

western DFC
over 150
acres of

lard.

Commercial
decision

Refer
MNote—i

M.A.

MN.A.

[87)




No.

Name of the
related party
and nature of
Relationship

Hature of
contracts/
amRNgemeits
fransactions

Durztion of
contracts/

arrangements
firansactions

Salient
features of
confracts!

Justification
for entering
Into such

arrangements) Contracts!

firansactlons,
including
valua, if any

Arrangérnents
ftransactions

Data of
approval by
the Board/
Audit
Committes

Amaunt
paid as
advances,
if any

Date

DR
which
special
resolufion
was

passed

. |general

mesting
ws
1331 b}

13.

Fresh &
Healthy
Enterprises
Ltd.

Wholly
owned

Subsidiary]

On going

To create
world ¢lass
cold storage
infrastrusture
in the country
and b provide
completa Goid
chain logistics
soidions to
the varicus
stakeholders
in this field,

Commercial
dacision

Refer
Mote-1

M.A.

M.A

14,

CONCOR
Aidr Ltd.

Whally
owned
Subsitliary

On going

To conslruct,
develop,
pparate and
manage a
new Domestc
Cargo
Terminal
[Santacnuz
Air Cargo
Tarminal
{SACT]] at
Chatrapali
Shivaii

i International

Awport {(GSIA},
Mumbai on
Build, Cwr,
{Cperale and
Transfar

(BOOT) basis.;

Commercial
decizion

4
1

Refer
Mote-1

ML.A.

hLA.

[26]




Ho.

Name of the
related party
and nature of
Relationship

Hature of
contractsf
artangements
Aransactions

Duration of
contracts!
arangements
firansaciions

Salient
features of
contracts/
arvangements|
ltransactions,
including
valug, if any

| Justification -

for entering -
into such
Contracts/
Amrangements
Aransactions

Date of - .

approval by

the Boardf
Aun_:lit
Committee

Amount
pald as
advances,
if any

general
meeting
ws

1550}

148.

Angul
Sukinda
Railway
limited

S sgreernent
dt. 1501 A5
{CONCOR's
sharzholding
26%)

On going

To finance,
construct,
aperate,
maintain
and
manags thes
propossed
new rail line
from Angul
to Sukinda
{104 km} in
the state of
Odisha.

Commercial
decision

Refer
Mote-1

M.A.

M4

16.

CONCOR
BATS
Airport
Services

Agreament
8t 12.06.2018
(CONCOR's
share 50%)

On going

i

lon pan

A buziness
arrangement
with
Bangtqre
Airport
Terminal
Services
Pt Lid
{BATS) lo
undertake
Ground
Handling
Sarvices
including
Ramp and
Tarmag
sarvices,
Flight
Handling
Services
and other
gilied air
CArgY
related
aclivitias

India hasis.

Commercial
decision

Fafar
Mote-1

M.A.

M.A.

L89]




Note:

1.

The setting up of subsidiaries and joint venture agreements with the JV partners were duly approved by the
Board of Directars of the Company during the relevant period and the transactions with the joint venture
companies and subsidiaries are in the normal course of business and at arm's tength and are mainly in
accordance with the respective JV agreements executed with lhem, wherever applicable. The transactions
during the year with the above related partiss are in the mormal course of business and are of repetitive
nature. The transactions with abave Jvs and Subsidiaries are also covered by the omnibus appraval granted
by the Audit & Ethics Committee of CONCOR. The particulars of transactions with retated parties, wherever
applicable are stated in the notes to the Financial Statements of the company for the year ended on 31
March 2019,
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ANNEXURE -F

Amit Agrawal & Associates

Company Secretaries

O H-BX  “edy Do, Laime Hagew, Dielbe-T10082 INCTA
Fh o D105 43013279, Mok =R SR I
Emal A QORI ONT. Il sy W

Form Na. MR-
ﬂi':CRET’AHML ALVTHT REFORT
bor The {imncial Year Endet blapch 31, 219

Turswint tir Sectivry 28404 of the ompaans A, 2033 anid Rude 9 of ik € omipanics
| Appeinment and Rermuneension of Manngeriol Personoet) fiokes, Mila}

Tu,

The Monber,

Comindrier Corparaion of Indls Linnnd
CONCOR Bhowan, C-3, Matium Razd,
Cipposit= Apubin Hospicel, New Delbi- 110076
CI; LE30 1 i DLI9E3GOGN M5

! hirve combocted the sucretanal acdit 0€ the cwmplince of applicable slabwory pesisionm md
the adhermnce W ogood cotporsle peattioes by Cenlziner Corpucatiow of Imdin Limited
fheterrmtiter callad “te Copapimy'™), Setetaelal Audil wis cumlucted in a maoner et prunsiedi
W g bchmonable beasoe For cvaluating the emmparse comds/saanney complancds mwd
3 [FEMIRE ouT apapicts thersan.

ved on ey verificmian of the l:.‘i'lmp-‘:fs bocky. papers, minole bestks, foras mnd refams Gisyg
and oaher seconds nintiined by (Ex Company, tbe infizmation provided by the Conapany, irs
alfficers, agents und authorised reprowntalives doring the cosduct oF secrelania) wadit e
explamrions anl clanealions gives o ok wf e cprosmislions moude by Be Managrmen:, |
herchy repeti that iy upinan, the Conrmy b durding the aonlil piriod covering the finansal
year endéd vn March 31 I, complicd with the stahgery provicion bisiod heposnder and sl
thal the Company het proper Boand peocesses abd compianie meckarnsam in plece $0 i exienl,
it Wyt Ersvivesr andd Subyeet (ot ceporting mads hereinnfier:

[ have cxnmined e books papers, m3ngte bowks. fonns and wiar filed and cher recads
maintinad hy the Company Fot the Mizacial yeer ended on March 31, 2H9 acconding 1 the
applicable peorrmioos if:

Fin The Companies Act, 2013 (itbe Ac iy ored e cubes anade thereuodor

(it The Sevuritis Cuntract (ReguBatiood A< 1936 &SCRA T and th reles made hereandes;

fidi} The Deposiiomies Act, 199 and e Hegulakons asd Bre-taws fraved twreundee;

vl Poceign Exchimgs Management Ak, 1% ad e sules amd ropuisticnrs madic thereundior o
bt extemt of Fomeign Giresd levestnern, wverseas Dirsey Imvetiment wnd  Exnernst
("o mereaal Romawings;

{v| The Rallowing Repalotrans amd Cenilefines presiribed under the Secuarties and Exchange
Bownd of Indicx Act, 1992 " SEE) Ao

.;1. .
-. weF
dnp g ar o ¥




(a3 The Sceuritiss wnd Bxcharge Bonnd of pdin {Suhwanbel Acquisiion of Shaes ant
Tabcovers) Repelatians, 2014 _

(b} The Secwrites gnd Exchenge Boord of Infis {Pechibition of fnsider Tradies)
Regubstions, 2015,

tr) The Securities and Fxchange Doard of lxfin {lsme of Copslat pod Disglooum:
Requirementsj Regoisisons, 2009 & theveafier 1018:

(&3 ke Seoanties aod Exchangs Buard of Iodin {Share Baoed Emploves Benefiks)
Repalatians, 201 {Not applicible 10 1he compyy iburing the Audil Period];

t¢] The Secwities sod Exchzye Banrd of india (fssue and Listing of Dokt Securities)
Regalaions, 2008 [Nat zpplicable Lo he company during 1be Awbit Pericd};

{} The Fecuritics and Exchurge Boord of lndin {Registous to ws [sue snd Shaee
Tranxior Agants) chululin?}, 1993, regarding Lhe Companies Act and deafing, with
cliert §Mot applicable 10 the' comprury durng the Andit Pericd;

] The Secuities und Exchanpe Bounl of India (Defistipg of Equity Sharesh
Regrulalions, 2009 Mot applicable bk the tomgany during Be Audil Pecod];

ih] The Secuiliés and [xvchempe Board of bufia (Buyback of Securitics) Regnintins,
{998 [Mal zpplics]s b the campaery ding the Andil Pericd], snd

{iy The Sevwrities snd Exchange Hoani of India [Lising Obligmions ond Disclosure
Roquirsments) Regulmions, 2015,

(w1} uher lwe apnlscable apeciiical iy eg the Comguery ramely;
8] The DPE iuxdelines;
B) e Canpetitiom Act, 202.
cf The Delhi Shgr aod Eqiabliskmenty Acl, |25,
d] The Right 1o lSonneiion Act, 2005,
e E-Wasty [anagenoent & 1landling} Rules, 2011,
B Tie Envirooment [Prateciion’ Act, | 986 rend wilh The Envicanment {prolecivon)
Rudes, L9B6; and }
g} Labous cind So¢iab Securty Laws 23 paasible,

| have afap pxamised comphiance with the applicabbe chenes of liwe bilawing:

{i) Secrohurist Sandards iowed by The Institute of Compuny Seavtarics of bndi wilh pespect 15
conxdilcting bomrd and gencral meetings.

[ty Thre Listing, Agreensern evuered kasa by the Company with Naticeal Stock Exchange-of fnda
Limibst and BSE Limiled read w5h e SER] (Lising Obligations and Discbowrs
Rexritenents) Regulmions, 2015

[ranig the periodd amder review, the Compary hus complied with (= pravisions of the A,
Rubes. Repulopons, Guidelines, :Imh:l‘uds cic. mantiensl ane shject o the foflowing
oo

" The vy of Dalependeow Dirccnrs ma the Boare war Tes than folf of the fodad strevigrh af
Bourd @ sequired undee SEBI (LODR: Regulonon amd the DPF guide]mes for which sompary




- CONTAINER CORPORATION OF INDIA

LINI

4

- hax already written o it adwintstrative minisiry ix. Minisiry: of Raibways for appoinomenr pf
Aappropriate wamber of imdepemdemt Dirdceors om ibe brord

[ furthee pepoet thal,

The Bpard of [Hrectaes of #e Campgny is ddy camstizueed witk: proper bolgnce of Execiaivg
Directors, Nan-Executive Directors amd Indepemdent Liregtors having wamen direcior and the
comnpositioor of haued iy o8 per provivions of the Act. The Changes in the pomposition of i
Board of Dirscrors thar took piace during e period andsr review were cwvled our B
ciwnplione with the provistons af the Avt. However the Compasivion of the Board of Directors of
the compeny is nov having suich numbder of Indepemdent Direciors as required wider SER}
fLODR} Regulwtions ond the DEE gindelines for which compony has already written to s
abnuinlivative aunisiry Le. Miniiry of roilways far cpprintmen of approgriate numbnr of
Irctemempdene Direcsors on the Bramrd.
i

Adequate nolice waz givens t il direerors (o schedule the Boand Mectings, agends and detsiled
noics on agends were soml i beasa seven days in udvanor far meetings other than these held a
shosier notice, snd 3 sywem exista for soeking and obtsining further infirenation and
clarifications or the ugenda items before. the meeting and for meaningful particfpation s e
meeling.

Majodity decision iz camied through while the disseniing mombers” views are coplured and
recarded 2s pan of the minutes.

I furher repon that theee are adequale sysicms and processes in the Company comomensurate

with the size ond operations of the Corpany te moaitor and cnsune complisice with agplicahis
Yaws, rules, regulubiony and gumdelmes.

| further report that during the audil period, e Compamy has compebed subedlvision of its
equity shares in June 2018 and issuc of ]:4 bonus equity shaces m February 2015,

Far Amit Agarwal & Assiciates

Y

- ] S Amil Agrawal
Duiz ;51 7 JUN 20 s < it Fropeictor
Mace: New Delhi < CF No. 3647, MNo 5111

Fhis repon ix o be read with my Yetier of even dase which is anexed as ap “Anpzowe-A™ md
fomms wm ingeged part of this report.




Amit Agrawal & Associates
Cogmpany Secretaries

O HES, Wiy Chowi, Laem Mager Dedh- 119292, INOLA
B p-1EA22024505, ARI192TH, Wty 93811272307

Evmak amiagrsflgrai com, aatimeflyahoo oo

ANNEXURE: A

Ta .

Ihe Members,

Condainey Carporarion af Lndia Limnited
CONCOR Bhawan, C-3, Mathurm Rand
Opposite Apotle flospital. New Delhi-1 1007
CrN: T 11T, | @EELOE0 M 5

fdy Secrerarin Audit Repon of even date oy be read along with this ever:

I. Moiptenmee of Seenctartal recond 13 the rospinsialicy of the sranagedent of te Campat.
My resporsibillty 15 10 expocss 20 opinixan on these secretariad reconds bavoed on eur mulit.

7. 1 have follawed the audit practiecs amd procss &5 were apprapeiabd 1o obtain rcaseclie
arsurance nbagl the correctiesy of the momterts of the Secrelarind reeonds, The venficadion
wis. Jone on best Dasis to sosire et corresd faels sre reflected in Seerciasiol mecords. |
believe fiad fie process snd pextices, | have folkowed. peovide B masooaMe basis for oy

T 1 have ont verified e cormeetress and appropeictaness of fmancial records and Books ot
Aceounis af the {“ompany.

4, Wheiz ever nxpired, 1 have ohiamed ihe management represemtations sbod the compligoe
of lawe, nubes pidt regulations and happening of svents <ic.

5, Tl Comptiance of provisions of corparse and other spplicable laws, rules. regalstlons,
sadarch s W responsibillty of the managersnt My examination v limited o the
serilivation of procedisne om that bisis,

§. The Secretanial A repoat o orither an asurance as to the futue viobilisy mar of e
cificacy of 1he eMectiveness with which the manapement has condurted the astairs of th

L vy
d Far Amit Agrm:. ] & Aggociztes
peety Secrerumes)
7@‘@ o
€5 AR me
b, 17 JUK 0TS
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial vear ended 31.03.2019

[Pursuant to Section 92{3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and

TR
CDNCOR

Annexure-G

Rule 12{1) of the Companies {(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

FCRM NO. MGT -9

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

I} GIN

i} Registration Date

fii) Name of the Company

iv} Category / Sub-Category of the Company

V) Address of the Registered Office and
contact details

vii} Name, address and contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, { any

L630311DL1988GOI030915

10.03.1988
CONTAINER CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED
A Navratna PSU under Ministry of Railways
CONCOR Bhawan, C-3, Mathura Road, Opp.-
Apolle Hospital,

New Oelhi — 110076,
{T) 0114167309396, (F) 01141673112,
E-mail- investerrelations@concorindia.com,
Website- www.concorindla.com

vi) Whether listed company Yes/No i Yes

New Delhi-1100662,
{T) 011-29961281-83, (F} 011-29961254
Emall- beetal@@beetalfinancial.com
Website- www beetalfinancial.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company:

M/s Beetal Financial & Computer Services P Ltd.
Beetal House, 37 Floor, 89, Madangir, Behind LSC,

. NIC Code of the | % to total turnover
LNo, | Nam d De of mal ductsiservl .
SLNo e an scription of maln productsiservices Product / service | of the Company
1. Transporiation of Containers {Rail & Road) - 78.06%
2. | Handling of Containers - 10,938,

(9°]




ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S.Na,

NAME AND ADDRESS OF
THE COMPANY

CIN/GLN

HOLDING!
SUBSIDIARYT

. % of
shares
held

Applicable
Secfion

Frash & Healthy Enterprises Lid.
CONCOR 8hawan, C-3, Mathura
Road, Opp. Apolle Hospital,

Mew Delhl — 110076

L518000L2006PLC145734

TE
Subsidary

100.00

2(87)

. Mew Dialhi = 110076

CONCCR Air Lid.
CONCOR Bhawan, G-3, Mathura
Foad, Opp. Apello Haspital,

Ua22000L 2012501238207

Subsidiary

100.00

2{8?].

SIDCUL COMCOR Infra Company L.
Sidcw!, Rudraper, Udham Singh Magar,
{Htarakhand, 267152

US3000UR2013PLCOI0605

Subsidiary

74.00

2(87)

Funjab Laglstics Infrastructura Lid.
SC0-119-120, SECTOR 17-B,
CHANDIGARM, 160047

UB3010CH2013G 034873

Subsidiary

51.00

2(87)

Star Track Yerminals Pyt. Eid.

ICD Dadn, Tdpata Road,

autam Budh Magar,

Greater Maida, Utlar Pradesh -201307

US3033UP2003PTC0420G31

Associate

49,00

2(6)

Albatross [nland Ports Pyt. Lid.
4ath Floor, Geet Mala Building,

Mexl to Shah Indus, Estate, Deonar
Village Road, Govandi{East),
Mumbai Maharashtra — 4000588

L&3nQ0MH2004P TS 146805

Azzociate

49.00

2(5}

Gateway Ferminals ndia Pwi. Ltd.
GT71 House, Gateway Teminals
India Pyt L., JNPT, Sheva,
Taluka Uran,MNavi Mumbai,
Maharashira — 400707

U45203MHZ0MPTC147 781

Assoclate

26.00

2(6)

. Noida, Uttar Pradesh -201311

CMA-CGM Logistics Park {Dadri) Put. Lid.
Tilpata Road, ICD Dadri, Greater

UE3000UP200SPTCO3GA4

Associate

49.00

2(6)

Himalayan Termninals Pvi, Lid,
Dryport, Birganj, Sirsiya Parsa, Nepal.

Nin Nepat _

Azzotiate

2(6)

10

Indiz Gateway Terminal Pwt. Lid,
Administration Buliding, 1CTT,

vallarpadam SEZ, Mulavukadu Villages,
Ernakulam, Kerala — 882504,

UT4989K1L 2004PTCO17443

Associate

11.87

2(6)

11

TCI-COMCOR Multimodal Solutichs
Pt L.

DPT 625/625, DLF Prime Tower
Chchla Phase-1 New Delhi

South Delhi 1100243

UE0231DI 2007 PTC216625

Assoclate

4500

2(6)

12

Contalner Gateway Lid,
Via Patudi Read, Wazirpur Morh,
Maar Garhi Harsaru Railway Station,

t Garhi Harsr, Gurgaon, Haryana ~ 122505

U6 3030HR200TPLCOZE985

Associate

4904

2(8)

(o8]




NAME AND ADDRESS QF _ CINIGLN HOLDING/ % of Applicalre
S.No. THE COMPANY _ SUBSIDIARYY shares on
_ ' S ASSOCIATE heig | Sect
13 . { Allcargo Logistics Park Pvi. Lid. UG3023MH2G0BPTC 183484 | Associate 49.00 pais})
Sth Floor, Avashya House, TST Road, '
Kalina, Santacriz (East), Mumbai,
Maharashis — 400093,
14 Angul Sukinda Rallway limited U4E2030R2008PLOO10620 | Associate 26.00 2{8}
Plot Mo 7622/4708, Mauza-
Gadakana Press Chhaka,
i Bhubaneswar, Orissa - 751005 _
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN {Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity}
I} Category-wise Shareholding
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year Mo. of Shares held at the end of the year kS
Sharahukiers : T . Chan
ge
during
the
. %ot | ¥
% of Total
. Phys| Total . {-Phys - - | Shares
‘Demat cal Totz| Shares Demat ical Total
A
Promoters
(1} Indian
a) 0 D o - 0 0 0 - -
individual f
HLUF
b} Central 1335538490 0| 133553800 54,50 333884975 0| 333884975 | 54.80 -
Gt
¢ State 0 Y] 0 0 0 D - -
Govl.(s)
d} Badies 0 0 ¥ 0 0 0 - -
Corp.
e} Banks { 0 o 1] - 0 0 0 - -
Fl
T} Ay 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 -
{ther....
Sub-Total 1335530490 04 133553990 | 54.80 3A3R84975 0 [ 333884975 | 54.80 -
{A}1): -
{2) Foreign
a} NRls - 0 0 a - 0 g 0 - -
Individuals
by Other - 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 - -
Individuals
) Bodies 0 O 0 - O 0 0 -
Corp.
d} Banks f L} 0 0 0 o O -
Fi




Category of
Sharohcldars

Mo. of Shares held at the beginning of the yaar

Ho. of Sharas held at the end of the year

Demat

Physi
cal

Total

% of
" Total

Camat

Phys
ical

Total

%, of
Total
Shares

Chan

oe
during

year

8] Ay
Other....
Sub-Total
{AN2): -
Total
Shareholdin
g of
Promoters
{A) =

(AN HANZ)

]

o

133553980

]

0

133552990

Shares

54.80

0

1]

333884975

0

¢

333584975

54.80

B. Public
Sharehpld
ing

1.
Institutions

a} Mutual
Funds

b} Banks /
Fl

c] Alternate
Investment
Funds

d} Central
Gavt.

di State
Govt.(s)

&) Vanture
Capital
Funds

fiinsurance
Companies

g} Flle

h) Fareign
Yanture
Capital
Funds

i] Others
{FF1/Bank)

Sub-Tetal
{BY1}

25683487

118329

1]
3562

202753

13018082

@1313082

¥

a

100400295

26683487

118324

o
63562

202753

0

13019082

861313082
|

o

100400295

10.54

0.05

0.03

.08

5.34

2518

41.2%

37808848

170463

]
154538

567884

o

35263412

173776466

0

0

24774271

7809848

170463

0
154658

567984

35263412

173776466

o

i

24TT4ET3N

8.2

o3

D.03

0.a2

578

28.52

40.68

{4.33)

(0.02)

.01

0.45

3.36

(0.54)




Tt
CONCON

Category of
Eharehnldeﬁ_;

Wo. of Sharas hald at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares hetd at the end of the year %

Chan

during

Dremat

Physi

Total

- o gf
Total
Shares

Demat

Fhys
ical

Totat

wof | Year

Total
Ehares

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

it Inglian

if) Dvarseas

3500833
0

213

301066
0

1.44

D265665
a

=31

9266105
4]

1.52 | 008

b}
Inclividuals
i} Individual
sharaholde
ra halding
nominal
shara
capital upto
Rs.1 lakh
iy
Individual
sharehde
r& holding
nominal
share
capital in
excess of
Rs.1 lakh
¢] Others

1} Trusts
i} NRI

Wiy .
Membors
ivy HUF
v IEPF
Suthority

Sub-total
{B){2)
Total
Public
Sharehold
ing
(B)=(B)1)
+HBH2}

4603785

427525

413305
451975
138373

134174
219

8760839

110161134

2402

o

2815

26135

4895187

427520

4133095
451975
138874

134174
219

GT62454

1163749

1.93

.18

o7
018
0.05

0.05
0.00

4.00

4520

11635402

18353040

2782433
13760849
406354

340652
B

27661681

275404412

4430

4951

4981

11655832

1835040

2782433
1375088
405854

240652
546

2TEGEG42

275409373

191 | {(0.02)

30

.46
0.22
0.06

Q.25
0.04
G.01

G07
0.o0

a.a2
0.00

4.54 0.54

A5.20 -

. Share
held by
Custodian
for GDRs
& ADRs

Grand
Total
(A+B+C)

243715124

2615

2437177328

100,00

EDQ289387

4361

609193348

100.00 -

{99




ti) Sharehelding of Promoters

5. | Shareholder’s Sharcholding at the baginning of Shareholding at the end of the %%
No- hame the year year - change
th the
Mo. of % of % of No. of %% of % of sharahol
Shares total Shares Shares total Shares ding
Shares | Pledgadfen Shares | Pladgedie | guring
of the curmbered of the ncumbere | the year
company | to total comparty | d te total
shares sharas
1 Prasidant of 1336563890 5450 1~ 333684975 54.80 - -
Indiz Thraugh
Miniztry of
Railways
! Tatal 1335538005 5480 | - 333824975 54,80 - -
|
i) Change in Promoters’ Sharehelding (Please specify, if there is no change]
Promoter Sharehclding at the *Data wise Increase/Decraase in Cumulative
S. beginning of the year | Shareholding during the year specifying _Shareholding
No. {01.04.2018)end of the the reasons for Increase/Decrease during the year
year (31.03.2079}
1. | President Mg, of % of Drate Increasa | % Reason Mo, of % of
of India Shares total f Cha Shares letal
through Shares Decrease| nge Shares
Ministry of of the in aof the
Railways campany Shareha company
Iding
133553990 54 B0 133552580 54.30
28.06.201811 33553890 -| Sub-divisionof | 267107930 54,80
shate from
Rs, 10/~ Per
equity share to
Rz &f-per
equity share,
' 1B.02 2018|667 76295 - Bonus Issue I33B84075 5480
{1:4)
333884075 5420 [31.02.2{19 333884975 54.80 |




iv} Sharehalding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders
{Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

5. ' . Top Ten 3harcholder Sharcholding at the Sharsholding at the on
No. - ' beginning of the year on of the year on
01.04.2018 - 31.03.2019
No, of Shares Yoof . No. of % of total
' total Shares Shares of
Shares | the
of the company
: . 1 company
1 Aberdeen Global Indian Equity Limited 4074775 | . 1.67 2038437 | 1.48
2 Matthews PacHic Tiger Fund 58302495 281 17089587 2.81
3 Life insurance Corporation Cf India ) Tra8842 3.18 18762721 3.08
4 | Govermnment Of Singapore 3362755 1.38 2878281 047
5 ICICI Prudential Mutugl Fund . E374381 | . 2.52 10814789 . 1.78
3] Relianhee Mutual Fund 2561423 1.05 465278 0.08
7 | UTE Mutual Fund ' 4065493 1.67 7851548 1.29
8 HOFC Mutual Fund 2868575 1.18 2610627 0.43
9 Hermes Investmant Funds Public Limited : 2237184 0.92 7804483 | 1.28
Company : ' ' ' '
10 | Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund 2217500 0.1 5710291 0,84
11| Azim Premii Trust 2113067 0.8¢ 4275345 . 0.70
12 | Newpart Asia Institutional Fund LP 482311 .20 3910577 054
13 | Fidelity Funds — Asia Focus Fund . 1339077 | . 0558 2488635 .57
MNotes:
1. Top ten shareholders as on March 31" 2018 and March 31% 2019 have been considered, for the above
disclosures.

2. The shares of the Company are traded on daily basis in demat mode and hence the datewise
increase/decrease in shareholding is not indicated,

3. Shareholding is consolidated based on pemanent account number {PAN} of the shareholder.
During the year, sub-division of one equity shares of Rs.10 each into two equity shares of Rs.5 sach was
executed by depositories on 28.06. 2018,

5. During the year, eredit of hanus shares issued in the ratio of 1:4 (i.e. one bonus share for every four equity
shares held an record date) was executed by depositories on 18.02. 2015,




v} Shareheiding of Directors and Kay Managerial Personnet:

8. | For Each of the Directors Shareholding atthe | Cumulative Shareholding during
No. | and KMP beginning of the year the year
No.of . |%oftotal | No.of % of total Shares of
Shares Shares of the | Shares the company
company
1. Shri V. Kalyana Rama, CMD _
01.04.2018 220 (.00008 220 $.00008
28.06.2018 (Sub-Division of 220 000000 440 0.00009
Share}
18.02.2019 {Bonus — 1:4} 110 0.00000 550 (.000608
31.03.2015 550 {00009 550 {.00009
2 L?hrl P. K. Agrawal, Director {(Domestic Division)
01.04.2017 | 220 0.00009 220 0.00009
28.06.2018 (Sub-Division of 220 0.00000 440 0.00008
Share}
18.02.2019 {Bonus — 1:4} 1168 0.00000 550 0.00005
31.03.2018 550 Q.00009 550 000002
3. Shri Sanjay Swarup, Director {international Marketing & operation)
| 01.04 2018 220 0.00009 220 0.00009
28062018 (Sub-Division of 220 000000 4404 0.00008
Shara)
18.02.2019 (Bonus - 1:4) 110 000000 550 0.00009
31.03.2018 &60 000009 ¢ 550 3.00002
4, Shri Rahul Mithal, Director {Projects & Services)
| 01,04.2018 220 0.00008 220 0.00002
28.06.2018 {Sub-Division of 220 0.00000 440 000005
| Share) )
18.02.201% (Bonus —1:4} 110 3.00000 550 .00009
31.03.2019 550 000009 | 550 0.00009
A, Shri Harish Chandra, ED(Finance) & GCompany Secretary _
01.04.2018 220 {00004 220 0.0000%9 |
28.06.2018 (Sub-Division of 220 004000 440 0.00009
Share) )
| 18.02.2018 (Bonus —1:4} 110 {1.00000 550 {3.00005
131.03.2019 550 0.00009 550 0.00009




Y. INDEETEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company Including interest cutstanding/accruad but nat due for payment

(R=. In Crore)
- Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtadnaes
Particulars sxcluding deposits ) o _
indebtadness at
the beginning of
the financial year
i) Principal Amounl | ceeeeee—— - — | e — MIL
i} Interast due but
nat paid
jii} Interest accurad
but not due
Total {i+ii+ii} ]
Thange in
indebtadnass
during the finanglal
year
Addition 700,00 - -
| Rechuslion ) - ) - - T[}U.{JEE
Net Change L T0.00 - - FOQ.00
Indebiedness at
the end of the
financial year
il Principat 700.00 o300
Amount
ity Interest due but - -
not paid
i} Interest accured 0.65 0.85
| bt not due .
Total [I+i+iliy TO0.65 - - FOOES
¥l. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.  Remunaration to Managlng Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

[Rs.in lakhs)
8L | Pardculare of . Kame of CMOWTDManager ] © | Tt
Mo, | Remureration 8h. V. Kalyana Eh.P.K, Sh. Sanjay | ShriRahd | ShiMaxd | Amount

Rama, Agrawal, Swanp, - | - Mithal, Kumar
Chalrman & Crector Plractor Director Cubay,
Managing (Domestic | Ineamational | (Pmojects & DChrector
Direcior Diviglon) {Mialing & |- Services) | {Finance) &

: Operations} | - CFO
) " fwaf

31.50.18)

1. | Grose salary 8514 a5.&0 66.01 £4.04 1971 | 3z0s0 |

(=) Salary as per
provigions contained
in section 171} of the
Income Tax Act, 1961
(b} Value of 274 2.3z 210 2.1 013 9,42
parouisites ufs 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 15881
;e Peofits in liey of - . - . _ .
salary undar saction
1703} Income-tax Act,
1961
| Stock Option ] - . B . ~ -
Sweat Equity - - B B N ) N

CUmmission : -

- as % of profit - - - - - .

- {ihers, - - - - . _

specify...

& Others, please specify j - - ) N _ N _
Total (A} R 87.B8 A7.54 68.11 ! BE.15 1984 | 32992 |
Ceillhg as per the Act | Being a Sovemment Company, celllng provisions nat applicable.

& :'-"|N:

[108]




BE. Remuneration to other directors: {Rs.In akhs}

8l. | Particulars of Remuneraticn Name of Direclors Totat
No. | Independent Directors Fea for attending Commiasion Others, " | Amount
board committes : Pleasa spacify
meetings
1. | Bh. Kamlesh Shivji Vikamsey 8.05 - - 8.05
2. | 5h. Sanjesv 5. Shah 6.20 - - 6.30
3. Mz, Vanita Seth 4.85 - - 4.85
4. | Sh. Lov Verma 7.25 - - 7.25
8. | 8h. AP. Mochera 490 - - 4.9
6. | 5h. Deepak Shetty 4,00 - - 4.00
Total (1} _ 35.35 - - 3533 ;
COther Non-Executive Fee for attending Commission Others,
Cirectors board committea please specify
nteeting s
1. Sh. Sanjay Bajpai - - - -
2. 5h. Prabhas Cransana Sh. - - - -
3, Manoj Kurmar Srivastava - - - -
Tatal {2) - - - -
Total {BY = (1+2) 35.35
Total Managerial 36H2T
Remuneration ]
Owverall Ceiling a5 per the 1% of net profit of the company,
Act o

C. REMUNERATICN TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

{Rs.n lakhs)
Sl. | Particsars of Remuneratich ' Key Managetal Parsonnel

Mo Sh. Harlgh Chandra,. Total
. ED {Fin.) & Company
Secrotary

1. Gross salary
fa) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Incoms 7349 73.44
Tax Act, 1961
{b) Value of perquisites ufs 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - -
{c) Profits in lisu of salary under section 17{3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - -
Stock Oplion ) . - -
Sweat Equity -
Commission
a5 % of profit -
Others, specify... -

5. | Dthers, please specily ] ) - -
Total . } 7349 7349

el K I




VIl. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

1 Section of

the
Companles
Act

Brief
Description

Details of
Panalty/Punishment
ICompounding fees
imposed

- | Authority

[ROINCLT/
COURT]

Appeal -
made, if
any (give
Dutaits_}

A, COMPANY

Fandlty

Funishrenl

Campounding

B. HMRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

€. OTHER OFFICERS

IN CEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding




L

Annexure-'H

FORM NO. AOC-1

[Pursuant to first provisc to sub-section{3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint
ventures

Part "&": Subsidiaries

[ ¥in Crores)
5.No.|Name of the subsidiary Fresh & Healthy | CONCOR Air Ltd. | Punjab Logistics | Sidewl CONCOR
Enterprises Ltd, Infrastructure Ltd.| tafra Co. Lid.
1 |Repaorting peried far the
subsidiary concerned. if | Yo% 9000 31 039019 31052018 | 31052019
different from the halding e T o e
company's reporting period
2 (Raparting currency and
Exchange rate as an the last
date of the relevant Financral INR INR INR INR
year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries
3 |Share Capital 159.12 36.60 19852 99,48
4  [Reserves & surplus -172.16 16.84 -23.68 -15.71
5 |Total assets 46.10 8% 40 25242 g7.60
& |Total Liabilities 4510 84 80 25212 dg7.80
7 |Invesiments - ) - -
& | Turnowver 0.2 HE.54 2025 8.51
9 |Profit before taxation -3.39 015 -11.24 -4.49
10 |Provision for taxation - 0.11 063 .19
11 [Profit after taxation -8.38 0.04 -11.87 -1 68
12 [Proposed Dividend - -
13 _|% of sharehelding 100% 100% 81% 74%,

Neotes: The following information shall be furnished at the and of tha slatement:
1. Names of subsidiares which are yet to commence operations © NIL
2. Names of subsidiares which have been liguidated or scld during the year : NIL

[10&)]
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Annexure-'I’

CEQ & CFO CERTIFICATION

To,

The Board of Directors,

Container Corporation of India Ltd.,
CONCOR Bhawan,

C-3, Mathura Road,

Opp. Apollo Hospital,

Mew Delhi — 110078

Sub: Compliance Certificate for the yearended on 31.02.2019,

We hereby certify that

{a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the
best of cur knowledge and belief:

{i} thass statemesnts do not contain any matarially untrus statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading,

{ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in
comphiance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

{b) There are, tothe best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company
during the yearwhich are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct.

f¢)  We accept respansibility for establishing and maintaining internal cantrols for financial reporting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of intermnal control systems of the company
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committes,
deficiencies in the design or oparation of such intermal controls, if any, of which we are aware and
the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

{d) We haveindicated tothe sauditors and the Audit committee:
{iy  significant changes in internal contrel aver financial reporting during the vear,

{iil significant changes in accounting pelicies during the year and that the same have been
disclesed inthe notes to the financial statements; and

fiii} instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involverment therein,
if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal
control system over financial reporting,

Sdr- Sdf-
Cirector {Finance}and CFO Chairman & Managing Dirsctor
CONCOR CONCOR

Date: 30.04 2019
Place: New Delhi
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' CONTAINER CORPBRATI
COHODE

Annexure-J

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

This section /s as per Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

1. GENERAL, FINANCIAL INFORMATION, BR HEAD,ETC.:
1.1 General Information about the Company

Particulars ' - Detail
a} Comorate Identity Number (CIN) of the Cormpany LE3011DL1988G0I030915
B) Name of the Company Container Comporation of India Limited
¢} Registered address CONCOR Bhawan, C-3, Mathura Road, Opposits
Apcllo Hospital, New Delhi-110076.
d) Website htteffwww.concorindia.com
) E-mail id (of Director responsible for BR) sanjays@concorindia.com
f} Financial Year reported Financial year ended 31% March 2019
49} Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in Logistics & Transportation:

Group 491: Transport via Railways

Group 492 (Rher Land Transpart

Group 521: Warehousing and Storage

Group 522: Support activities for transportation

{The abave is as per classifications made by Centrai
Statistical Organisation, Ministry of Statistics and
Programme Implementation)

h} List three key =services that the Company provides | {i) Transportation of Containers;
{asin balance sheet} (i) Handiing of Containers; and. .
(ili) Cperation of Logistics facilities including dry ports
container freight stations and private freight

terminals,
i) Tatal number of |ocations where business activity
is undertaken by the Company
r. Number of Internafional Locations One Joint Verture Company at Nepal,
{Provide details of major 5)

Il. Number of National Locations CONCOR has pan India presence with 83
terminals out of which 75 are its own terminals
{14 pure Exim, 37 combined and 24 pure
domestic) and it has entered into stratagic
tis-ups for 8 locations with other players.

J) Markets served by the Company — Local/ Primarily Matiohal and Indirectly International.

State/MNaticnal/internationalf




1.2 Financial Details of the Company

information Required Details
a} Paid up Capital (INR) Rs.304.65 crores
b) Total Turnover {INR;} Rs.7218.14 crores
c} Total profit after taxes {INR) Rs.1215.41 crores

d) Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility CONCOR earmarks around 2% of its profit as per
(CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%) pravision of Companies Act, 2013 towards GSR
spending. The total C3R budgst for FY 2018-18 was

Fs.36.88 crores, which includes carry forward
unspent armount of Rs.11.00 crores from previous
year. The Company has disbursed an amount of
Rs5.13.39 crores towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) activities during the year.

&) List of activities in which expenditure in d) above i. Installation of Handpumps in Ghazipur,
has been incurred. Lamuha, Aligarh in Uttar Pradesh,

ii. Education for poor children in Utar Pradesh
and Delhi.

iii.  Skilling in gamment & logistics sector and beauty
& wallness sectar.

iv. Organizing Heallh Camps for stakeholders near
its operational areas. Suppeorted Cochlezar
implants surgery to children with hearing
impairment.

v Construction of toilets, classrooms and drinking
water etc. in schools of Sonipat (Haryana),
Pumia {Bihar), Lakhimpur Khiri (UP}, Kannur
{Kerala)and Khatuwas {Rajasthan} etc.

vi. Contribution in Mational Sports develop-ment
Fund and Armed Forces Flag Day Fund.

vil. Renovation and beautification of the schogls in
Ghazipur {JP).

viil, Support to East Coast Railway towards
developmant of sports facilities.

ix. Supported to Asifabad aspirational district of
Telangana for health care eguipments and
science labs in schools.

%. Undertaking construction of public toilets at
railway stations in Western Railway Zone.

The Corporate Sacial Responsibility & Sustainakbility (CSRE&S) activities in CONCOR are evolving as a distinct
function operating within the framework of a well-structured CSR policy. In line with the provisions under
Companies Act 2013 and policy of the Government translated in the form of the CSR guidelines of the
Department of Public Enterprises {DPE), funds are being allocated for these activities by the Company. The
unspent amountin a year is carried forward for utilization inthe following years.

CONCOR has developed a system for identifying and implementing CSR programs with defined timelines and
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project milestones, in terms of a standardized Memorandurm of Understanding (MOU) sigried with the project

exacuting partners.
1.3 Other Details
Particulars . Details
a) Does the Company have any Subsidiary | Yes, the Company has foursubsidiaries, viz
Companyf Companies? 1. Freshand Healthy Enterprises Ltd. {FHEL).
2. CONCORAIrLtd. {CAL).
3. SIDCUL CONCOR Infra Company Lid. (SCICL).
4. Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Ltd. {PLIL).
bl Do the Subsidiary Company/Companias | Yes
participate in the BR Iniliatives of the parent
company? If yes, then indicate the nurmber of
such subsidiary company(s)
¢) Do any other entity/enlities {e.q. suppliers, | Inmastofthe cases, BR initiatives are carried cut by
distributors etc.) that the Company deoes | CONCORdirectly, however, the Companyand all its
business with, participate in the BR initiatives | stakeholders whe are having formal business
of the Company? f yes, then indicate the | arrangements with it, viz. Govemment, suppliers,
percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than | distibutors, confractors, customers and others are
30%, 30-60%, More than 80%] indirectly participating in the BR initiatives of the
Company.
14 Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR
Partlculars Details
a) Details of the Director/Director rasponsible for
implementation of the BR policy! policies
+  DINMumber 05159435
+ MName Shri Sanjay Swarup
= Deasignation Director {Intl. Marketing & Ops.)
by Details of the BR head
+  DIN Nurnber {if applicable)} 05158435
= Name Shri Sanjay Swarup
+ Designation Director {Intl. Marketing & Ops.}
+ Telephone number 01141673015
+ e-mailid sanjays@concorindia.com

1.5 Governance related to BR

Partlculars

Detalls

a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of
Directors, Committee of the Board or CEC ta
assess the BR performance of the Company.
Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More

than 1 year

To access and review the performance of CSR
activities in CONCOR, the Board level committee
far CSR met four times during 2018-19. While BR
reportis placed before Board annually.
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Particulars Details

b] Does the Gampany publish a BR or a | Yes, the BRreportis uploaded along with the annual
Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink | reporton the website of the Company. The CSR and
for viewing this report? How frequently it is | Sustainability initiatives carried out during the year
puhblished? are also published separately as part of the annual

repott and is available at
http:ffeoncorindia.com/assets/pdifcsr.pdf

2. PRINCIPAL WISE BER POLICY & PERFORMANCE:
2.1 Principle-1; Responsibility towards conduct and governance of businesses

Informution
Cocrplimt
ey of elth g
Condaxt poepming e
Princhple-1: SIH Ruriing
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GouamanTD Frpabtocs
Dﬂlﬂ\': i DR aklalia
ety Pact

The Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Managemant Personngl is in alignment with Company's
Statement of Mission & Objectives and the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulations) and aims at enhancing ethical and transparent process
in managing the affairs of the Company. In respect of Whale-time: Directors and senior management personnel,
this Codeis to be read in conjunction with the CONCOR Cenduct Rules, 1293 and amegndments thereto, ifany.

There is a well established set up for providing infermation under the Right o Information Act, 2005,

The Whistle Blower policy of the Company has been updated from time to time in compliance of the provisions of
Listing Regulations & Companies Act, 201 3. It provides an opportunity and an avenue o employees, to raise
concems and to repart to Audit and Ethics Committee, in case they observe any unethical and improper
practices or any ather wrongful conduct in the Company. It seeks to provide necessary safeguards for protection
of employees fromreprisals or victimization.

CONCOR has entered irto an MOU with Transparency intemational — India' {TIl} for implementing a tool
developed by Tl in consultation with CVG viz, Integrity Pact Program. The objective of the tool is to ensure that
all activities and transactions between a Company or Government departments and their Suppliers are handfed
in a fair, fransparent and corruption free manner.

CONCOR believes in providing reliable, responsive, safe and value added logistic services by following highest
ethical standards. It does business with a number of domestic and international bidders, contractors and
vendors of goods and services (counterparlies). The bidding process is transparent, open and accessible to
public with tenders being put up on the Company 